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KLA-TENCOR IS UNMATCHED, WITH A BROAD PRODUCT PORTFOLIO OF INSPECTION

AND MEASUREMENT TECHNOLOGIES COMBINED WITH DEEP TECHNICAL EXPERTISE AND
COMPREHENSIVE APPLICATIONS TO SUPPORT A WIDE RANGE OF INDUSTRIES. FUELING
THIS PRODUCT ENGINE IS A STRONG TRACK RECORD OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE THAT
ENABLES CONTINUOUS INNOVATION TO MEET THE DYNAMIC REQUIREMENTS OF OUR
CUSTOMERS AND ULTIMATELY PROVIDE THE FOUNDATION FOR OUR GROWTH. BUILDING
ON OUR CONSISTENT PERFORMANCE HISTORY, THIS YEAR WAS FILLED WITH INNOVATION
FOR THE COMPANY —IN NEW PRODUCTS, NEW IDEAS AND NEW WAYS OF OPERATING.
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Today, KLA-Tencor is stronger than ever. Building on our
experience, we have fine-tuned our successful strategy of
technical differentiation and operational discipline to deliver
a year of record results for revenue, profitability and cash
flow. Revenue for the year was $2.7 billion, an increase of
32 percent over fiscal year 2006, and net income grew 39
percent to a record $528 million, or $2.61 per fully diluted
share. This helped generate $611 million in operating cash
flow for the year, an increase of $295 million over 2006.

We also made use of our strong balance sheet to invest
in growth and to return cash to our shareholders. We
successfully completed multiple acquisitions for a total
investment of $522 million in the year, which has allowed
us to expand our product portfolio and to strengthen our
position in key markets. In addition, after investing in our
future through more than $437 million in research and
development efforts, we also returned value to our share-
holders in fiscal year 2007 through our dividend and share
repurchase programs. We concluded the year with $1.7
billion in cash and marketable securities.

Uniquely Positioned

This fiscal year marks the 10th anniversary of the creation of
KLA-Tencor, which has been hailed by many as the most success-
ful merger in the history of the semiconductor equipment industry.
The Company has built a rich legacy based on 30 years of tech-
nology development, customer service, operational excellence and
strong financial performance. The key to KLA-Tencor’s market
leadership and close customer relationships is our unmatched
product portfolio — the broadest suite of inspection and metrol-
ogy products for the semiconductor, wafer, mask, data storage
and other electronics industries in the market today. This portfolio
allows us to provide customized inspection and measurement
strategies that are uniquely suited to each customer and that help
them speed product development, ramp to volume production
faster and maximize their yield. The result for our customers is
decreased time to market and, ultimately, greater profitability.

Clear Vision and Purpose

Our focus on inspection and measurement is driven by our vision
to solve our customers’ mission-critical yield challenges using
inspection and metrology solutions. To accomplish this goal,

we introduced four corporate objectives in 2007: customer focus,
growth, operational excellence and talent development. Over the
past year, we have made significant progress on each of

these objectives.

Customer Focus
Our success is the direct result of our partnerships with our
customers. In 2007, we worked more closely than ever with our

customers to collaborate and develop products and methods
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to help them overcome their toughest manufacturing yield chal-
lenges and improve their profitability. To support this increased
collaborative development, as well as to help customers manage
their production, we have increased our local presence in the
areas where our customers do business. With more than 25,000
systems installed worldwide, our team of 3,300 technical per-
sonnel in the field supports our products at customer locations
through applications expertise and comprehensive service.

To ensure that we maintain and build upon our leadership
position, we continually measure the success of our customer
focus initiative by monitoring how customers are voting with
their capital budgets and how they are rewarding KLA-Tencor
with their business — in other words, market share. KLA-Tencor
is the market leader in all the major businesses in which we par-
ticipate and we are aggressively developing innovative products
and technologies to steadily improve our market position.

Growth and Innovation

Driven by the increase in our end markets as well as increased
adoption of our inspection and measurement technology,
KLA-Tencor’s revenue grew more than 30 percent year over year.
To achieve this revenue result, the Company focused on both
organic and acquired growth during the past year.

Fiscal 2007 was a strong year for new products. The Company
announced 11 major new products focused on next-generation

design rules and substrates. We saw significant growth in the
wafer manufacturing market, which experienced strong demand

from both the semiconductor and solar markets. Our compre-
hensive suite of inspection and metrology products geared for the
wafer market enables our customers to produce the volume and
quality of wafers required for today’s demanding applications.

The increase in nanoscale manufacturing across a wider range of
industries is driving the need for more robust quality and process
control techniques. As a result, our Growth and Emerging Mar-
kets Group saw significant growth and adoption of our leading
inspection and measurement technologies into diverse areas such
as compound substrates, high brightness light emitting diodes
(LEDs), data storage and the medical industries.

The opportunities for KLA-Tencor are expanding. Each new fab
and new process node brings new opportunities. The transition
to the 45nm design node is creating a new set of challenges for
device manufacturers, including integrating new materials such as
high k& metal gate structures and new manufacturing techniques
such as immersion lithography. Overall, the shift from 65nm to
the 45nm node should increase our total available market by 30
percent or more. Each new dimensional shrink, material change
and manufacturing method will require customers to identify
new and smaller defects — a challenge that KLA-Tencor’s suite of
inspection technologies is uniquely positioned to solve. The move
to smaller and smaller design rules is also elevating the impor-
tance of accurate measurements. We have the broadest set of me-
trology tools and new metrology technologies to help chipmakers
overcome this hurdle to reliable, high-yield manufacturing.
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Our systems encompass a wide range of technologies including
advanced optics, high-speed data processing, and precision
motion control and image sensors, among others. In addition, we
possess robust software technology which drives the operations
of all our systems.

Beyond the current development and production design rules,
KLA-Tencor is focused on making certain that we have the right
products available to our customers when they need them for
their next-generation development. KLA-Tencor has invested
nearly $1.2 billion in inspection and measurement focused
R&D over the last three years. As a result, we were granted

151 new patents this past year alone. We also maintain strong
relationships with key technical universities and research insti-
tutions in addition to funding early stage development through
our KT Venture Fund.

In addition to our organic product development efforts, we
expanded our technology portfolio through the acquisitions

of ADE Corporation, OnWafer Technologies, Inc., SensArray
Corporation and Therma-Wave, Inc. Each of these acquisitions
strengthens our metrology product portfolio and will provide

us with future opportunities as we introduce these products to a
wider customer base. These acquisitions are successful as a result
of our ability to execute effectively, reaching our goal of being
accretive within two quarters.

Operational Excellence

The third major area of focus at KLA-Tencor is centered on
driving operational excellence to lower our cost and return higher
value. Results of these efforts are reflected in our expanded

margins and improved Return on Invested Capital (ROIC) in the

year. Operating margin in fiscal 2007 improved by over 600 basis
points compared with 2006. Our annualized ROIC in the fourth

quarter of fiscal 2007 increased by 11 percent compared with the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2006.

Our diligent focus on improving operational excellence has a
positive impact both to our business model and to our custom-
ers’ experience. Today, we are driving many different initiatives
worldwide to improve profitability. By optimizing our global
footprint and improving organizational efficiency, we have
achieved some noteworthy results over the past year. To better
align with our customers’ planning windows, we have focused
on reducing cycle times throughout the entire fulfillment process.
We have achieved manufacturing cycle time reductions across
our product lines.

We are making progress with our operational excellence objective
and are gratified by our employees’ continued commitment to
work toward its achievement throughout the Company.

Talent Development

Our Company is respected for our technical expertise and our
ability to continuously innovate. This reputation stems from a
30-year foundation of very talented people. Their commitment to
learning and constantly improving is what drives the innovative
spirit within KLA-Tencor.
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Over the years, we have built a very successful talent program
focused on the development and mentoring of the next generation
of leaders within the Company. We strive to grow and promote
from within. We employ the right people with the right skills in
the right places to continue to create industry-leading products
and to serve and support our customers around the globe.
Additionally, we are investing more in developing our people,
attracting new talent, and training our future leaders for the
growth opportunities that lie ahead in new products, new
geographies and new markets.

Looking Ahead to 2008

In the coming year, we will continue our relentless focus on
improving customer experience, growth, operating excellence and
people development. We believe we have the right vision and strat-
egy to achieve our long-term goals — our results in fiscal 2007 are
an encouraging sign that we are on the right track.

This year we will continue to help our customers develop their
45nm capability. We see significant challenges for the semiconduc-
tor industry with this next node transition, and we are collabo-
rating with our customers to overcome these challenges, helping
them speed their product development and ramp to production
faster. We are well positioned to meet our customers’ technology
needs and will focus this year on placing our new suite of 45nm
products in their factories.

We have a very active product development pipeline and plan
to introduce a significant number of new products this year.
Our goal is to serve our customers with the industry’s broadest
product portfolio of inspection and metrology solutions to meet
their demands.

In fiscal 2008, we will continue to drive many ongoing initiatives
within the Company to improve our operating efficiency. We are
focused on transitioning selected manufacturing activities to our
new Singapore facility. We are also improving our supply chain
by strengthening our supplier relationships and expanding our
global supplier base.

Of course, none of these activities would be possible without the
KLA-Tencor employees. We will continue to improve our efforts
in cultivating the industry’s most talented workforce.

Overall, we are encouraged by the results of the 2007 fiscal year
and are eager to continue to make progress in 2008 on our stra-
tegic plan. We would like to take this opportunity to thank our
customers for their loyalty and their partnership. And we would
especially like to thank the employees of KLA-Tencor for their
tremendous achievement in delivering a record year of results.

PO elloe

Rick Wallace
Chief Executive Officer

John Kispert
President and Chief Operating Officer




PRODUCT HIGHLIGHTS

One key to KLA-Tencor’s industry leadership in inspection
and metrology is its ability to continuously develop and
release new technology that helps customers move their
high-yield production to the next chip generation. To be
effective, these products must be designed, extensively
tested at customer sites and made available very early in
a given chip’s generational cycle — typically even before
volume production has begun at the most advanced
chipmakers’ fabs. In fiscal 2007, the Company continued
this tradition with a broad portfolio of tools targeting
customers’ 45nm-generation yield requirements.

TeraScanHR™

In the photomask inspection market, the TeraScanHR is the
industry’s first production-capable 45nm-generation mask inspec-
tion system. With significantly improved resolution required for
the smaller defects, as well as extensive productivity gains, the
TeraScanHR offers customers the compelling combination of the
highest sensitivity for 45nm critical layer production with a lower
cost per inspection for less aggressive layers and chip generations.

Surfscan® Sp2x?

The Surfscan SP2X" system is a new unpatterned wafer inspection
system designed to meet 45nm manufacturing requirements for
all types of bare wafers, both at wafer manufacturers’ operations
and at IC fabs. Employing a proprietary five-channel inspection
technology, the Surfscan SP2X" offers wafer suppliers, for the first
time, the ability to detect and classify all major types of defects.

Puma™ 9150

The new Puma 9150 system contains the Company’s latest
advances in darkfield patterned wafer inspection technology,
including new optical modes that capture a broader range of
yield-critical defects for 45nm production and beyond. At the
same time, the Puma 9150 provides the highest available dark-
field production throughputs, reducing operating cost and
allowing higher sampling rates for tighter process control.

2810 and 2815

Extending our industry leadership in high-resolution brightfield
defect inspection, the new 2810 and 2815 systems feature special-
ized optical configurations that solve the unique defect detection
challenges of sub-55nm memory and sub-45nm logic chip manu-
facturing, respectively. Both systems use KLA-Tencor’s proprietary
full-spectrum illumination technology to capture the broadest
possible range of defect types, including yield-critical immersion
lithography defects.

eDR™-5200

The newly introduced eDR-5200 is a completely new wafer
defect review and classification system that leverages proprietary
advances in resolution and defect detection sensitivity. The
unique, seamless integration of KLA-Tencor inspection tools
and the eDR-5200 enables fabs at the 45nm node and beyond
to much more quickly identify yield-relevant defects, then image
them using the industry’s highest-resolution electron-beam
imaging technology. This new system helps customers speed

up their response to yield problems uncovered by inspection
systems, for faster corrective action and less risk to production.

VisEdge™ CV300

The VisEdge CV300 edge-inspection system represents the
semiconductor industry’s first inspection solution capable of
meeting the full range of wafer-edge inspection requirements in

a production environment. With many advanced IC manufactur-
ers facing an average of 10 to 50 percent greater yield loss at the
wafer’s edge relative to their best yielding region, a comprehensive
inspection strategy that includes advanced edge inspection is
critical.

Archer 100™

The Archer 100 is KLA-Tencor’s latest optical overlay metrology
system — a 45nm-generation pattern alignment tool designed to
significantly enhance the precision and productivity of advanced
lithography, including immersion and future double-patterning
lithography technologies.

TeraScanHR
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains certain forward-looking statems within the meaning of Section 27A of the SiesiAct of 1933 and Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All stateémether than statements of historical fact maydoerard-looking statements. You can
identify these and other forward-looking statemdaytshe use of words such as “may,” “will,” “could;'would,” “should,” “expects,”

“plans,” “anticipates,” “relies,” “believes,” “esti mates,” “predicts,” “intends,” “potential,” “contin ue,” or the negative of such terms, or
other comparable terminology. Forward-looking statnts also include the assumptions underlying latirey to any of the foregoing
statements. Such forward-looking statements in¢laaeng others, forecasts of the future resulmunfoperations; the percentage of
spending that our customers allocate to processrobrorders for our products and capital equipme@nerally; sales of semiconductors;
allocation of capital spending by our customerswth of revenue in the semiconductor industry sémiconductor capital equipment
industry and business; technological trends indbmiconductor industry; the future impact of thetaéement of our historical financial
statements, shareholder litigation and related exatiarising from the discovery that we had retrosgady priced stock options (primarily fro
July 1, 1997 to June 30, 2002) and had not accalfttethem correctly; our future product offeringsd product features; the success i
market acceptance of new products; timing of shigroébacklog; the future of our product shipmeantsl our product and service revenues;
our future gross margins; the future of our selliggneral and administrative expenses; internati@ades and operations; maintenance of
our competitive advantage; success of our prodffetings; creation and funding of programs for rasgh and development; attraction and
retention of employees; results of our investmefgeading edge technologies; the effects of hedgampsactions; the effect of the sale of tr.
receivables and promissory notes from customensfuiure income tax rate; dividends; the completafrany acquisitions of third parties, or
the technology or assets thereof; benefits recdinmd any acquisitions and development of acquieetinologies; sufficiency of our existing
cash balance, investments and cash generated fpamations to meet our operating and working capitgjuirements; and the adoption of
new accounting pronouncements.

Our actual results may differ significantly fronotie projected in the forwardoking statements in this report. Factors that Imhigause
or contribute to such differences include, but ao¢ limited to, those discussed in Item 1A, “Riskcters” as well as in Item 1, “Business”
and Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analy$iSinancial Condition and Results of Operations”tims Annual Report on Form 10-K.
You should carefully review these risks and alsdeng the risks described in other documents wdrfile time to time with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, including the Quarterly Report Form 1-Q that we will file in the fiscal year ending Jud@, 2008. You are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on thesedoiwooking statements, and we expressly assunobligation to update the forward-
looking statements in this report after the datecbé
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
The Company

KLA-Tencor Corporation (“KLA-Tencor” or the “Compghand also referred to as “we” or “our”) is the sldis leading supplier of
process control and yield management solutionthf@semiconductor and related microelectronicsstriks. Our products are also used in a
number of other industries, including wafer mantifeag and data storage.

Within our primary area of focus, our comprehengiwetfolio of products, services, software and etipe helps integrated circuit (“I¢”
manufacturers manage yield throughout the entlvadation process—from research and developmeimabvolume production. These
products and solutions are designed to help cuswateelerate their development cycles, bring tladis to production more quickly and
achieve higher and more stable yields.

KLA-Tencor’s products and services are used byasilly every major wafer, IC and photomask manufatin the world. These
customers turn to us for inline wafer defect mariitg; reticle and photomask defect inspectionjaaltdimension (“CD”) metrology; wafer
overlay metrology; film and surface measuremend, arerall yield and fab-wide data analysis. Ouraathed products, coupled with our
unique yield technology services, allow us to dalithe yield management solutions our customerd teeaccelerate their yield learning ra
reduce their yield excursion risks and adopt ingugading yield management practices.

KLA-Tencor Corporation was formed in April 1997 ¢lugh the merger of KLA Instruments Corporation dedcor Instruments, two
long-time leaders in the semiconductor equipmeatistry, each with over 20 years of experience. Kh#truments Corporation was
incorporated in Delaware in 1975; Tencor Instrureevas incorporated in California in 1976. Effecteril 30, 1997, a wholly owned
subsidiary of KLA Instruments Corporation mergetbifiencor Instruments, and Tencor Instruments beaamholly owned subsidiary of
KLA Instruments Corporation. Immediately followitigis merger, KLA Instruments Corporation changscame to KLA-Tencor
Corporation.

Additional information about KLA-Tencor is avail@bn our web site at www.kla-tencor.com. We malailable free of charge on our
web site our Annual Report on Form 10-K, our QuéytReports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Forihdhd amendments to those
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 18¢al5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 19&lamended, as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file them withfurnish them to the Securities and Exchange Cission (“SEC”). Information contained
on our web site is not part of this Annual Repartmrm 10-K or our other filings with the SEC. Atidhally, these filings may be obtained
by visiting the Public Reference Room of the SECQ4I F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549 or by rglthe SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330, by
sending an electronic message to the SEC at pofali@sec.gov or by sending a fax to the SEC at 3720021027. In addition, the SEC
maintains a website (www.sec.gov) that containsmspproxy and information statements, and othirimation regarding issuers that file
electronically.

Industry
General Background

The semiconductor or integrated circuit (“IC” ohip”) industry is KLA-Tencor’s core focus. The saminductor fabrication process
begins with a bare silicon wafer—a round disk ibatix, eight or twelve inches in diameter, abauthack as a credit card and gray in color.
The process of manufacturing wafers is itself higddphisticated, involving the creation of larggats of silicon by pulling them out of a vat
of molten silicon. The ingots are then sliced imtafers and polished to a mirror finish.

The manufacturing cycle of an IC is grouped int@¢hphases: design, fabrication and testing. |I@desvolves the architectural layout
of the circuit, as well as design verification gftbtomask or reticle generation.

1
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The fabrication of a chip is accomplished by defiagia series of film layers that act as conducteesniconductors or insulators. The
deposition of these film layers is interspersedwiimerous other process steps that create cratiérns, remove portions of the film layers,
and perform other functions such as heat treatmesdsurement and inspection. Most advanced chigrdesequire hundreds of individual
steps, many of which are performed multiple tinhdest chips consist of two main structures: the losteucture, typically consisting of
transistors or capacitors, which performs the “¢hfanctions of the chip; and the upper ‘intercoatistructure, typically consisting of
circuitry which connects the components in the losteucture. When all of the layers on the waferehlaeen completed, each die on the w

is then tested for functionality.

Current Trends

Companies that anticipate future market demandielrgloping and refining new technologies and masiufang processes are better
positioned to lead in the semiconductor market.imupast industry cycles, semiconductor manufacsugenerally contended with one key
new technology or market trend, such as a spetéfsign rule shrink. In today’s market, the leadiegriconductor manufacturers are
investing in bringing a multitude of new technolegjinto production at the same time, including setstrate and film materials and
advanced lithography techniques.

While many of these technologies have been adgittte development and pilot production stagesifsignt challenges and risks
associated with each technology have affected #uiption into fullvolume production. For example, as design rulesedee, yields becor
more sensitive to the size and density of defedtde device performance characteristics (namegedpor capacity) become more sensitiv
such parameters as linewidth and film thicknesgtian. New process materials, such as high-k digts, silicon-on-insulator (“SOI")
wafers and immersion lithography-capable phototesexjuire extensive characterization before ttaeyhe used in the manufacturing
process. Moving several of these advanced techiesldgto production at once only adds to the ribles chipmakers face.

The continuing evolution of semiconductor devigesrnaller geometries and more complex multi-leireitry has significantly
increased the cost and performance requiremertke afapital equipment used to manufacture thesie@®wConstruction of an advanced
wafer fabrication facility today can cost over $lidn, substantially more than previous generafiacilities. As a result, chipmakers are
demanding increased productivity and higher rettnor® their manufacturing equipment.

By developing new process control and yield managernools that help chipmakers accelerate the amopf these new technologies
into volume production, we enable our custometsetiter leverage these increasingly expensive fiasjireduce their production costs and
significantly improve their return on investmenRQI”). Once customers’ production lines are opegtt high volume, our tools help ensure
that yields are stable and process excursionslargified and quickly resolved. Historically, thewe to each new generatisrsmaller desig
rules has increased in-process variability and Hassoften required increased inspection and nogtyadampling.

With our broad portfolio of application-focused heologies and our dedicated yield technology exgeErtve are in position to be a key
supplier of comprehensive yield management solatfoncustomers’ next-generation products, inclgdhose required for the 45nm
generation and beyond.

Our Process Control and Yield Acceleration Solution

Accelerating the yield ramp and maximizing prodaiatyields of high-performance devices are key goatmodern semiconductor
manufacturing. Ramping to high-volume productioradhof competitors can dramatically increase thiemee an IC manufacturer realizes
for a given product. KLA-Tencor systems not onlalgze defectivity and metrology issues at critipaints in the wafer, photomask and IC
manufacturing processes, but also provide informnatd our customers so that they can identify atdiess the underlying process problems.
The ability to locate the source of defects andattarize process issues enables our

2
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customers to improve control over their manufacyiprocesses, so they can increase their yieligbfperformance parts—thus maximizing
their profit.

Products

KLA-Tencor operates primarily in one segment far tlesign, manufacture and marketing of processaantd yield management
systems for the semiconductor and related micrtreleics industry. We also currently offer produittat serve the wafer manufacturing, data
storage and other industries. We design, marketufaature and sell our equipment—consisting ofguattd and unpatterned wafer
inspection, optical overlay metrology, electron-ie@-beam) review, reticle and photomask inspectiod film and surface measurement
tools—as well as our advanced yield analysis arfelctielassification software to provide fab-widelgi management solutions. These
solutions are optimized for the manufacturing pesceells used in IC production, including lithodmgpdeposition, etch, and chemical
mechanical planarization (CMP). Our offerings carbboadly categorized into four groups: Defect &wdjmn; Metrology; product related
services; and Software. For our customers manufagtlarger design-rule devices, we provide refsineid KLA-Tencor Certified tools along
with warranty and support.

Defect Inspectiol

KLA-Tencor’s defect inspection tools allow our custers to detect, count, classify and characteiigdd yailures caused by particles,
pattern defects, surface anomalies and electssaks during all stages of the IC manufacturinggss. Our portfolio of tools enables our
customers to ramp their production lines fastefitging new defect types during development andpaamd to maintain high and stable
yields by monitoring defect count by type duringguction.

Defect inspection is especially critical as ourtougers move to production of 65nm design-rule desjiand begin development of the
45nm node. The number of yield-relevant defecteeimses as semiconductor process tolerances (“gradedows”) become tighter, a result
of smaller, more densely packed semiconductor itipatterns. Also, new defect types and yield issarése from the necessary introduction
of innovative materials, device structures andlitaphy techniques. As a result, chip manufactureesl to inspect more wafers per lot,
process layers and more area on the wafer, athsgimsitivities. KLA-Tencor supplies a wide porifobf high performance inspection,
classification and analysis systems that enableastomers to solve their toughest yield issues.

High-Sensitivity Broadband Brightfield Inspection

Brightfield inspection systems provide benchmanksg@vity to small defects, and capture the graatmsge of defect types, which
becomes increasingly important as our customersentmv5nm and smaller production. Our 280Beries brightfield inspection system
has been widely adopted at leading-edge memorig &gl foundry fabs worldwide, because it delivibies sensitivity and production-
worthy performance that chipmakers need to produaeket-leading devices. Key to the 2800 inspectigstem’s success is the
industry’s only full-spectrum broadband light sceirspanning deep ultraviolet to visible wavelengWigh the ability to tune its
wavelength and employ various optical modes andrilgns, the 2800 inspection system provides seitgito an unequalled range of
defect types throughout the chip manufacturing @sscin June 2007 we introduced the newest additpur 28xx product series, the
2810 and 2815. Targeting the 45nm node, thesaarkrst inspection systems designed specificaltynfiemory or logic applications.
The 2810 and 2815 have twice the computing spe&td?800 and new optical modes that enable inededsfect capture.

High-Performance Darkfield Inspection

Darkfield inspection systems are used to cost g¥ely monitor process tools for defect yield exsions. Our widely-adopted
Puma™ Series darkfield inspection platform leveragesmatented Streak
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laser imaging technology to produce the highessisigities at production throughputs of any darldiespection system on the market.
Combining advanced UV-laser illumination opticsiwét solid-state sensor to image the scattered Bjteak is scalable for multiple
technology generations.

In September 2006, we introduced the Puma 911®48d. The Puma 91xx platform builds on the advargayf the Puma 9000,
with double its throughput, as well as greater gieitg and ease of use. In June 2007, we addedd®1xx family by introducing the
Puma 9150, which features enhancements that furtberase the range of defect types that the systantapture.

High Resolution Electron Beam Review and Clasgifica

Once a defect has been identified, a chipmaker briable to review and classify the defect in otdadentify and address the
cause of the defect. As chipmakers moved to thenddode, however, inspection tools were identifyiledects that fell below the
resolution limit of the review tools commerciallyalable at that time. To address this situatioa,rerentered the defect review and
classification market by introducing the eDR5200 in early July 2007. The eDR-5200 featuremna kystem that delivers a significant
improvement in resolution, meeting production anatpss development requirements for advanced desigrsemiconductor devices.
Unique connectivity technology between the eDR-5200 our market-leading inspection systems provadiektional benefits to our
customers with respect to defect re-detectionstflaation and speed. Because the eDR-5200 wazdinted after the end of the fiscal
year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-Kesaf this product are not reflected in the firiahstatements included in this
report.

Wafer and Film Surface Inspection

All chipmakers extensively utilize inspection totdsdetect defects on blanket (unpatterned) filnts lsare wafer surfaces. Our
Surfscan SP2 and Surfscafi SP2XP products are designed to detect those types otidefe

Unpatterned Wafer and Film Surface Inspection:destain types of inspection, such as the qualificadf new process tools,
periodic checks of process tools already in pradacor qualification of process tools after mairgace, chipmakers may prefer to use
bare or blanket-film wafers instead of patternedlensa The Surfscan SP2incorporates UV illumination technology to signéiatly
enhance inspection sensitivity and speed on IGsfilas well as both traditional silicon and engirdesubstrates. The Surfscan SP2 is
capable of detecting defects as small as 30nnmghathithroughputs than that of the previous-germradurfscan SPA-Sinspection
system.

Bare Wafer Surface InspectioThe wafer substrate is the foundation of an intiegraircuit. Having a defect-free wafer substrate
is essential, since defects on the surface of @fervean adversely affect subsequent semicondpoteesses, and ultimately impact IC
performance. In January 2007 we introduced thes8anf SP2P, a system which has the speed and sensitivitgeBurfscan SP2, plus
a new optical subsystem that allows the tool ttirdisiish between inherent defects in the silicorstal—which can kill transistors and
thus require scrapping the wafer—and other defged that may be eliminated through cleaning grakshing the wafer. The Surfscan
SP2XP provides wafer manufacturers with the ability toegcfewer wafers, enhancing their profitability.iFtool has been adopted by
all major wafer manufacturers worldwide.

Electron-Beam Inspection

For advanced IC manufacturing, e-beam inspecti@ssential—not only during IC development, wherehtghest sensitivity is
needed to discover defects, but also in productidrere dedicated systems are required to monitppkacess steps for defect
excursions. Only e-beam technology can find thellestgohysical defects and the subtle electricécts that plague customers as they
introduce new materials and device structuresea68nm and 45nm nodes.
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In February 2006, we introduced the latest additiour eS3x series of e-beam inspection systems-e#32" . A single system
spanning development and production applicatidreseS32 e-beam inspection system provides thesbssitivity at throughput for
defect types that optical systems cannot find.

Macro Defect Inspection for Wafer Dispositioning

Advanced fabs require accurate and rapid dispositexision making during manufacturing, as weljaigk assessment of tool
and process module output. Operators have histigrfparformed this task by visually inspecting asdhsample of wafers for macro
defects under a manual or semi-automated lightasompe. However, advanced 300mm manufacturing, laige wafer surfaces,
smaller device features and factory automationllemhges the ability of the operator to assess waded lots in a reliable and repeatable
manner. These conditions place large quantitiemlfable wafers at risk.

In May 2006, we introduced the Viper 2435XRutomated 300mm wafer and tool dispositioning systehich captures a broad
range of defect types at very high throughput—eanghbhspection of 100% of wafer lots. Deliveringickugo/no-go decisions, the
system enables fab engineers to take correctivenaearly, when wafers can be reworked or proaesisproblems can be repaired
before additional lots are put at risk. Viper 2485%an be integrated rapidly and seamlessly intmdyztion environment in the
lithography, CMP, etch, and films process modules.

Wafer Edge Inspection

As customers move to smaller design rules and mawe complex material stacks, the high stress weafge region has become a
source of yield-limiting defects. Material at thige of the wafer can flake off and fall onto thgioms where the chips are being built,
causing loss of yield. The recent introductionrofriersion lithography adds to the potential for éisko migrate and cause yield loss,
since the flakes can be transported by the immmefhidd.

To help customers identify and fix these edge-eelatield issues, KLA-Tencor introduced the VisEdgeV300, in October 200¢
The tool’s unique optics design and advanced defassification capabilities allow IC manufacturessapture a wide range of wafer-
edge defect types with high sensitivity.

Reticle Inspection

Reticles are high-precision quartz plates thataiannicroscopic images of electronic circuits. Bhinto steppers or scanners,
reticles are used to transfer circuit patterns ovdters to fabricate ICs. It is extremely importtrdt these features are printed correctly
on the reticles; very small variations in line widtr placement, or defects within or adjacent eséhstructures, can cause devastating
yield loss in the printed die.

In 2007, we introduced the TeraScanFMReticle inspection system, which provides uniquiededetection and productivity
features that enable the production of defect4fetieles. The new system includes higher resolubiatical imaging and several new
inspection modes that enable the system to fintyjpdis of reticle defects. The TeraScanHR systéigls sensitivity, improved
productivity, and flexible configurations make itast-effective solution that meets the needs tifleemanufacturers.

IC wafer fabs use the STARht -2 ™ inspection system to qualify incoming reticles éise in IC production, and also to re-check
the reticle periodically as it is used in produnti@ased on the TeraScdmplatform, STARlight-2 offers high sensitivity to
contamination, progressive defects (crystals whitw on the reticles over time), and the damage fetectrostatic discharge.

Process Window Qualification

Reticles used in the manufacture of today’s advahCs incorporate complex techniques that enatiledraphers to extend
existing lithographic processes to print featureslter than the wavelength of light
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used—a process called sub-wavelength lithographgsé techniques reduce the size and fine-tunénttpef features on the wafer.
During the photolithography patterning process,gimeal designs can print as out-of-focus featureswetrmprint at all, creating open
circuits that translate to electrical failures witthe device. However, since these errors reptatesign marginalities rather than
physical defects on the reticle, they cannot b@btusing traditional reticle inspection.

Our Process Window Qualification (“PWQ") solutionables device manufacturers to identify reticleglesarginalities by
examining the wafer for poorly printed featuresngsbur broadband brightfield wafer inspection systeso the manufacturers can then
make more informed decisions about how closely thidlyoperate near the boundaries of the processlow, and how to address any
design marginalities resulting from that decision.

Transparent Film and Opaque Substrate Inspection

Understanding the optical surface properties of enodnaterials has become a critical part of manufag. With the increasing
complexity of manufacturing processes and prodemises the need for extremely precise analysis anttat of surface properties su
as film thickness uniformity, contamination andetgivity, often in real time and online. The Carad&ICS20 Optical Surface Analyzer
automatically detects and classifies surface defectoptoelectronic and semiconductor wafers, diolywafers made of transparent
materials such as sapphire and glass. By simultestemeasuring reflectivity and topographic vaoas on the surface, these systems
enable customers to inspect epitaxial layers dnddoatings for uniformity issues and defects.

Metrology

Metrology is a critical discipline in the produatiof high performance, reliable devices. Whetheifyieg that a design will be
manufacturable, characterizing a new process, aitoring high-volume manufacturing, our comprehgaset of metrology, analysis and
process window optimization products gives IC mactifrers the ability to maintain tight control bétr processes.

Optical Overlay Metrology

Decreasing linewidths, larger die sizes and inéngaship density all affect the tolerances for laj@layer alignment, ooverlay.
Mis-registration errors represent a crucial cadsgedd loss. Today'’s lithography scanners or seppequire in-line monitoring to
ensure layer-to-layer alignment is within-spec. Séhadvanced lithography systems also require reqndintenance and performance
tests to ensure they are meeting process requitenm@werlay metrology systems verify scanner gote performance by measuring
the pattern alignment between adjacent layerseo€liip, as it is built.

In 2006, we introduced the Archer 10@verlay Control System, based on the industry-pnodeher™ platform. Fully
redesigned optics, tighter stage tolerances, amdmaging and illumination modes combine to delitrex high levels of performance
and productivity needed to address increasinghteéigoverlay error budgets.

CD Metrology

The critical dimension (CD) is the smallest inteshdisewidth for a given device. While a useful ma@snent for previous-
generation devices, traditional CD measurementsmger provide all the information that chipmakeegd to accurately predict yield
and transistor performance. Instead, complete Iprisfiormation, including the width at the top amottom of the feature, the sidewall
angle and the height or depth of the feature, aegled. For this reason, CD control in the fabésaasingly changing from traditional
CD-SEM (scanning electron microscope) measurenteraptical CD.

In 2006, we introduced the SpectraCD-XTour fourth-generation of inline optical CD metrglosystems for advanced
patterning process control. The SpectraCD-XT ismdestructive, dedicated CD and
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profile metrology system built on our high-throughpproduction-proven Archer platform. With a moaeguire-measure (“MAM”)
time under two seconds and a throughput of ovenildf@rs per hour, the SpectraCD-XT leads the inglustproductivity, allowing
chipmakers to detect even the smallest profile estons rapidly and repeatably.

Film Measurement

Our film metrology systems measure a variety ofagptand electrical properties of thin films depedion a wafer. These systems
are used to control a wide range of wafer fabricasiteps, where both within-wafer and wafer-to-wafecess uniformity are critical to
achieving high device performance at low cost.

SpectraFx 200", our seventh-generation thin-film metrology systéuilds upon our expertise in spectroscopic edipstry (SE)
to measure the thickness and optical propertiesmiplex, multi-layer film stacks. SpectraFx 20Gadiuces new technology to extend
the measurement results from patterned targetethgb in-die process variation. This techniquebdes |C manufacturers to achieve
cost-effective production control over their adveaidilm processes at the 65nm node and below.

Contamination Monitoring

One of the key parts of a transistor is calledgate, and the quality of the dielectric that corssiit is critical to the overall speed
and reliability of the IC device. In today’s devicgate dielectric films have become so thin theirtelectrical performance
characteristics are as critical as their physibaracteristics in determining overall transistorf@enance. Our QuantoX product line
provides noncontact, inline electrical performance measuremehkgy parameters that determine the quality ebaded gate dielect
films, including contamination and oxide thickneas well as electrical capacitance and leakagela®est Quantox XP' system
provides information on both the physical and eieal properties of advanced gate dielectric materiQuantox data from the gate
dielectric has shown high correlation to electrtest data on the finished device. This correlaéinables chipmakers to predict
transistor performance inline, rather than havingvait until an end-of-line electrical test—a prssehat normally takes days or weeks
to complete.

Implant Metrology

KLA-Tencor now offers implant and anneal micro-wnifiity monitoring with the Therma-ProBesolution. Therma-Probe is the
industry standard for implant dose metrology. Wishadvances in modulated optical reflectance, fiaeProbe provides dose
measurements for in-line monitoring, including aarend ultra-shallow junction (USJ) depth profilifihe system contributes to higher
yield by monitoring for process excursions.

Substrate & Surface Metrology

At the 45nm node and below, small deviations inewahape such as bow, warp and edge roll-off earskate to intolerable errors
in the IC’s critical dimensions and layer-to-laygignment. With our acquisition of ADE Corporatiome are well positioned to provide
the wafer shape metrology equipment required blg tn@tfer and IC manufacturers, for the 45nm nodetzaybnd.

WaferSight™ and NanoMappet' are highprecision surface mapping systems for bare walfesed on optical interferometry. T
WaferSight system measures full-wafer dimensioashmeters such as flatness, bow and thicknesse Theasurements are made on
every advanced bare wafer shipped to fabs, to erisoreets the stringent requirements of advanteography and chemical
mechanical polishing (CMP). NanoMapper provides ehwafer nanotopography measurements for polishefésurfaces with sub-
nanometer height sensitivity. NanoMapper also idetuinteractive 3D graphics and analysis softwaltewing rapid visualization and
guantification of nanotopography effects, for fagtmcess development and precision process catroig production.

7



Table of Contents

In substrate and media manufacturing, we offer ohagrly and defect inspection solutions with our Gaad and ADE series of
optical and magnetic inspection systems. Our Cangled0 and 6300 series patented X-beam opticasuenalyzers are the industry
leaders in defect sensitivity and characterizatiwrsubstrate and media manufacturing. Those pitsdare now complemented by
certain products that we acquired from ADE, sucthasMicroXam™ and OptiFLAT™ optical interferometers for disk flatness and
waviness metrology, as well as the magnetic pradiinett provide critical metrology for perpendicutaagnetic recording process
control, including the Diskmappé&M3.

Our stylus profilers measure the surface topogragitiyms and etched surfaces, and are used irclvasearch and developmen
well as semiconductor production and quality cdntfde also offer the P-16%benchtop contact stylus profiler, designed for ma#ted
step height, surface contour, waviness and rougimesisurements, with detailed 2D and 3D topogragtadysis of a variety of
surfaces and materials.

Process Metrology Systems

KLA-Tencor now offers specialized, instrumented sitdtes that measure a wafer’s response to thegsdeside the process
chamber, while the process is occurring. Thesealogly wafers measure the temperature variatioh@process over time, to optimi:
troubleshoot and monitor complex processes, sugfaama etch. Other measurement parameters araasable, including plasma
monitoring. Both chipmakers and process equipmentufacturers use these wafers to visualize, diagand control their processes
and process tools in a wide variety of applications

Services

KLA-Tencor enables customers to maximize the perforce and productivity of their metrology and irgfmn systems over the entire
life cycle of a tool. We deliver yield managemexpertise spanning all technology nodes, and cotktieonvith customers to determine the
best products and services to meet technology remeits and optimize cost of ownership. We helpocosrs meet their production goals by
maximizing tool uptime and performance with a mehgupport services, unique expertise from localise engineers, worldwide spares :
consumables depots, and round-the-clock tech stippperts in our Online Support Centers accesgedgh our iSupport' secure network.
KLA-Tencor’s Technology Engagement Services (TESaborates with customers to use effective recipasiprove baseline performance
gnd a}yc_)icli costly process errors, as well as exttemdife of their installed base and determine whew tools and upgrades would be

eneficial.

Software and Other

Our productivity and analysis solutions translatepiection and metrology data into consolidatedriédion that can reveal process
problems and help semiconductor manufacturers dpuehg-term yield improvement strategies.

Yield Management & Analysis Solutions

Klarity Defect®is an automated inline defect analysis module @fdall data management system designed to hel@aéhisve
faster yield learning cycles. By identifying exdorss in real time, Klarity Defect enables fabs mobed expert decision-making
processes within analysis recipes. These procassesitomatically triggered when usgrecified events occur. In addition to freeing
engineers from repetitive analysis tasks, this b#ipadramatically improves fab operating efficenby providing relevant information
in less time and with less effort for faster idéaoétion of yield problems.

Our Klarity ACE ™yield analysis solution enables fast integratianyelation and analysis of yield- and process-eelatata to
accurately determine the source of defects andegsoexcursions. It can differentiate between randodisystematic yield problems,
providing users with the data they need in ordéake appropriate corrective measures.
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Klarity SSA™ (Spatial Signature Analysis) provides automatedsifecation and root cause analysis of spatialatigres—defect
clusters and patterns that indicate a potentiabfspec process or process tool problem. KlarA%an be utilized for a variety of
applications where enhanced excursion detectiopasled, including process line and tool monitorasgyell as engineering analysis.

FabVision™ is a real-time, fab-wide data management systetrctirginuously monitors, reports and manages priogluglity
information. Alerts on process excursions, dailyotts and selected data are generated and sentatidally worldwide to better
manage operations at the fab, process or cust@welr The integrated database enables quick aralysi response to customers’
inquiries about product history and quality. Widal-time production information, the FabVision gystprovides management,
engineering and operations with the capabilityrmaptively detect process excursions that cantieald loss.

Our ProDATA™ lithography data analysis tool, along with our PRTH ™ lithography and etch optimization tool, helps
manufacturers reduce their advanced lithographgldpment time and cost, as well as optimize thegigh-for-manufacturing
(“DFM") efforts.

Our iDO ™ (inline Defect Organizer) automated defect clasatfon (“ADC”) solution provides consistent and aate
classification of yield-limiting defects to helprocustomers accelerate their ramp to higher progietds. iDO uses an intuitive
decision-tree format to split classification intseries of logical steps. Leveraging local defexirgetry for improved performance, iDO
works with KLA-Tencor defect inspection, review and data anasitems for excursion monitoring, excursion probtesolution, an
baseline yield improvement.

Our Archer Analyzef software provides critical post processing of acagdata into information which indicates appromriat
corrective action for the relevant process toolsTanction is increasing in importance with subifbdesign rules, immersion
lithography and double patterning lithography.

Computational Lithography

As customers move to smaller design rules, theyt prigt very small features and complex patterrige fesolution required to
create these features is more than today’s lithpfracanners can provide directly, because theresare smaller than the wavelength
of the light used to create them. In order to inseethe effective resolution of the process, ostatuers are using reticle enhancement
techniques (RETSs) such as Optical Proximity CotoacfOPC) and Sub-Resolution Assist Features (SRAF)

Introduced in May 2007, our LithoWardithography optimization tool analyzes design lalyoonstraints, as well as the
manufacturing process variability of focus and esype during lithography. Systematic errors in thergas can create either open
circuits that translate to electrical failuresgeometric variations that result in speed and perdmce issues within the device.
LithoWare is designed to reduce the time and axgtired to develop RET and OPC processes.

Customers

To support our growing, global customer base, wimtai a significant presence throughout the UnB¢ates, Europe, Asia-Pacific and
Japan, staffed with local sales and applicatioggne®rs, customer and field service engineers @&id gnanagement consultants. We count
among our largest customers the leading semicoado@nufacturers from each of these regions. Iffigleal years ended June 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005, no customer accounted for more @& of our total revenues.

Our business depends upon the capital expenditdisemmiconductor manufacturers, which in turn iger by the current and
anticipated market demand for ICs and productiing ICs. We do not consider our business to lasaeal in nature, but it is cyclical with
respect to the capital equipment procurement pesf semiconductor manufacturers, and it is ingehby the investment patterns of such
manufacturers in different global markets. Downguimthe semiconductor industry or slowdowns inwloeldwide economy could have a
material adverse effect on our future businessfiaadcial results.
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Sales, Service and Marketing

Our sales, service and marketing efforts are aiatdxlilding longterm relationships with our customers. We focupmviding a singl
and comprehensive resource for the full breadipro€ess control and yield management products amvices. Customers benefit from the
simplified planning and coordination, as well as ihcreased equipment compatibility, that are zedlias a result of dealing with a single
supplier. Our revenues are derived primarily fromduct sales, mostly through our direct sales force

We believe that the size and location of our fiddkes, service and applications engineering, antletiag organizations represent a
competitive advantage in our served markets. We ki&rect sales forces in the United States, EurAp-Pacific and Japan. We maintain an
export compliance program that is designed to folget the requirements of the United States Departsrof Commerce and State.

As of June 30, 2007, we employed approximately @ &fles and related personnel, service enginedragplications engineers. In
addition to sales and service offices in the Uniéates, we conduct sales, marketing and servigesf avholly-owned subsidiaries or
branches of United States subsidiaries in othentrims, including China, France, Germany, Indigad$ Italy, Japan, Malaysia, Singapore,
South Korea, Taiwan, Thailand and the United Kingdinternational revenues accounted for approximat@.3%, 79.9%, and 76.3% of our
total revenues in the fiscal years ended June @7,2006 and 2005, respectively. Additional infatimn regarding our revenues from
foreign operations for our last three fiscal yezas be found in Note 14, “Segment Reporting andg@aahic Information” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We believe that sales outside the United Statdscwiitinue to be a significant percentage of otalteevenues. Our future performance
will depend, in part, on our ability to continuedompete successfully in Asia, one of the largestaets for our equipment. Our ability to
compete in this area is dependent upon the cortiimuaf favorable trading relationships betweenrtaes in the region and the United
States, and our continuing ability to maintainsfattory relationships with leading semiconductmmpanies in the region.

International sales and operations may be adveastdgted by the imposition of governmental corgroéstrictions on export
technology, political instability, trade restriati® changes in tariffs and the difficulties asseelavith staffing and managing international
operations. In addition, international sales maydheersely affected by the economic conditionsaichecountry. The revenues from our
international business may also be affected bytfhtons in currency exchange rates. Although wengtt to manage the currency risk
inherent in non-dollar sales through hedging atitigj there can be no assurance that such effdlisenadequate. These factors could have a
material adverse effect on our future businessfiaadcial results.

Backlog

Our backlog for system shipments and associatechwigrtotaled $1,060.8 million and $998.7 millianaf June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. We include in our backlog only theasstomer orders for which we have accepted purohasss and assigned shipment dates
within twelve months from the date of order. Ordiersservice and unreleased products are excluaed the backlog. We expect to fill the
present backlog of orders during fiscal year 20@Ryever, all orders are subject to cancellatiodatay by the customer. Due to possible
customer changes in delivery schedules or canieilat orders, our backlog at any particular datadt necessarily indicative of actual sales
for any succeeding period.

Research and Development

The market for yield management and process mamit@ystems is characterized by rapid technologieaklopment and product
innovation. These technical innovations are inhttyaaomplex and require long development cycles amgropriate professional staffing. We
believe that continued and timely development @f peoducts and enhancements to existing produetaegessary to maintain our
competitive position.
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Accordingly, we devote a significant portion of durman and financial resources to research andafeaent programs and seek to maintain
close relationships with customers to remain resperto their needs. As part of our customer retegihips, we may enter into certain
strategic development and engineering programsetlyesur customers offset certain of our researchdawvelopment costs. As of June 30,
2007, we employed approximately 1,300 researchdardlopment personnel.

Our key research and development activities duistgl year 2007 involved development of procesgrod and yield management
equipment for sub-65nm processing. For informatagarding our research and development expensimydbe last three fiscal years,
including costs offset by our strategic developraamt engineering programs, see ltem 7, “Manages&iscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations™is tAnnual Report on Form 10-K.

In order to make continuing developments in theisenductor industry, we are committed to significangineering efforts toward bc
product improvement and new product developmeniv fi@duct introductions may contribute to fluctoat in operating results, since
customers may defer ordering existing productselfl products have reliability or quality problerttggse problems may result in reduced
orders, higher manufacturing costs, delays in decee of and payment for new products, and additiservice and warranty expenses. T
can be no assurance that we will successfully dgvehd manufacture new products, or that new prtsedntroduced by us will be acceptec
the marketplace. If we do not successfully intredonew products, our results of operations will beeasely affected.

Manufacturing, Raw Materials and Supplies

We perform system design, assembly and testingusér and utilize an outsourcing strategy for thaufecture of components and
major subassemblies. Ourlmuse manufacturing activities consist primarilyas$embling and testing components and subasserttidieare
acquired through third-party vendors and integoathiose subassemblies into our finished produais.p@incipal manufacturing activities
take place in San Jose and Milpitas, Californiahwadditional significant operations in Migdal Haek, Israel and Northtech, Singapore. As
of June 30, 2007, we employed approximately 1,080ufacturing personnel.

Many of the parts, components and subassembliiedtieely “parts”) that we use are standard conuiamproducts, although certain
parts are made to our specifications. We use numserendors to supply parts for the manufacturesapgort of our products. Although we
make reasonable efforts to ensure that these gr@r@vailable from multiple suppliers, this is abays possible and certain parts included in
our systems may be obtained only from a single Igerpgr a limited group of suppliers. We endeawwntinimize the risk of production
interruption by selecting and qualifying alternatisuppliers for key parts, by monitoring the finahcondition of key suppliers, and by
ensuring adequate inventories of key parts ardablaito maintain manufacturing schedules.

Although we seek to reduce our dependence on sdldéiraited source suppliers, in some cases thegbartcomplete loss of certain of
these sources could disrupt scheduled deliverieasmmers, damage customer relationships andéheagerial adverse effect on our results
of operations.

Competition

The worldwide market for process control and yrelanagement systems is highly competitive. In eda@upproduct markets, we face
competition from established and potential competjitsome of which may have greater financial,aed®e engineering, manufacturing and
marketing resources than we have, such as Applati4ls, Inc. and Hitachi Electronics Engineel@my, Ltd. We may also face future
competition from new market entrants from otherregas and domestic sources. We expect our conmgétiteontinue to improve the design
and performance of their current products and @®ee and to introduce new products and proces#es wi
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improved price and performance characteristics baleve that to remain competitive, we will requsignificant financial resources to offe
broad range of products, to maintain customer serand support centers worldwide, and to inveptaauct and process research and
development.

Significant competitive factors in the market feopess control and yield management systems indystem performance, ease of use,
reliability, installed base and technical serviod aupport. We believe that, while price and delivare important competitive factors, the
customers’ overriding requirement is for systens #asily and effectively incorporate automated laigtily accurate inspection and
metrology capabilities into their existing manufaatg processes to enhance productivity.

Management believes that we are well positiongtiénmarket with respect to both our products amdses. However, any loss of
competitive position could negatively impact ouicps, customer orders, revenues, gross marginmarket share, any of which would
negatively impact our operating results and finahcondition.

Acquisitions and Alliances

We continuously evaluate strategic acquisitionsalhances to expand our technologies, productrioffis and distribution capabilities.
Acquisitions involve numerous risks, including mgement issues and costs in connection with integratf the operations, technologies and
products of the acquired companies, possible vaddtens of impaired assets, and the potential logpfemployees of the acquired
companies. The inability to manage these riskcttffely could negatively impact our operating rés@and financial condition. Additional
information regarding our business combinationsrduthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 can bedfgublote 5, “Business Combinations”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Patents and Other Proprietary Rights

We protect our proprietary technology through redion a variety of intellectual property laws lirding patent, copyright and trade
secret. We have filed and obtained a number ofpsia the United States and abroad and intendrnitircue pursuing the legal protection of
our technology through intellectual property lawsaddition, from time to time we acquire licengghts under United States and foreign
patents and other proprietary rights of third peti

Although we consider patents and other intellegiuaperty significant to our business, due to #q@d pace of innovation within the
process control and yield management systems indugt believe that our protection through paterd ather intellectual property rights is
less important than factors such as our technadbgixpertise, continuing development of new systenegket penetration, installed base and
the ability to provide comprehensive support andise to customers worldwide.

No assurance can be given that patents will beéssu any of our applications, that license assamtswill be made as anticipated, or
that our patents, licenses or other proprietaytsigvill be sufficiently broad to protect our tectogy. No assurance can be given that any
patents issued to or licensed by us will not bdlehged, invalidated or circumvented or that thyhts granted thereunder will provide us with
a competitive advantage. In addition, there candassurance that we will be able to protect othrielogy or that competitors will not be
able to independently develop similar or functibhabmpetitive technology.

Employees

As of June 30, 2007, we employed approximately & jople. None of our employees are representeddiyor union. We have not
experienced work stoppages and believe that outoge relations are good.

Competition is intense in the recruiting of persalnin the semiconductor and semiconductor equiprimeiustry. We believe that our
future success will depend, in part, on our corgthability to hire and retain qualified managememdrketing and technical employees.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our operating results and stock price have varied wdely in the past, and our future operating resultswill continue to be subject
to quarterly variations based upon numerous factorsincluding those listed in this section and throulgout this Annual Report on Form
10-K. Our stock price will continue to be subject ¢ daily variations as well. In addition, our future operating results and stock price
may not follow any past trends.

We believe the factors that could make our reglitsuate and difficult to predict include:

. the cyclical nature of the semiconductor equipnietiastry;

. global economic uncertaint

. competitive pressure

. our ability to develop and implement new technaésgand introduce new produc

. our ability to maintain supply of key componer

. our ability to manage our manufacturing requirersg

. our reliance on services provided by third pari

. our customer’ acceptance and adoption of our new products amthtdngies;

. our ability to protect our intellectual proper

. litigation regarding intellectual property and atheisiness matter

. our ability to attract, retain and replace key emgpks;

. our ability to manage risks associated with actjoiss and alliance:

. the amount of resources we are required to dewvaterhpliance with securities laws and listing reguoients

. worldwide political instability;

. earthquake and other uninsured ris

. future changes in accounting and tax standardsaatipes;

. changing legal and regulatory environme

. our exposure to fluctuations in foreign currencghenge rates

. our ability to successfully modify new systems guidrd against computer viruses; i

. our ability to continue to successfully address msblve all issues arising from the discovery thathad retroactively priced

stock options (primarily from July 1, 1997 to JB®& 2002) and had not accounted for them corre

Operating results also could be affected by sudti@mges in customer requirements and other econmmiitions affecting customer
demand and the cost of operations in one or motieeoglobal markets in which we do business. Assalt of these or other factors, we could
fail to achieve our expectations as to future reggigross profit and income from operations. Ollufato meet the performance expectati
set and published by external sources could resalsudden and significant drop in the price afstock, particularly on a short-term basis,
and could negatively affect the value of any inwesit in our stock.
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Risks Associated with Our Industry and Market Condtions

The semiconductor equipment industry is highly cigell. The purchasing decisions of our customers drighly dependent on the
economies of both the local markets in which theg docated and the semiconductor industry worldwidiewe fail to respond to industry
cycles, our business could be seriously harmed.

The timing, length and severity of the up-and-dayales in the semiconductor equipment industrydéffecult to predict. This cyclical
nature of the industry in which we operate affextsability to accurately predict future revenue amus, future expense levels. When
cyclical fluctuations result in lower than expectedenue levels, operating results may be adveedtdgted and cost reduction measures may
be necessary in order for us to remain competéa financially sound. During a down cycle, we nhesin a position to adjust our cost and
expense structure to prevailing market conditiandta continue to motivate and retain our key emygds. In addition, during periods of ra
growth, we must be able to increase manufacturapgcity and personnel to meet customer demand.aWerovide no assurance that these
objectives can be met in a timely manner in respdosndustry cycles.

Our business is ultimately driven by the global dand for electronic devices by consumers and busess A majority of our annual
revenue is derived from outside the United Statsd we expect that international revenue will comtie to represent a substantial
percentage of our revenue. A protracted global eooric slowdown may adversely affect our business egglilts of operations

A majority of our annual revenue is derived fromside the United States, and we expect that intiemms revenue will continue to
represent a substantial percentage of our revéureinternational revenue and operations are aftely economic conditions specific to
each country and region. Because of our signifidapendence on international revenue, a declitieeieconomies of any of the countries or
regions in which we do business could negativelgcifour operating results. Managing global operetiand sites located throughout the
world presents challenges associated with, amdmey ¢hings, cultural diversity and organization@m@ment. Moreover, each region in the
global semiconductor equipment market exhibits uaigharacteristics that can cause capital equipmeestment patterns to vary
significantly from period to period. Periodic loaal international economic downturns, trade balassees, political instability, legal or
regulatory changes or terrorism in regions wherénange operations along with fluctuations in intéeesd currency exchange rates could
negatively affect our business and results of dfara. Although we attempt to manage near-termetuny risks through the use of hedging
instruments, there can be no assurance that sfartsefill be adequate.

Our future performance depends, in part, upon oubility to continue to compete successfully worldwid

Our industry includes large manufacturers with saftsal resources to support customers worldwiden&of our competitors are
diversified companies with greater financial res@grand more extensive research, engineering, eanuhg, marketing and customer
service and support capabilities than we possesdadé competition from companies whose stratetyy jgovide a broad array of products
and services, some of which compete with the prizdared services that we offer. These competitorslmadle their products in a manner
that may discourage customers from purchasing mgygts, including pricing such competitive todlgngficantly below our product
offerings. In addition, we face competition fromadtar emerging semiconductor equipment companiesse/istrategy is to provide a portion
of the products and services that we offer, usimpvative technology to sell products into spez&ldimarkets. Loss of competitive position
could negatively affect our prices, customer ordergenue, gross margins, and market share, awhich would negatively affect our
operating results and financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Business

If we do not develop and introduce new products gredhnologies in a timely manner in response to olging market conditions or
customer requirements, our business could be seslgtharmed.

Success in the semiconductor equipment industrgritdg in part, on continual improvement of exist@chnologies and rapid
innovation of new solutions. For example, the sizeemiconductor devices continues to
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shrink and the industry is currently transitiontoghe use of new materials and innovative fab @sees. While we expect these trends will
increase our customers’ reliance on our diagn@stiducts, we cannot be sure that they will directiprove our business. These and other
evolving customer needs require us to respond eaittinued development programs and to cut backseodtinue older programs, which
may no longer have industry-wide support. Technimabvations are inherently complex and requiregyldevelopment cycles and appropriate
staffing of highly qualified employees. Our comgieé advantage and future business success depenur @bility to accurately predict
evolving industry standards, to develop and intoednew products that successfully address chamgistpmer needs, to win market
acceptance of these new products and to manufattese new products in a timely and cost-effeatiamner.

In this environment, we must continue to make $igamnt investments in research and developmentderado enhance the performance
and functionality of our products, to keep paceéhwibmpetitive products and to satisfy customer detador improved performance, features
and functionality. Substantial research and devekg costs typically are incurred before we confilhe technical feasibility and commerc
viability of a new product, and not all developmantivities result in commercially viable productiere can be no assurance that revenue
from future products or product enhancements veilsbfficient to recover the development costs aasmtwith such products or
enhancements. In addition, we cannot be surehbaetproducts or enhancements will receive madcostpiance or that we will be able to ¢
these products at prices that are favorable t@usbusiness will be seriously harmed if we areblm#o sell our products at favorable prices
or if the market in which we operate does not acoeap products.

Our business would be harmed if we do not receiuffisient parts to meet our production requiremenits a timely and cost-effective
manner.

We use a wide range of materials in the produatfoour products, including custom electronic ancthamical components, and we use
numerous suppliers to supply these materials. Wergdly do not have guaranteed supply arrangemethisour suppliers. Because of the
variability and uniqueness of customers’ ordersgdewaot maintain an extensive inventory of materfat manufacturing. We seek to
minimize the risk of production and service int@tians and/or shortages of key parts by selectimgcaialifying alternative suppliers for key
parts, monitoring the financial stability of keypgliers and maintaining appropriate inventoriegef parts. Although we make reasonable
efforts to ensure that parts are available frontiplel suppliers, key parts may be available ontyrfra single supplier or a limited group of
suppliers. Our operating results and business raadiersely impacted if we are unable to obtaitsgarmeet our production requirements,
or if we are only able to do so on unfavorable term

Disruption of our manufacturing facilities due to@thquake, flood, other natural catastrophic everas terrorism could result in
cancellation of orders or loss of customers and @seriously harm our business.

Most of our manufacturing facilities are locatedhe United States, with small operations locatel$iael and Singapore. Operations at
our manufacturing facilities and our assembly sulr@ztors are subject to disruption for a varidtyeasons, including work stoppages, acts
of war, terrorism, fire, earthquake, energy shatadlooding or other natural disasters. Such gissn could cause delays in shipments of
products to our customers. We cannot ensure tteahate production capacity would be availablenfaor disruption were to occur or thai
it were available, it could be obtained on favoeatgirms.

We outsource a number of services to third-partyvsee providers, which decreases our control oviee performance of these
functions. Disruptions or delays at our thirparty service providers could adversely impact operations.

We outsource a number of services, including amdportation and logistics management of spare,gartiomestic and overseas third-
party service providers. While outsourcing arrangets may lower our cost of operations, they alsoice our direct control over the services
rendered. It is uncertain what effect such
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diminished control will have on the quality or gtignof products delivered or services renderedyurability to quickly respond to changing
market conditions. Disruptions or delays at ourddgarty service providers due to events suchgismal economic, business, environmental
or political events, information technology systfaiures or military actions could adversely impaat operations and our ability to ship
products, manage our product inventory or recoddraport financial and management information ¢eimely and accurate basis.

Our success is dependent in part on our technolaegyl other proprietary rights. If we are unable toaimtain our lead or protect our
proprietary technology, we may lose valuable assatd market share

Our success is dependent in part on our technaadyother proprietary rights. We own various Unifgdtes and international patents
and have additional pending patent applicatioretireg to some of our products and technologies.prbeess of seeking patent protection is
lengthy and expensive, and we cannot be certairpgrading or future applications will actually réidn issued patents or that issued patents
will be of sufficient scope or strength to provigeaningful protection or commercial advantage tdQther companies and individuals,
including our larger competitors, may develop tebgies and obtain patents relating to our busittestsare similar or superior to our
technology or may design around the patents we adwversely affecting our business.

We also maintain trademarks on certain of our petaland services and claim copyright protectiorcttain proprietary software and
documentation. However, we can give no assurarateothr trademarks and copyrights will be uphelduwmcessfully deter infringement by
third parties.

While patent, copyright and trademark protectiandor intellectual property is important, we bebewur future success in highly
dynamic markets is most dependent upon the tedhtocapetence and creative skills of our persoria.attempt to protect our trade secrets
and other proprietary information through confidalitty and other agreements with our customersphkers, employees and consultants and
through other security measures. We also maintatusive and non-exclusive licenses with third jgarfor strategic technology used in
certain products. However, these employees, cargsland third parties may breach these agreenzmtsye may not have adequate
remedies for wrongdoing. In addition, the laws eftain territories in which we develop, manufactareell our products may not protect our
intellectual property rights to the same exterd@she laws of the United States. In any eventettient to which we can protect our trade
secrets through the use of confidentiality agreegmisrimited, and our success will depend to aifitant extent on our ability to innovate
ahead of our competitors.

We might be involved in intellectual property disies or other intellectual property infringement dtas that may be costly to resolve,
prevent us from selling or using the challenged bewlogy and seriously harm our operating results @financial condition.

As is typical in the semiconductor equipment industom time to time we have received communiaadifrom other parties asserting
the existence of patent rights, copyrights, trad&mights or other intellectual property rights whithey believe cover certain of our produ
processes, technologies or information. Litigatemds to be expensive and requires significant gemant time and attention and could
a negative effect on our results of operationsusiriess if we lose or have to settle a case orifisigmtly adverse terms. Our customary
practice is to evaluate such infringement assestard to consider whether to seek licenses whemppate. However, we cannot ensure
licenses can be obtained or, if obtained, will heaoceptable terms or that costly litigation orestadministrative proceedings will not occur.
The inability to obtain necessary licenses or otlghts on reasonable terms, or the instigatiolitigation or other administrative proceedin
could seriously harm our operating results andnfife condition.

We depend on key personnel to manage our businéfestévely, and if we are unable to attract, retaand motivate our key
employees, our sales and product development cbeltiarmed.

Our employees are vital to our success, and ouni@yagement, engineering and other employees fliruliiito replace. We generally
do not have employment contracts with our key eygss. Further, we do not
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maintain key person life insurance on any of oupleyees. The expansion of high technology companma@tdwide has increased demand
and competition for qualified personnel. If we areble to retain key personnel, or if we are née &dbattract, assimilate or retain additional
highly qualified employees to meet our needs inftitgre, our business and operations could be hdrme

Acquisitions are an important element of our straigbut, because of the uncertainties involved, waymot find suitable acquisition
candidates and we may not be able to successfaliyggrate and manage acquired businesses.

In addition to our efforts to develop new technddsgrom internal sources, part of our growth tggtis to pursue acquisitions and
acquire new technologies from external sourcegaksof this effort, we may make acquisitions afsignificant investments in, businesses
with complementary products, services and/or teldyies. There can be no assurance that we willdirithble acquisition candidates or that
acquisitions we complete will be successful. Initold, we may use equity to finance future acqigsi, which would increase our numbei
shares outstanding and be dilutive to current $idders.

If we are unable to successfully integrate and marsquired businesses or if acquired business&spepoorly, then our business &
financial results may suffer. It is possible tHa businesses we have acquired, as well as businisg we may acquire in the future, may
perform worse than expected or prove to be mofedif to integrate and manage than expected. titiath, we may lose key employees of
the acquired companies. As a result, risks assatiaith acquisition transactions may give rise toaerial adverse effect on our business
financial results for a number of reasons, inclgdin

. we may have to devote unanticipated financial aadagement resources to acquired busine

. we may not be able to realize expected operatifigjezicies or product integration benefits from agguisitions
. we may have to wri-off goodwill or other intangible assets; &

. we may incur unforeseen obligations or liabilitie€onnection with acquisition

Compliance with federal securities laws, rules arefjulations, as well as Nasdag requirements, isdmaing increasingly complex,
and the significant attention and expense we musvdte to those areas may have an adverse impaciuorbusiness.

Federal securities laws, rules and regulationsyedlsas Nasdaq rules and regulations, require compao maintain extensive corporate
governance measures, impose comprehensive repartthdisclosure requirements, set strict indepereland financial expertise standards
for audit and other committee members and impogkanid criminal penalties for companies and ttohief executive officers, chief financial
officers and directors for securities law violaoThese laws, rules and regulations have increasgdvill continue to increase the scope,
complexity and cost of our corporate governangeenting and disclosure practices, which could hatmresults of operations and divert
management’s attention from business operations.

We are predominantly uninsured for losses and imaptions caused by terrorist acts and acts of widiinternational political
instability continues or increases, our businessdaresults of operation could be harmed.

The threat of terrorism targeted at the regionthefworld in which we do business, including thdtekh States, increases the uncerta
in our markets. Any act of terrorism which affettie economy or the semiconductor industry couldeeshly affect our business. Increased
international political instability, disruption &r transportation and further enhanced securitgsuees as a result of terrorist attacks, and the
continuing instability in the Middle East, may hercour ability to do business and may increasecosts of operations. Such continuing
instability could cause us to incur increased cimsteansportation, make such
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transportation unreliable, increase our insuramstsc and cause international currency marketsittuite. This same instability could have
the same effects on our suppliers and their aliditymely deliver their products. If this interi@ial political instability continues or
increases, our business and results of operatmrd be harmed. We are predominantly uninsuredbfses and interruptions caused by
terrorist acts and acts of war.

We self insure certain risks including earthquakésk. If one or more of the uninsured events occuvee could suffer major financial
loss.

We purchase insurance to help mitigate the econongact of certain insurable risks; however, cartather risks are uninsurable or .
insurable only at significant cost and cannot begated with insurance. An earthquake could sigaifitly disrupt our manufacturing
operations, most of which are conducted in Califarht could also significantly delay our reseaastd engineering effort on new products,
most of which is also conducted in California. Velkd steps to minimize the damage that would beechlng an earthquake, but there is no
certainty that our efforts will prove successfutlie event of an earthquake. We self insure eaattejuisks because we believe this is a
prudent financial decision based on our large casérves and the high cost and limited coveragiedain the earthquake insurance mal
Certain other risks are also self insured eitheetan a similar cost benefit analysis, or basethemnavailability of insurance. If one or
more of the uninsured events occurs, we could saffgor financial loss.

A change in accounting standards or practices oclaange in existing taxation rules or practices céave a significant effect on our
reported results and may even affect reporting i@&rtsactions completed before the change is effextiv

New accounting pronouncements and taxation ruldsvarying interpretations of accounting pronounceta@nd taxation rules have
occurred and may occur in the future. Changesisiieg rules or the questioning of current practiogay adversely affect our reported
financial results or the way we conduct our busines

For example, the adoption of Statement of Finanktalounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(Fhare-Based Paymewhich required
us to measure all employee stock-based compensatiards using a fair value method beginning indligear 2006 and record such expense
in our consolidated financial statements, has hadtzrial impact on our consolidated financialesta¢nts, as reported under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

We are exposed to various risks related to the tatary environments where we perform our operatioasd conduct our business.

We are subject to various risks related to neviediht, inconsistent or even conflicting laws, sudand regulations that may be enacted
by legislative bodies and/or regulatory agencighécountries in which we operate and with whiehmust comply, including environmen
and safety regulations. Changes to existing lawssror regulations, including changes that raauficonsistent or conflicting laws, rules or
regulations, in the countries in which we operasg radversely affect our reported financial resoftthe way we conduct our business.

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange ratefliations; although we hedge certain currency riskwe may still be adversely
affected by changes in foreign currency exchangeéasor declining economic conditions in these cories.

We have some exposure to fluctuations in foreigmericy exchange rates, primarily the Japanese Werhave international
subsidiaries that operate and sell our productsadiyp We routinely hedge these exposures in aortetidb minimize the impact of currency r.
fluctuations, but these hedges may be inadequaimtect us from currency rate fluctuations. Toe¢k&ent that these hedges are inadequate,
our reported financial results or the way we condwue business could be adversely affected.
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We are exposed to fluctuations in the market valudur portfolio investments and in interest ratesnpairment of our investments
could harm our earnings.

Our investment portfolio consists of both corporate government securities that have a maximuncteféematurity of 10 years. The
longer the duration of these securities, the moseeptible they are to changes in market intesgssrand bond yields. As yields increase,
those securities with a lower yield-at-cost shomaak-to-market unrealized loss. We have the akiditsealize the full value of all these
investments upon maturity. Unrealized losses aestdichanges in interest rates and bond yields.

We rely upon certain critical information systemerfour daily business operation. Our inability tose or access these information
systems at critical points in time could unfavorgtimpact the timeliness and efficiency of our busis operation

Our global operations are linked by informationteyss, including telecommunications, the internat,@rporate intranet, network
communications, email and various computer hardwadesoftware applications. Despite our implemémmabf network security measures,
our tools and servers are vulnerable to computesgs, break-ins and similar disruptions from uhaxized tampering with our computer
systems and tools located at customer sites. Adly suent could have an adverse effect on our bssjrgerating results and financial
condition.

We may experience difficulties with our enterprisesource planning (“ERP”) system and other IT sysats. System failure or
malfunctioning may result in disruption of operatits and the inability to process transactions, amstcould adversely affect our financi
results.

System failure or malfunctioning could disrupt @tility to timely and accurately process and regest components of our results of
operations, financial position and cash flows. Alisruptions or difficulties that may occur in cortien with our ERP system or other
systems could also adversely affect our abilitgdmplete important business processes such asdhegon of our internal controls and
attestation activities pursuant to Section 40sef$arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. If we encounter tedfeen problems with regard to our ERP
system or other systems, our business could basalyaffected.

Risks Related to the Restatement of Our Prior Finacial Results

Our efforts to correct past material weaknessein internal controls may not have been sufficier@nd we may discover additional
material weaknesses in our internal controls.

As previously disclosed, the Company has undergoriavestigation of the Company’s historical stopkion practices by the Special
Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors (fwre information regarding the Special Committeegtigation and its findings, please
refer to Item 3, “Legal Proceedings”). As a regilthat Special Committee investigation and our aggment’s internal review of our
historical stock option practices and related mat&e identified past material weaknesses in mt@rnal controls and procedures (see
Item 9A, “Controls and Procedures”). A “materialakkeess’is a control deficiency, or combination of thematthesults in more than a rem
likelihood that a material misstatement in our ficial statements will not be prevented or detedféel believe that we have remedied the
material weaknesses in our internal controls aondeuures, but there can be no assurance that mectons were sufficient or fully
effective, or that we will not discover additiomaaterial weaknesses in our internal controls andeatures in the future.

The Special Committee investigation of our histalcstock option practices and the resulting restaents have been time consuming
and expensive, and have had a material adversectfa us.

The Special Committee investigation and the remyltestatement activities have required us to eXg@mnificant management time a
incur significant accounting, legal and other exg&mn In addition, we have established a Specigdtibon Committee to oversee the litigation
matters that have arisen out of the
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investigation and the restatements, and we carredigh what additional actions may be requiredhisse Committees. The period of time
will be necessary to resolve these matters is taiceand these matters could require significalitional attention and resources.

The ongoing government inquiry relating to our histical stock option practices is time consuming aagpensive and could result in
injunctions, fines and penalties that may have a t@dal adverse effect on our financial conditionesults of operations and cash flow.

On July 25, 2007, we announced that the Companyédwrhed a settlement with the SEC by consentitiget@ntry of a permanent
injunction against future violations of the repogi books and records, and internal controls prowssof the federal securities laws. The
settlement resolves completely the SEC investigdtito the Company’s historical stock option gragtpractices. KLA-Tencor was not
charged by the SEC with fraud, nor was the Compaqyired to pay any civil penalty, fine or moneyrdaes as part of the settlement. W
the SEC has completed its investigation, the irygoyr the United States Attorney’s Office for therbieern District of California ("USAQ”)
into our historical stock option practices is ongpiWe have fully cooperated with the USAO andrnidté continue to do so. The period of
time necessary to resolve this inquiry is uncertand we cannot predict the outcome of this inqairywhether we will face additional
government inquiries, investigations or other awicelated to our historical stock option practidgss inquiry may require us to continue to
expend significant management time and incur Sicarit legal and other expenses, and could resatirimnal actions seeking, among other
things, injunctions against the Company and thergay of significant fines and penalties by the Camyp which may have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, resafteperations and cash flow.

We have been named as a party to a number of shalddr derivative and class action lawsuits relatit@our historical stock option
practices, and we may be named in additional lavisum the future. This litigation could become timrensuming and expensive and cot
result in the payment of significant judgments aseéttlements, which could have a material adverdeafon our financial condition and
results of operations.

In connection with our historical stock option piees and resulting restatements, a number of aéviy actions were filed against
certain of our current and former directors andcefs purporting to assert claims on the Compabgtsalf. In addition, a number of securities
class action complaints were filed against us @nth of our current and former directors andagffs seeking damages related to our
historical stock option practices and the resultimgestigation, inquiries and restatements. Theag be additional lawsuits of this nature filed
in the future. We cannot predict the outcome o$¢hlawsuits, nor can we predict the amount of tiamg expense that will be required to
resolve these lawsuits. If these lawsuits become tionsuming and expensive, or if there are unébleroutcomes in any of these cases,
there could be a material adverse effect on ounbas, financial condition and results of operation

Our insurance coverage will not cover our totdbiliies and expenses in these lawsuits, in pacabse we have a significant deductible
on certain aspects of the coverage. In additiobjestito certain limitations, we are obligatedridemnify our current and former directors,
officers and employees in connection with the itigasion of our historical stock option practicaslahe related litigation and ongoing
government inquiry. We currently hold insurancei@et for the benefit of our directors and offigeakhough our insurance coverage may
be sufficient in some or all of these matters. fremnore, the insurers may seek to deny or limiecage in some or all of these matters, in
which case we may have to self-fund all or a suttigthportion of our indemnification obligations.

We are subject to the risks of additional governmaetions, shareholder lawsuits and other legal peedings related to our historic
stock option practices, the resulting restatemeraind the remedial measures we have tak

It is possible that there may be additional governtal actions, shareholder lawsuits and other legaleedings brought against us in
connection with our historical stock option praeticin addition, we may be
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sued or taken to arbitration by former officers @ntployees in connection with their stock opticemaployment terminations and other
matters. These proceedings may require us to exgignidicant management time and incur significartounting, legal and other expenses,
and may divert attention and resources from theatipm of our business. These expenditures andslores, as well as the adverse resolution
of any specific lawsuit, could have a material adeeffect on our business, financial condition eesililts of operations.

Failure to maintain effective internal controls magause us to delay filing our periodic reports withe SEC, affect our Nasdaq
listing, and adversely affect our stock price.

The Securities and Exchange Commission, as dirdigte@kction 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@@dpted rules requiring public
companies to include a report of management omateontrol over financial reporting in their amhueports on Form 10-K that contain an
assessment by management of the effectivenese @fdmpany’s internal control over financial repagti In addition, our independent
registered public accounting firm must attest td eeport on management’s assessment of the eff@etss of the internal control over
financial reporting. The Company has in prior pdsigdentified certain material weaknesses in tisrital control over financial reporting.
However, we believe the Company remediated thoserpaterial weaknesses, and we have not identifigdmaterial weaknesses in our
internal control over financial reporting for thiedal year ended June 30, 2007. Although we rewieminternal control over financial
reporting in order to ensure compliance with theti®a 404 requirements, if our independent regéstgrublic accounting firm is not satisfied
with our internal control over financial reportiong the level at which these controls are documerttesigned, operated or reviewed, or if our
independent registered public accounting firm iortets the requirements, rules and/or regulatioffisrdntly from our interpretation, then th
may decline to attest to management’s assessmemyissue a report that is qualified. This co@sluit in an adverse reaction in the
financial marketplace due to a loss of investorficemce in the reliability of our financial statents, which ultimately could negatively
impact our stock price.

It may be difficult or costly to obtain director ahofficer insurance coverage as a result of theuss arising out of our historical stoc
option practices.

We expect that the issues arising from our previetr®active pricing of stock options will makenibre difficult to obtain director and
officer insurance coverage in the future. If we @oée to obtain this coverage, it could be sigatfity more costly than in the past, which
would have an adverse effect on our financial teaand cash flow. As a result of this and relatexddrs, our directors and officers could face
increased risks of personal liability in connectwith the performance of their duties. As a result, may have difficulty attracting and
retaining qualified directors and officers, whiabutd adversely affect our business.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Information regarding our principal properties &June 30, 2007 is set forth below:

Square
Location Type Principal Use Fc?otage Ownership
Tucson, AZ Office and plan Engineering and Manufacturir 60,000 Ownec
Fremont, CA(1) Office and plant Research, Engineering, Marketing, 145,94° Lease!
Manufacturing, Service and Sales
Administration
Hayward, CA Office and plan Manufacturing 14,15( Leasel
Livermore, CA(2) Office and plan Training, Service and Engineeri 241,25: Ownec
Milpitas, CA Office, plant and Research, Engineering, Marketing 727,30: Ownec
warehouse Manufacturing, Service and Sal
Administration
San Diego, CA Office, plant and Research, Engineering, Marketing, 15,60( Lease!
warehoust Manufacturing and Servic
San Jose, CA Office and plant Research, Engineering and 17,06( Leasel
Manufacturing
San Jose, CA(2) Office, plant and Corporate Headquarters, Research,603,31:  Ownec
warehouse Engineering, Marketing,
Manufacturing, Service and Sales
Administration
Santa Clara, CA Office, plant and Research, Engineering, Marketing 50,40( Lease!
warehoust Manufacturing and Servic
Westwood, MA(1) Office and plant Research, Engineering, Marketing, 116,90¢ Lease!
Manufacturing and Servic
Beaverton, OF Office Sales and Servic 13,07t Lease!
Austin, TX Office Sales, Service and Resea 32,11¢ Leasel
Richardson, T> Office Sales and Servic 16,81¢ Leasel
Vancouver, WA Office Sales and Servic 12,78,  Leasel
Shanghai, China Office, plant and Sales, Service, Engineering and 50,35¢ Lease!
warehoust Warehoust
Dresden, German Office and warehous Sales, Service and Warehol 12,90¢ Lease!
Chennai, Indit Office Engineering 149,12: Ownec
Midgal He’ Emek, Israe Office and plan Manufacturing 12,31¢ Lease!
Migdal Ha’Emek and Herzliya, Israel Office and plant Research, Engineering, Marketing 64,582  Ownec
Manufacturing and Service and
Sales Administratiol
Tokyo, Japal Office Sales and Servic 16,64 Lease!
Yokohama, Japan(; Office and warehous Sales, Service and Warehot 53,77: Lease!
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Square
Location Type Principal Use Fgotage Ownership
Northtech, Singapor Office, plant and Manfacturing, Sales, Service and 45,327 Lease!
warehoust¢ Warehoust
Serangoon, Singapore( Office and plan Manufacturing 185,80¢ Ownec
Kyung Ki, South Kore: Office Sales and Servic 15,141 Lease!
Hsinchu, Taiwan(1 Office Sales and Servic 96,52¢ Lease!

(1) Portions of certain properties are sublet or amamtand marketed to sublea
(2) Certain properties in San Jose, California and iohare, California were placed for sale in the fiseaar ended June 30, 20(
(3) The land on which the Serangoon, Singapore buildésgles is lease

As of June 30, 2007, we owned or leased a totappfoximately 3.0 million square feet of space dwitle, including the locations
listed above and office space for smaller salessemdce offices in several locations throughoetworld. Our operating leases expire at
various times through June 30, 2018 with renewtibop at the fair market value for additional pdgap to five years. Additional
information regarding these leases is incorporhteckference from Note 11, “Commitments and Corminges”to the Consolidated Financ
Statements. We believe our properties are adegquatghtained and suitable for their intended usgthat our production facilities have
capacity adequate for our current needs, evengiitgrg effect to the sale of certain propertiesased above.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Special Committee Investigation of Historical St@gition Practices

On May 22, 2006, the Wall Street Journal publishedrticle about stock option backdating that qamstl the stock option practices at
several companies, including KLA-Tencor. On May 2306, we received a subpoena from the United Ststterney’s Office for the
Northern District of California®USAQ”) and a letter of inquiry from the United $a Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
regarding our stock option practices. Later on M8y2006, our Board of Directors appointed a Spé&xenmittee composed solely of
independent directors to conduct a comprehensixgstigation of our historical stock option practicéhe Special Committee promptly
engaged independent legal counsel and accountpeytsxo assist with the investigation. The inygtibn included an extensive review of
our historical stock option practices, accountintigies, accounting records, supporting documemtagmail communications and other
documentation, as well as interviews of a numbeauofent and former directors, officers and empésye€On September 27, 2006, the Special
Committee reported the bulk of its findings andoramendations to our Board of Directors.

Restatements of Prior Period Consolidated Finan&i&tements in Previous Filin:

On September 28, 2006, we announced that we wawd to restate our previously issued financiakstants to correct our past
accounting for stock options. As a result of the@a Committee investigation, we discovered tleaitain of our stock options, primarily
those granted from July 1, 1997 to June 30, 208@ Heen retroactively priced for all employees wdaeived these grants. This means that
the option exercise price was not the market pfdbe option shares on the actual grant dateeobfition, but instead was a lower market
price on an earlier date. The actual grant date—avthe essential actions necessary to grant theroptere completed, including the final
determination of the number of shares to be gratategch employee and the exercise price—is thecdomeasurement date to determine the
market price of the option shares under the acaogintles in effect at the time. More than 95%ld total in-the-money value (market price
on the actual grant date minus exercise price)l of aur retroactively priced options was attridbte to those granted from July 1, 1997 to
June 30, 2002.

In our Annual Report on Form 1K{or the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 (filedlanuary 29, 2007) and our quarterly reports oml
10-Q for the quarters ended September 30, 2006 rDeer 31, 2006 and
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March 31, 2007 (filed on January 29, 2007, Febr@a3007 and May 7, 2007, respectively), we redtét¢ our consolidated financial
statements as of and for the fiscal years endeel 3002005 and 2004; (2) our selected consolidatadcial data as of and for our fiscal ye
ended June 30, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002; andi(3)maudited quarterly financial data for the fitetee quarters in our fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006 and for all quarters in our fiscalryanded June 30, 2005. All financial informatinoluded in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K reflects our restatement and does not contairfantlyer restatement.

Findings Leading up to Restatement and Certain Ré&hActions

By October 16, 2006, the Special Committee hadtankially completed its investigation. The Spe@aimmittee concluded that
(1) there was retroactive pricing of stock optignanted to all employees who received options, arilpnduring the periods from July 1, 19
to June 30, 2002 (less than 15% of these optioms granted to executive officers), (2) the retrivaty priced options were not accounted for
correctly in our previously issued financial stagas, (3) the retroactive pricing of options wasimional, not inadvertent or through
administrative error, (4) the retroactive pricirfgoptions involved the selection of fortuitouslyl@xercise prices by certain former executive
officers, and other former executives may have laaegre of this conduct, (5) the retroactive prioifigptions involved the falsification of
Company records, resulting in erroneous statenmitg made in financial and other reports previpfistd with the SEC, as well as in
information previously provided to our independeagistered public accounting firm, and (6) in miostances, the retroactive pricing of
options violated the terms of our stock option plaBecause virtually all holders of retroactiveticpd options issued by the Company were
not involved in or aware of the retroactive prigitige Board of Directors decided that we shouldiooe to honor the options that violated
terms of the Company’s stock option plans, exaejgertain individual cases as described below.

The Special Committee concluded that, with a fewaterial exceptions, the retroactive pricing ot&toptions stopped after June 30,
2002. After that time, there were procedures it@lkdesigned to provide reasonable assurance titkt gptions were priced on the grant date.
The Special Committee also concluded that noneiofrmlependent directors was involved in or awdrine retroactive pricing of stock
options. Based on the Special Committee’s repartBmard of Directors concluded that no current rhera of management were involved in
the retroactive pricing of stock options. During iitvestigation of our historical stock option grees, the Special Committee did not find
evidence of any other financial reporting or acdogissues.

As a result of the Special Committee investigatammOctober 16, 2006, we terminated our employmalationship and agreement with
Kenneth L. Schroeder, and we announced our intecaiicel all outstanding stock options held by Stthroeder that were retroactively
priced or otherwise improperly granted. Those aytizere canceled in December 2006. Mr. SchroedsitieaCompany’s Chief Executive
Officer and a member of its Board of Directors frond-1999 until January 1, 2006, and was a membtreoCompany’s stock option
committee from 1994 until December 31, 2005. Framuary 1, 2006 to October 16, 2006, Mr. Schroeder @mployed as a Senior Advisor
to the Company. On November 10, 2006, Mr. Schrosdeunsel informed us that Mr. Schroeder contestsight to terminate his
employment relationship and agreement and to camgebf his options. We intend to vigorously defemy claims that may be made by
Mr. Schroeder regarding these matters, which cowdive a material amount.

Also on October 16, 2006, Stuart J. Nichols, VicesRlent and General Counsel, resigned. Mr. Nichotswe entered into a Separation
Agreement and General Release under which Mr. N§tbatstanding retroactively priced stock optidrea/e been re-priced by increasing the
exercise price to the market price of the opticareh on the actual grant date. Under SFAS No. J)28@Rincremental charge was recognized
in the financial statements during the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2007.

On October 16, 2006, Kenneth Levy, Founder andr@faai of the Board of Directors of the Company reetias a director and
employee, and was named Chairman Emeritus by oardBaf Directors. Mr. Levy and we entered into @&ation Agreement and General
Release under which Mr. Levy’s outstanding retrivabt
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priced stock options have beenméeed by increasing the exercise price to the eigokice of the option shares on the actual grate.dJnde
SFAS No. 123(R), no incremental charge was receghiz the financial statements for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2007. Mr. Levy was the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer from 1975 untiidy1999 (with the exception of mid-1997 to mid-1998as a member of the Compasy’
Board of Directors from 1975 until his retiremenfis Chairman of the Board of Directors from 19968 dms retirement, and was a member
of the Company’s Stock Option Committee from 1984lwse of that committee was suspended in tHef&006.

On December 21, 2006, Jon D. Tompkins resigneddazetor of the Company, and we agreed to modiéydutstanding options held
by Mr. Tompkins (all of which were fully vested) éxtend the post-termination exercisability peied®ecember 31, 2007, which is the last
day of the calendar year in which those optionsld/bave terminated in the absence of such extensloriTompkins, the Chief Executive
Officer of Tencor Instruments before its mergeoitite Company in mid-1997, was the Company’s Chiefcutive Officer from mid-1997 to
mid-1998, was a member of the Company'’s stock aptammittee from mid-1997 until mid-1999, and wasember of the Company’s
Board of Directors from mid-1997 until his resigioat

Although the Board of Directors concluded that JbhriKispert, our President and Chief Operating €fifj was not involved in and was
not aware of the improper stock option practicesell on the Special Committee’s recommendatiorguti&anding retroactively priced
options have been re-priced because he servedieSFitancial Officer during part of the periodduestion. This re-pricing involved
increasing the exercise price to the market pricheoption shares on the actual grant date. UB&&S No. 123(R), no incremental charge
was recognized in the financial statements dutiedfiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

Government Inquiries and SEC Settlement Relatirdjstorical Stock Option Practices

On May 23, 2006, we received a subpoena from the@&questing information relating to our past &toption grants and related
accounting matters. Also on May 23, 2006, we resgti@ letter from the SEC making an informal inquind request for information on the
same subject matters. We learned on February Z, @@@ the SEC had opened a formal investigatitmtimese matters. We cooperated fully
with the SEC investigation. On July 25, 2007, waamced that the Company had reached a settlenittnthe SEC by consenting to the
entry of a permanent injunction against future afiimins of the reporting, books and records, aretmat controls provisions of the federal
securities laws. The settlement resolves complébe\SEC investigation into the Company'’s histdritack option granting practices. KLA-
Tencor was not charged by the SEC with fraud; nas the Company required to pay any civil penaihe,for money damages as part of the
settlement.

We are cooperating fully with the USAQO'’s continuiimgjuiry and intend to continue to do so. This iimguay require us to expend
significant management time and incur significagal and other expenses, and could result in calnaictions seeking, among other things,
injunctions against the Company and the paymesiguiificant fines and penalties by the Company ciwhiay adversely affect our results of
operations and cash flow.

We have also responded to inquiries from the U&pdbtment of Labor, which is conducting an exanamadf our 401(k) Savings Plan
prompted by our stock option issues. We are codiperéully with this examination and intend to conte to do so.

We cannot predict how long it will take to or howuan more time and resources we will have to expgemdsolve these government
inquiries, nor can we predict the outcome of thiageiries. Also, there can be no assurance tharatiguiries, investigations or actions will
not be started by other United States federalaie segulatory agencies or by foreign governmeagehcies.

Shareholder Derivative Litigation Relating to Histral Stock Option Practices

Beginning on May 22, 2006, several persons andientdentifying themselves as shareholders of Kigkcor filed derivative actions
purporting to assert claims on behalf of and inthme of the Company

25



Table of Contents

against various of our current and former directord officers relating to our accounting for stogkions issued from 1994 to the present.
The complaints in these actions allege that thividdal defendants breached their fiduciary dutied other obligations to the Company and
violated state and federal securities laws in cotioe with our historical stock option granting pess, our accounting for past stock options,
and historical sales of stock by the individualeshefants. Three substantially similar actions aralipgy, one in the U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of California (which consiststhiree separate lawsuits consolidated in one a¢ton® in the California Superior Court 1
Santa Clara County; and one in the Delaware ChgrCeurt.

The plaintiffs in the derivative actions have assgclaims for violations of Sections 10(b) (indhgl Rule 10b-5 thereunder), 14(a), and
20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ungmsichment, breach of fiduciary duty and aidimgl abetting such breach, negligence,
misappropriation of information, abuse of contgylpss mismanagement, waste of corporate assesghboé contract, constructive fraud,
rescission, and violations of California CorporaticdCode section 25402, as well as a claim for aowtting of all stock option grants mad:
the named defendants. KLA-Tencor is named as amardefendant in these actions. On behalf of KLAda, the plaintiffs seek
unspecified monetary and other relief against #raed defendants. The plaintiffs are James Ziolkgwéark Ziering, Alaska Electrical
Pension Fund, Jeffrey Rabin, and Benjamin Langféhe individual named defendants are current direcnd officers; Edward W.
Barnholt, H. Raymond Bingham, Robert T. Bond, &sfft. Hall, Stephen P. Kaufman, John H. Kispertld.Urbanek and Richard P.
Wallace; and former directors and officers; RoldeBoehlke, Leo Chamberlain, Gary E. DickersonhRid J. Elkus, Jr., Dennis J. Fortino,
Kenneth Levy, Michael E. Marks, Stuart J. Nich@sghur P. Schnitzer, Kenneth L. Schroeder and Jomddnpkins. Current director David
C. Wang and former director Dean O. Morton wergioglly named as defendants in one of the derieatistions filed in the U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of California, bwere dropped as named defendants as of Decemb20@2 upon the filing of a consolidated
complaint in that action.

The derivative actions are at an early stage. Hfendlants are not yet required to respond to theptaints in the actions pending in
California, and the defendants have moved to dsmistay the action pending in Delaware. Our Badifdirectors has appointed a Special
Litigation Committee (“SLC”) composed solely of eyendent directors to conduct an independent iigeaitn of the claims asserted in the
derivative actions and to determine the Compang&tjpn with respect to those claims. The SLC’sfstigation is in progress. We cannot
predict whether these actions are likely to reisustny material recovery by or expense to KLA-Tanco

Shareholder Class Action Litigation Relating to tdiscal Stock Option Practices

KLA-Tencor and various of our current and formeedtors and officers were named as defendantpiraive securities class action
filed on June 29, 2006 in the U.S. District Cownt the Northern District of California. Two similactions were filed later in the same court,
and all three cases have been consolidated inta@itn. The consolidated complaint alleges claimder the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 as a result of our past stock option grandsrelated accounting and reporting, and seek uifsggemonetary damages and other relief.
The plaintiffs seek to represent a class consigifrurchasers of KLA-Tencor stock between June2801 and May 22, 2006 who allegedly
suffered losses as a result of material misreptasens in KLA-Tencor’'s SEC filings during that ped. The lead plaintiffs, who seek to
represent the class, are the Police and Fire Regine System of the City of Detroit, the Louisianartipal Police Employees’ Retirement
System, and the City of Philadelphia Board of Pemsiand Retirement. The defendants are KLA-Terteidward W. Barnholt, H. Raymond
Bingham, Robert J. Boehlke, Robert T. Bond, GarpiEkerson, Richard J. Elkus, Jr., Jeffrey L. H8llephen P. Kaufman, John H. Kispert,
Kenneth Levy, Michael E. Marks, Stuart J. Nichédenneth L. Schroeder, Jon D. Tompkins, Lida Urbaawedtt Richard P. Wallace.

This litigation is at an early stage. Discovery hascommenced, and the court has not yet detedwiiether the plaintiffs may sue on
behalf of any class of purchasers. The Companyadrudher defendants filed motions to dismiss thesses in June 2007, which are now
pending before the Court. The Company intendsdoreiusly defend this litigation.
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As part of a derivative lawsuit filed in the DelawaChancery Court on July 21, 2006 (described abavglaintiff claiming to be a
KLA-Tencor shareholder also asserted a separastiypeiclass action claim against KLA-Tencor andaiarof our current and former
directors and officers alleging that shareholdecsiired damage due to purported dilution of KLA-@@ncommon stock resulting from
historical stock option granting practices. The @amy has moved to dismiss this claim.

We cannot predict the outcome of the shareholdesciction cases (described above), and we castiaage the likelihood or potenti
dollar amount of any adverse results. However,rdauorable outcome in this litigation could havmaterial adverse impact upon our
financial position, results of operations or caskwé for the period in which the outcome occurs enfiliture periods.

Indemnification Obligation

Subject to certain limitations, we are obligatedniemnify our current and former directors, offe@and employees in connection with
the investigation of our historical stock optioragtices and the related litigation and ongoing gowveent inquiry. These obligations arise
under the terms of our certificate of incorporationr bylaws, applicable contracts, and Delawacke@alifornia law. The obligation to
indemnify generally means that we are requiredaipqr reimburse the individuals’ reasonable legaleases and possibly damages and othel
liabilities incurred in connection with these madtéNe are currently paying or reimbursing legglenses being incurred in connection with
these matters by a number of our current and fodinectors, officers and employees. Although theimam potential amount of future
payments KLA-Tencor could be required to make urtidese agreements is theoretically unlimited, wibe the fair value of this liability,
to the extent estimable, is appropriately considlevithin the reserve we have established for ctiygrending legal proceedings.

Other Legal Matters

We are named from time to time as a party to latssnithe normal course of our business. Litigatirogeneral, and intellectual
property and securities litigation in particulaandoe expensive and disruptive to normal businpssations. Moreover, the results of legal
proceedings are difficult to predict.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Our common stock is listed and traded on the NASDBIGbal Select Market under the symbol “KLAC.”

The prices per share reflected in the followinddakpresent the high and low closing prices farammmon stock on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market for the periods indicated.

Year ended June 30, 2007 Year ended June 30, 2006

High Low High Low
First Fiscal Quarte $ 46.2¢ $ 39.0¢ $ 51.7C $ 43.6(C
Second Fiscal Quart $ 52.4: $ 43.8¢ $ 54.0¢ $ 4552
Third Fiscal Quarte $ 54.4: $ 46.9i $ 54.1¢ $ 48.2(
Fourth Fiscal Quarte $ 56.92 $ 53.0¢ $ 50.3¢ $ 39.07

During the third quarter of the fiscal year endedel30, 2005, our Board of Directors approved tiiteation of a quarterly cash divide
of $0.12 per share. The total amount of divideraid puring the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007%9&sl million. During the first quarter of
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, our Boaidiadctors authorized a quarterly cash dividend@fL$ per share, which was declared on
August 8, 2007 and will be paid on September 1720®mur stockholders of record on August 20, 2007.

As of July 31, 2007, there were 758 holders of i@ our common stock.
28



Table of Contents

Equity Repurchase Plans

Following is a summary of stock repurchases foheaonth during the fourth quarter of the fiscalryeaded June 30, 2007:(1)

Maximum Number of
Shares that May

Total Number of Yet Be Purchased Unde
Average Price Paic
Shares the Plans or Programs
Period Purchased per Share (3)
April 1, 200+—April 30, 2007(2) 350,00( $ 54.7i 13,206,50
May 1, 200—May 31, 2007(2 350,00( $ 54.7¢ 12,856,50
June 1, 20C—June 30, 2007(Z 120,00( $ 54 .5t 12,736,50
Purchases under ASR in June 200° 2,031,54. $ 53.52 N/A
Total 2,851,54. $ 53.8i
(1) InJuly 1997, the Board of Directors authorizddA-Tencor to systematically repurchase up to I#iion shares of its common stock

(2)
(3)

(4)

in the open market. This plan was put into placestiuce the dilution from KLA-Tencor’'s employee béhand incentive plans such as
the stock option and employee stock purchase péantsto return excess cash to the Company’s shidesBoln February 2005, the
Board of Directors authorized KLA-Tencor to repuash up to an additional 10.0 million shares of@simon stock under this
repurchase plan. All such repurchased shares reamdieasury shares. In February 2007, the Boalddrettors authorized KLAFencol
to repurchase up to an additional 10.0 million ekaf its common stock under a new repurchase anog¢in addition to the 27.8 millic
shares described in the preceding senten

Following the conclusion of the fiscal year covebstthis report, in August 2007, the Board of Dices authorized KLA-Tencor to
repurchase up to an additional 10.0 million shafets common stock under the repurchase prograraddition to the 37.8 million
shares described in the preceding paragraph).

All shares were purchased pursuant to the pubdinlyounced repurchase programs described in fooinaibeve

The stock repurchase programs have no expirdtide. Our systematic buyback program was suspgdandéay 2006, and resumed in
February 2007. Future repurchases of the Compaaysnon stock under the Company’s repurchase pragnaay be effected through
various different repurchase transaction structunetuding isolated open market transactions steayatic repurchase plai

In addition to the above stock repurchasesBiterd of Directors authorized a repurchase ofoup750.0 million of the Company’s
common stock pursuant to an Accelerated Share Riease program (“ASR”) in February 2007. The ASR w@spleted during the
fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended June 30720nder the ASR, the Company repurchased 14l®dmsghares of the Company’s
common stock at an average price of $53.52 peestfavhich 2.0 million shares were delivered to @@mpany in the fourth quarter of
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2C
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables include selected consolidatechmary financial data for each of our last fivee#il years. This data should be read
in conjunction with Item 8, “Financial Statementslé&Supplementary Data,” and Item 7, “Managemeniseiission and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” in this AnnRaport on Form 10-K.

(in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended June 30, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Revenue: $2,731,22! $2,070,62 $2,081,87: $1,497,21. $1,321,14
Income from operatior $ 589,86¢f $ 309,790 $ 54512( $ 24363( $ 72,0
Net income $ 528,09¢ $ 380,45. $ 445,04¢ $ 21247t $ 94,02«
Dividends paid per sha $ 048 $ 048 $ 01z $ — $ —
Net Income per shar
Basic $ 2.6¢ $ 1.92 $ 2.27 $ 1.0¢ $ 0.5C
Diluted $ 2.61 $ 1.8¢€ $ 2.21 $ 1.0t $ 0.4¢
As of June 30, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable secL $1,710,62  $2,325,791  $2,195,18  $1,876,351  $1,487,88
Working capital $2,179,56. $2,594,51. $2,265,20: $1,279,82.  $1,154,84.
Total asset $4,623,24' $4,575,91.  $4,040,60. $3,598,881  $2,923,93
Stockholder' equity $3,550,04; $3,567,99. $3,096,67! $2,680,41 $2,263,56;

Effective in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 jmplemented SFAS No. 123(Bhare-Based Paymenlt requires us to measure all
employee stock-based compensation awards usiriguafae method and record such expense in ouratiolaged financial statements.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read in catiom with our Consolidated
Financial Statements and the related notes includi#dm 8, “Financial Statements and Supplemenitata,” in this Annual Report on Form
10-K. This discussion contains forward-looking staénts, which involve risk and uncertainties. Gatual results could differ materially
from those anticipated in the forward-looking sta¢mts as a result of certain factors, includingrimttliimited to those discussed in Item 1A,
“Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Annual Report-orm 10-K. (See “Special Note Regarding Forwlawdking Statements.”)

Restatements of Prior Period Consolidated Financiabtatements in Previous Filings

In our Annual Report on Form 1K{or the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 (filedlanuary 29, 2007) and our quarterly reports oml
10-Q for the quarters ended September 30, 2006 rDer 31, 2006 and March 31, 2007 (filed on JanR&ryY007, February 9, 2007 and
May 7, 2007, respectively), we restated (1) oursatidated financial statements as of and for tbedliyears ended June 30, 2005 and 2004;
(2) our selected consolidated financial data amnoffor our fiscal years ended June 30, 2005, 22033 and 2002; and (3) our unaudited
quarterly financial data for the first three questm our fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 andlfguarters in our fiscal year ended June 30,
2005. In those filings, to correct our past accounfor stock options, we recorded total additioped-tax, non-cash, stock-based
compensation expense of $375.7 million for perimds July 1, 1994 to June 30, 2007. All financigflormation included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K reflects that restatement avebahot contain any further restatement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND POLICIES

The preparation of our Consolidated Financial $tatgs in conformity with accounting principles geaily accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make agtsnand assumptions in applying our accountinigipslthat affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and exggend related disclosure of contingent assetdiaitities. We based these estimates and
assumptions on historical experience, and evathat@ on an on-going basis to ensure that they reneaisonable under current conditions.
Actual results could differ from those estimates Wscuss the development and selection of thieariiccounting estimates with the Audit
Committee of our Board of Directors on a quartédgis, and the Audit Committee has reviewed the izmy's related disclosure in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The items in our fin@hstatements requiring significant estimates jaddments are as follows:

Revenue RecognitionWe recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, delivery has occurred or cesvave
been rendered, the seller’s price is fixed or deiesble, and collectibility is reasonably assuiéf derive revenue from three sources—
system sales, spare part sales and service cantvdettypically recognize revenue for system sajes acceptance by the customer that the
system has been installed and is operating acaptdipredetermined specifications. We also recagrézenue prior to written acceptance
from the customer, as follows:

. When system sales to independent distributors havestallation requirement, contain no acceptagreement, and 100%
payment is due upon shipment, revenue is recognmiged shipment

. When the installation of the system is deemed pethry, revenue is recognized upon shipment. Thigguoof revenue associat:
with installation is deferred based on estimatédvialue, and that revenue is recognized upon cetigui of the installatior

. When the customer fab has already accepted the temmevith the same specifications, and it carobjectively demonstrated tr
the tool meets all of the required acceptancera@itgpon shipment, revenue is recognized upon sipnThe portion of revenue
associated with installation is deferred basedstimated fair value, and that revenue is recognigezh completion of the
installation;
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. When the customer withholds signature on our aeceet document due to issues unrelated to producrpeance, revenue is
recognized when the system is performing as inteaghel meets all published and contractually agspedifications

. When the system is damaged during transit, reventezognized upon receipt of cash payment fronctistomer

Total revenue recognized without a written acceqearom the customer was approximately 13.5%, 4a##h6.6% of total revenues 1
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and r&3@&ctively. The increase in revenue recognizétbwt a written acceptance is primarily
driven by increased shipments of tools that hakesadly met the required acceptance criteria at thesmer fabs, and an increase in sales of
systems with perfunctory installation. Shipping rgfes billed to customers are included in systeremae, and the related shipping costs are
included in costs of revenues.

Trade-in rights are occasionally granted to custsitetrade in tools in connection with subsequeemthases. We estimate the value of
the trade-in right and reduce the revenue of thimirsale. This amount is recognized at the eadfehe exercise of the trade-in right or the
expiration of the trade-in right.

Spare parts revenue is recognized when the prédischeen shipped, risk of loss has passed to stercar, and collection of the
resulting receivable is probable.

Service and maintenance revenue is recognizedyataer the term of the maintenance contract. Chimguand training revenue is
recognized when the related services are performed.

The deferred system profit balance equals the atafudeferred system revenue that was invoiceddaredon shipment less applicable
product and warranty costs.

We also defer the fair value of non-standard wayranondled with equipment sales as unearned revéte-standard warranty
includes services incremental to the standard 40-per week coverage for twelve months. Non-stathdaarranty is recognized ratably as
revenue when the applicable warranty term periodroences.

Software is incidental to our products as deterohineaccordance with AICPA Statement of PositicB@P”) No. 97-2Software
Revenue Recogniticand Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue NB0B, Applicability of SOP 97-2 to Non-Software Deliveleghin
an Arrangement Containing More-Than-Incidental &afie. We periodically review the software element of systems in accordance with
SOP No. 97-2 and EITF Issue No. 03-05.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (oins&ih, first-out basis) or market. Demonstratiamits are stated at their
manufacturing cost, and reserves are recordedte tte demonstration units at their net realizahlee. We review the adequacy of our
inventory reserves on a quarterly basis.

We review and set standard costs semi-annuallyrag¢rt manufacturing costs in order to approxinaateial costs. Our manufacturing
overhead standards for product costs are calcutestsaming full absorption of forecasted spendingr gvojected volumes, adjusted for
excess capacity. Abnormal inventory costs sucloas of idle facilities, excess freight and hangllaosts, and wasted materials (spoilage) are
recognized as current period charges.

We write down inventory based on forecasted denaawattechnological obsolescence. These factorsrgradted by market and
economic conditions, technology changes, new prioidtroductions and changes in strategic direcéind require estimates that may include
uncertain elements. Actual demand may differ fromeéasted demand, and such differences may haweaiah effect on recorded inventory
values.
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Warranty. We provide standard warranty coverage on our systemd0 hours per week for twelve months, provgdabor and parts
necessary to repair the systems during the wargeripd. We account for the estimated warranty aest charge to costs of revenues when
revenue is recognized. The estimated warrantyisdmised on historical product performance and febenses. Utilizing actual service
records, we calculate the average service hourpairts expense per system and apply the labor\arthe@ad rates to determine the estimated
warranty charge. We update these estimated chargasjuarterly basis. The actual product perforraama/or field expense profiles may
differ, and in those cases we adjust our warragggnves accordingly. The difference between thimattd and actual warranty costs tends to
be larger for new product introductions as thed@rged or no historical product performance ttiregte warranty expense; more mature
products with longer product performance historésl to be more stable in our warranty charge @séisa Non-standard warranty generally
includes services incremental to the standard 40-per week coverage for twelve months. Non-stathdaarranty is deferred as unearned
revenue and is recognized ratably as revenue wWieeapplicable warranty term period commences. S#e N, “Commitments and
Contingencies” to the Consolidated Financial Statets for a detailed description.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. A majority of our trade receivables are derivedrfrsales to large multinational semiconductor
manufacturers throughout the world. In order to itwsrpotential credit losses, we perform ongoingdir evaluations of our customers’
financial condition. An allowance for doubtful accts is maintained for probable credit losses bagped our assessment of the expected
collectibility of all accounts receivable. The allance for doubtful accounts is reviewed on a quigrtesis to assess the adequacy of the
allowance. We take into consideration (1) any amtstances of which we are aware of a customer’slityatm meet its financial obligations;
and (2) our judgments as to prevailing economial@ans in the industry and their impact on ourtonsers. If circumstances change, and the
financial condition of our customers are adverséigcted and they are unable to meet their finddikigations to us, we may need to take
additional allowances, which would result in a retibn of our net income.

Stock-Based CompensatiorBeginning July 1, 2005, we have accounted for stuaked compensation using the fair value of stock
options based on a Black-Scholes option-pricing @hambnsistent with the provisions of SFAS No. B3(@s clarified by Securities and
Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SABlo. 107. We elected to adopt the modified pratipe application method as
provided by SFAS No. 123(R). Accordingly, during thscal years ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, weded stock-based compensation
expense totaling the amount that would have besrgrézed had the fair value method been applieguB&AS No. 123 since the effective
date of SFAS No. 123 for the grants made priohéoftscal year ended June 30, 2006, and under S¥A323(R) for the grants made during
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 and 2007.

SFAS No. 123(R) requires the use of option pricimzdels that were not developed for use in valuingleyee stock options. The
Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developadif®e in estimating the fair value of short-livectieange traded options that have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferableadidition, option-pricing models require the inpbihighly subjective assumptions, including
the option’s expected life and the expected praatility of the underlying stock. The expectedcit@rice volatility assumption was
determined using the implied volatility of the Commy’s common stock. We determined that implied tilitlais more reflective of market
conditions and a better indicator of expected ¥dlathan a blended volatility. Prior to the adagpt of SFAS No. 123(R), we used a
combination of historical and implied volatility geriving the expected volatility assumption.

In November 2005, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position No. {33 Transition Election
Related to Accounting for Tax Effects of S-Based Payment Awagi(“FSP 123R-3")We have elected not to adopt the alternative ttian
method provided in the FSP 123R-3 for calculatimgtax effects of stock-based compensation purdae®fAS No. 123(R). We followed
paragraph 81 of SFAS No. 123(R) to calculate titealrpool of excess tax benefits and to deterntireesubsequent impact on the Additional
Paid-in-Capital (“APIC”") pool and Consolidated ®taients of Cash Flows of the tax effects of
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employee stock-based compensation awards thatouwstanding upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). Weehalected to ignore the indirect
tax effects of share-based compensation deductibes calculating the windfall benefits and are ggiring the full effect of these
deductions in the income statement in the periagtiith the taxable event occurs. See Note 6, “SBased Compensation” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for a detailestrijgtion.

Contingencies and Litigation.We are subject to the possibility of losses fromiowes contingencies. Considerable judgment is
necessary to estimate the probability and amouahgfloss from such contingencies. An accrual idenahen it is probable that a liability
has been incurred or an asset has been impairetth@mgnount of loss can be reasonably estimatedadtteie a liability and charge
operations for the estimated costs expected tadgred over the next twelve months of adjudicatiosettlement of asserted and unasserted
claims existing as of the balance sheet date.8ee3, “Legal Proceedings” and Note 11, “Commitrsearid Contingencies” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for a detailextrijgtion.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets As required by SFAS No. 14&oodwill and Other Intangible Assetmodwill is not amortized but is
subject to impairment tests annually, or earliéndficators of potential impairment exist, usinfaa-value-based approach. Purchased
technology, patents, trademarks and other intaagib$ets are presented at cost, net of accumalaiedization. Intangible assets are
amortized on a straight line basis which approxésdheir estimated useful lives and assessed fmairment under SFAS No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of L-Lived Assets Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase pwer the fair value of
the net tangible and identifiable intangible assetyuired in each business combination. We conphlbte annual evaluation of the goodwill
by reporting unit during the quarter ended Decen®ie2006, and concluded that there was no impaitiidere have been no significant
events or circumstances affecting the valuatiogaafdwill subsequent to the impairment test perfatimehe second quarter of the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007.

Income TaxesWe account for income taxes in accordance with SNAS109,Accounting for Income Taxesvhich requires that
deferred tax assets and liabilities be recogniztaguenacted tax rates for the effect of tempodiffgrences between the book and tax bases
of recorded assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 188 atquires that deferred tax assets be reducad/aluation allowance if it is more likely
than not that a portion of the deferred tax assiéhot be realized. We have determined that oturiei taxable income will be sufficient to
recover all of our deferred tax assets. Howevesyukhthere be a change in our ability to recoverdrferred tax assets, we could be required
to record a valuation allowance against our defetag assets. This would result in an increaseitdax provision in the period in which we
determined that the recovery was not probable.

On a quarterly basis, we provide for income taxased upon an estimated annual effective incomeatax The effective tax rate is
highly dependent upon the geographic compositionarfdwide earnings, tax regulations governing e@dion, availability of tax credits a
the effectiveness of our tax planning strategies.daftefully monitor the changes in many factors adjdst our effective income tax rate on a
timely basis. If actual results differ from thestimates, this could have a material effect onfmancial condition and results of operations.

In addition, the calculation of our tax liabiliti@svolves dealing with uncertainties in the apgiica of complex tax regulations. We
recognize liabilities for anticipated tax audituss in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions basedwr best estimate of whether, and the extent
to which, additional tax payments are probablevdfultimately determine that payment of these anwisnunnecessary, we reverse the
liability and recognize a tax benefit during theipd in which we determine that the liability is lomger necessary. We record an additional
charge in our provision for taxes in the perioavinich we determine that the recorded tax liabiktyess than we expect the ultimate
assessment to be.
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Effects of Recent Accounting Pronouncements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T8® Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finl Liabilities—Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No., which is effective for the Company in fiscal ye@eginning July 1, 2008. This statement permits an
entity to choose to measure many financial instniiand certain other items at fair value at spti¢lection dates. Subsequent unrealized
gains and losses on items for which the fair valpgon has been elected will be reported in eamiiige Company is currently evaluating
potential impact of this statement on its consaéddinancial position, results of operations aadrcflows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in accordancthwenerally accepted accounting principles, anmheds disclosures about fair value
measurements. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 deetefe for the Company for fiscal years beginnilngdy 1, 2008. We are evaluating the
impact of the provisions of this statement on aunswlidated financial position, results of openasi@nd cash flows.

In June 2006, the FASB published FASB Interpretabim. (“FIN”) 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation
of FASB Statement No. 1@fich clarifies the accounting for uncertainty mome taxes recognized in an enterprise’s finaistééments in
accordance with SFAS No. 108counting for Income Taxe$IN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold andsuesament attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measuremeattak position taken or expected to be taken axadturn. FIN 48 also provides guidance
on derecognition, classification, interest and ftegg| accounting in interim periods, disclosuned @ransition. FIN 48 is effective for our
Company in fiscal years beginning July 1, 2007. Alifferences between the amounts recognized istdtements of financial position prior
to the adoption of FIN 48 and the amounts repaafést adoption will be accounted for as a cumuétifect adjustment recorded to the
beginning balance of retained earnings. In additiba adoption of FIN 48 will result in the recléissition of certain unrecognized tax
benefits from current to non-current liabilitiesaar statement of financial position. We are cutlyeevaluating the potential impact of the
implementation of FIN 48 on our consolidated finahposition, results of operations and cash flows.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. ¥sfounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instrumengs amendment &FAS
No. 133,Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivitiesand SFAS No. 140Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabili. These Statements permit fair value remeasurefaeany hybrid financial instrument
that contains an embedded derivative that otherw@dd require bifurcation. These Statements diextfe for all financial instruments
acquired or issued after July 1, 2007. The adomfd®FAS No. 155 is not expected to have a mateffatt on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

KLA-Tencor Corporation is the world’s leading suigplof process control and yield management saistior the semiconductor and
related microelectronics industries. Our compretvengortfolio of products, services, software argetise helps integrated circuit
manufacturers manage yield throughout the entlvedation process—from research and developmefinabvolume production.

Revenues, income from operations, net income, ftashfrom operations, and diluted earnings per slae some of the key indicators
we use to monitor our financial condition and opiegaperformance. The following table sets fortimgoof the key quarterly unaudited
financial information which we use to manage owsibess.

First Second Third Fourth
quarter quarter quarter quarter
ended ended ended ended

September 3C December 31 March 31, June 30,
(in thousands, except per share data) 2006 2006 2007 2007
Revenue! $ 629,36 $ 649,27( $716,20¢  $736,38!¢
Total costs and operating expen 475,37 570,91: 533,55: 561,52
Income from operatior 153,99( 78,35¢ 182,65! 174,86«
Net income 135,92: 90,04¢ 154,78! 147,34
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.6¢ $ 0.4t $ 0.7¢ $ 0.77
Diluted $ 0.67 $ 0.44 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7%

First Second Third Fourth
quarter quarter quarter quarter
ended ended ended ended

September 3C December 31 March 31, June 30,
(in thousands, except per share data) 2005 2005 2006 2006
Revenue:! $ 484,26: $ 487,68. $519,64¢ $579,03¢
Total costs and operating expen 409,27: 412,68t 434,72: 504,15t¢
Income from operatior 74,99( 74,99¢ 84,92% 74,88(
Net income 75,48 76,60: 96,68¢ 131,67¢
Net income per shar
Basic $ 03 $ 03¢ $ 048 $ 0.6¢€
Diluted $ 037 $ 03 $ 047 $ 0.6F

Industry Trends

As a supplier to the global semiconductor and sendactor-related industries, we are subject torimssi cycles, the timing, length and
volatility of which can be difficult to predict. Enindustries we serve have historically been cgtlicie to sudden changes in demand and
manufacturing capacity. We expect that our custshuapital spending on process control to increass the long term. We believe that this
increase in process control spending will be dribgrthe demand for more precise diagnostics cafiabito address multiple new defects i
result of further shrinking of device feature sizb& transition to new materials, new devices @ralit architecture, new lithography
challenges and fab process innovation. We antigifiatt these factors will drive increased demanato products and services over the
coming years. The key drivers for growth in the memductor equipment industry in calendar year 28@rthe transition to 65nm design
nodes, the increased demand for consumer elecsraamd the strength of the flash memory market.
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Revenues and Gross Margin

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 FYO7 vs. FY06 FYO06 vs. FY05
Revenues

Product $2,308,94, $1,713,23 $1,767,67 $595,70! 35% $(54,439 -3%

Service 422,28 357,39( 314,20: 64,89’ 18% 43,18¢ 14%
Total revenue $2,731,22! $2,070,62 $2,081,87! $660,60. $(11,25)
Costs of revenue $1,190,32: $ 942,09: $ 871,00( $248,23. 26% $71,09: 8%
Stock-based compensation expense included in

costs of revenue $ 29,18 $ 29,62 $ 9,16 $ (439) -1%  $ 20,45: 222%

Gross margin percenta 56% 55% 58% 1% -3%

Stock-based compensation expense included in

costs of revenues as a percentage of total
revenues 1% 1% 0% 0% 1%

Product revenues

Product revenues increased in the fiscal year edded 30, 2007 primarily as a result of a higheellef orders received due to our
customers’ increased capital spending in the afrpaocess control and yield management. The hifghel of customer spending in the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007 was driven by our cust’ demand for more precise diagnostics capabilitesddress multiple new defects as a
result of further shrinking of device feature sizé® transition to new materials, new devices @ralit architecture, new lithography
challenges and fab process innovation.

Product revenue was relatively flat in the fiscadilyended June 30, 2006 as compared to the fisaakeynded June 30, 2005.

Service revenues

Service revenues are generated from maintenangieesepntracts, as well as time and material bidlaervice calls made to our
customers after the expiration of the warrantyquerService revenues continued to increase thrthgthree year period disclosed in the
table above as our installed base of equipmentratustomerssites continued to grow. The amount of service maes generated is gener:
a function of the number of post-warranty systemssalled at our customers’ sites and the utilizatbthose systems.

Revenues by region
Revenues by region for the periods indicated wer®liows (in thousands):

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005

United State: $ 647,811 24% $ 41646( 20% § 49425(  24%
Europe & Israe 271,81« 10% 287,56:  14% 266,04  13%
Japar 600,86  22% 541,41  26% 450,24 21%
Taiwan 559,08  20% 363,01  18% 42967  21%
Korea 288,75(  11% 277,31 13% 148,28 7%
Asia Pacific 362,90:  13% 184,85 9% 293,38. _14%

Total $2,731,220 100% $2,070,62 10(%  $2,081,87: 10(%

A significant portion of our revenues continuedbégenerated in Asia, where a substantial portidheoworld’s semiconductor
manufacturing capacity is located, and we expeattwlill continue to be the case.
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Gross margin

Our gross margin fluctuates with revenue levelsaroduct mix, and is affected by variations in eagflated to manufacturing and
servicing our products. The increase in gross maigring the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 wiasapily due to increased revenues and
savings realized from our cost reduction initiatilzeing the fiscal year. In addition, the followioharges were recorded in the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007:

» $33.9 million for additional amortization of intaruy@s and fair value adjustment for inventory redate the acquisitions complet
as of June 30, 2007, of which $13.8 million waorded in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ehdene 30, 200"

. $4.9 million for severance and benefits relatedrt@mployee workforce reduction, of which $2.3 imillwas recorded in the
fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended June 3072@&nd

. An aggregate of $4.7 million for reimbursementa}es to employees, including management, relatéi@@aSection 409A and
cash payment to employees to compensate themdobémefits resulting from the suspension of thenany’s Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (“ESPPi)hich $4.7 million amount was recorded primarilytiie second and third quarters of the fiscal yedee
June 30, 200i

The decrease in gross margin during the fiscal gaded June 30, 2006 compared to the fiscal yerdedune 30, 2005 was primarily
due to our cessation of development work relate@@SEM and stock-based compensation expense retdrding the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006, which contributed 1% and 1%, respdgt to the decrease in gross margin. Duringftheeth quarter of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006, we ceased development work on tttegraeration equipment for CDSEM and incurred gharof $26.5 million resulting
from write-offs of related inventory and other lidties related to the cessation of future develeptrof CDSEM. Although we have ceased
future development of CDSEM, we will continue ta\see previously sold equipment.

Engineering, Research and Development (“R&D")

(dollar amounts in thousands) Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005 FY07 vs. FY06 FY06 vs. FY05

R&D expense: $437,51: $393,82: $351,98: $43,69( 11% $41,83¢ 12%
Stockbased compensation expense included in F

expense: $ 42,43 $ 49,50¢ $ 12,25¢ $(7,079) -14%  $37,25¢ 304%
R&D expenses as a percentage of total reve 16% 19% 17% -3% 2%
Stockbased compensation expense included in F

expense as a percentage of total reve 2% 2% 1% 0% 1%

The increase in R&D expenses during the fiscal gealed June 30, 2007 primarily reflects additianagdenses related to the following
charges recorded in the fiscal year ended Jun2Q81Y;:

*  $17.9 million for in-process research and develouni#PR&D”) charges and amortization of intangiblassociated with the
acquisitions that we completed as of June 30, 200&hich $12.3 million was recorded in fourth gugauof the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007

* $10.0 million for impairment of certain patents reged in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year endede 30, 200’

» An aggregate of $5.8 million for reimbursementafds to employees, including management, relaté’GdSection 409A and
cash payments to employees to compensate themstdoénefits resulting from the suspension of them@any’s ESPP, which
$5.8 million amount was recorded primarily in tlieeend and third quarters of the fiscal year endee B0, 2007; an

» $4.3 million for severance and benefits relatedrt@mployee workforce reduction, of which $2.2 imillwas recorded in the
fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended June 30,2
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The increase in R&D expenses in the fiscal yeaedrldine 30, 2006 compared to the fiscal year ehoteel 30, 2005 was primarily
attributable to increased stock-based compensatipanses due to the implementation of SFAS No.RR3(

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, werdezb$16.6 million for irprocess research and development charges. Thefaé of
the purchased IPR&D was determined using the incappeoach, which discounts expected future castsfloom projects to their net
present value. Future cash flows were estimat&thganto account the expected life cycles of thedoicts and the underlying technology,
relevant market sizes and industry trends. We oeted a discount rate for each project based oreflagive risks inherent in the project’s
development horizon, the estimated costs of dewedmp, and the level of technological change inpitegect and the industry, among other
factors. IPR&D was expensed upon acquisition bex#eshnological feasibility had not been achieved @o future alternative uses existed.
The development of these technologies remainkaltis to the remaining efforts to achieve techniclgeasibility, rapidly changing
customer markets, uncertain standards for new ptedand significant competitive threats. The ratfrthe efforts to develop these
technologies into commercially viable products éstsprimarily of planning, designing, experimengtimand testing activities necessary to
determine that the technologies can meet marketatapons, including functionality and technicaju@ements.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, weraéted that we would not pursue future developneécertain patents initially
licensed during fiscal year 2006 for approximatilyt.0 million. Since we did not have any altermatisse of these patents and we believe the
fair value to be $0, the carrying value of $10.Tiom was written off. The write off was recordesl $10.0 million to R&D expense and $0.7
million to cost of revenues in the fiscal year eshdane 30, 2007.

R&D expenses include the benefit of $12.7 millih1l.4 million and $7.9 million of external fundingceived during the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivelgeftain strategic development programs primdrdyn government grants. We expect
our R&D expenses to increase in absolute dollaes the next several years as we accelerate oustmeats in critical programs focusing on
new technologies and enhancements to existing ptedu

Our future operating results will depend signifitaion our ability to produce products and provédevices that have a competitive
advantage in our marketplace. To do this, we belteat we must continue to make substantial investsnin our research and development.
We remain committed to product development in nad/@merging technologies as we address the yiallediyes our customers face at
future technology nodes.

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”")

(dollar amounts in thousands) Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005 FYO07 vs. FY06 FY06 vs. FY05
SG&A expense: $513,52! $424,92. $313,77- $ 88,60: 21% $111,14¢ 35%
Stock-based compensation expense included in
SG&A expense $ 37,16« $ 85,61 $ 15,58( $(48,449) -57% $ 70,03¢ 45(%
SG&A expenses as a percentage of total reve 19% 21% 15% -2% 6%

Stock-based compensation expense included in
SG&A expenses as a percentage of total
revenues 1% 4% 1% -3% 3%
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The increase in SG&A expenses during the fiscat gaded June 30, 2007 primarily reflects additiaredrges recorded in SG&A as
follows:

» $56.8 million for impairment charges related to Wrée-down of buildings which was recorded in 8ezond quarter of the fiscal
year ended June 30, 20(

e $11.3 million for severance and related benefitee to an employee workforce reduction, of wiéhl million was recorded in
the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended June&807;

» $12.3 million for additional amortization of intaibtes related to the acquisitions that we completedf June 30, 2007, of which
$1.7 million is recorded in the fourth quarter loé ffiscal year ended June 30, 20

» $15.8 million for legal and other expenses relatethé stock options investigation, shareholdegdition and related matters wh
was primarily recorded in the first three quarifrthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2007;

»  $8.0 million for reimbursement of taxes to emplaydacluding management, related to IRC Sectionrd&8d cash payments to
employees to compensate them for lost benefits thmsuspension of the Company’s ESPP, which $8ldmamount was
recorded primarily in the second and third quartéifsscal year ended June 30, 20

The cumulative increase in SG&A expenses in theafigear ended June 30, 2007 as compared to ttee fisar ended June 30, 2006
was offset in part by a decrease in stock-basegeasation expense primarily due to a reversal 6f3gillion in stock-based compensation
expense related to our former Chief Executive @ffitn addition, certain options granted in prieays were fully vested in the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007 resulting in lower levels aflstbhased compensation expense

In November 2006, as part of our long-term busimdss, we decided to sell certain real estate ptigseowned by the Company in San
Jose, California and Livermore, California. Basedlme valuation of these assets, we recorded &t iaggairment charge of approximately
$56.8 million, which has been included in SG&A dgrithe fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. See Not&A$5et Impairment and Severance
Charges” to the Consolidated Financial Statememtmbre information.

The increase in SG&A expenses in the fiscal yededrdune 30, 2006 was primarily due to higher kewéktock-based compensation
expense due to implementation of SFAS No. 123(Rhénfiscal year ended June 30, 2006 and incrdagaticosts of $21.1 million
attributable to accrued expenses related to thek stption investigation.

During November 2005, we announced that effectaraudry 1, 2006, Kenneth L. Schroeder would ceabe tmur Chief Executive
Officer and would thereafter be employed as a Sekilvisor. The Company and Mr. Schroeder also ealisis prior agreement with the
Company and defined the salary, bonus payout anidyemward vesting during the period of his empl@nhas a Senior Advisor. Effective
January 1, 2006, we determined that all servicelitioms associated with certain prior equity awaudder the terms of the revised agreement
with Mr. Schroeder had been satisfied; accordingly recorded at that time an additional non-casitksbased compensation charge of
approximately $9.8 million relating to these equityards. The above-mentioned charge is includedcasnponent of SG&A expense during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. On Octobe2d®;, following the Special Committee investigataf our historical stock option
practices, we terminated all aspects of Mr. Schedsdmployment relationship and agreement withGbmpany. As a result, vesting of
Mr. Schroeder’s then outstanding stock optionsrastticted stock awards immediately ceased, an@.thenillion unvested option shares and
0.1 million unvested restricted stock award shaedd by Mr. Schroeder at the time of terminatiomeveanceled. Accordingly, in the second
quarter of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007ewersed approximately $20.3 million of the non-¢asbck-based compensation charge
recorded in prior periods. In December 2006, wecekad 0.6 million vested option shares held by $throeder as of the time of terminati
representing those shares that had been retrolgqtieed or otherwise improperly granted.
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Interest Income and Other, Net

Year ended June 30,

(dollar amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Interest income and other, r $87,361 $68,06" $37,95¢
Percentage of total revent 3% 3% 2%

Interest income and other, net is comprised primafiinterest income earned on our investmenteash portfolio, realized gains or
losses on sales of marketable securities, as watic@me recognized upon settlement of certaindareurrency contracts. The increases in
interest income and other, net, in each of thafigears ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, as comigattes prior fiscal year were primarily d
to higher short-term interest rates. In additionthie fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, we had aityeqgterest in a development stage
company which we consolidated as of March 31, 20@4ing the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, weiaed the remaining minority intere
in this entity and subsequently sold certain assftsis entity and recorded a gain of $3.9 million

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate was 22.2%, 0.4% ah8% in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 20062005, respectively. In
general, our effective income tax rate is a functd benefits realized from our Extraterritoriattome (“ETI”) exclusion, foreign earnings
taxed at different rates, research and developtagrdredits and tax exempt interest.

In the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and Jun208®, the Company reduced its total income tagmees by $15.3 million and $79.7
million respectively. This was primarily due to énpg statutes of limitations, several tax settletsereached with various tax authorities and
reassessments of tax exposures based on thedftatusent audits in various jurisdictions. In tiigcal year ended June 30, 2006, we entered
into a settlement with the Internal Revenue Serxétated to an examination for the fiscal yearseehgune 30, 2003 and 2004. In the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007, we entered into a settkenith the California Franchise Tax Board relatedn examination for the fiscal yei
ended June 30, 1997, 1998 and 1999.

Our benefits for income tax related to equity awsasgre $34.5 million, $58.2 million and $12.1 nailli for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Our future effective income tax rate depends oiuarfactors, such as tax legislation, the geogcagdmposition of our pre-tax
income, non tax-deductible expenses incurred imeotion with acquisitions, amounts of tax-exempgii@st income and research and
development credits as a percentage of aggregatplincome, and the effectiveness of our taxrplemstrategies.

The statute of limitations has expired for franehizxes in California, the state in which the Compsheadquarters are located, thrc
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, and the @it&avenue Service completed an audit of the Cogipa@orporate tax returns for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2003 and 2004 during thd jisaaended June 30, 2006. Liabilities for antgal worldwide tax audit issues have k
established based on our estimate of whether,fenebxtent to which, additional tax payments ardgbte. The Company believes that
adequate reserves have been provided to coveraeagtial additional tax assessments.

Equity Incentive Program

Our equity incentive program is a broad-based, fi@ngn retention program that is intended to atteaxct retain key employees, and a
stockholder and employee interests. The equitynitiee program consists of two plans: one under tvimien-employee directors may be
granted options to purchase shares of our stockaaather in which non-employee directors, offickesy employees, consultants and all
other employees may be
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granted options to purchase shares of our stoskjated stock units and other types of equity @saFor the past several years until June 30,
2006, stock options (except for the retroactiveliggr options which were granted primarily prioffiscal year 2002) were generally granted
at the market price of our common stock on the datggant, with a vesting period of five years amdexercise period not to exceed seven
years (ten years for options granted prior to Jul®005) from the date of issuance. Restrictedksioéts may be granted with varying crite
such as time-based or performance-based vestihgta&uially all of our employees that meet estaklisperformance goals and qualify as
key employees participate in our main equity intenplan. Since July 1, 2006, we have granted oggyricted stock units under our equity
incentive program, except for options granted to-employee directors as part of their regular camp&on package for service through
June 30, 2007.

On October 18, 2004, our stockholders approve@@od Equity Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan”) whimtovides for the grant of
options to purchase shares of our common stockk stppreciation rights, restricted stock, perforogshares, performance units and defe
stock units to our employees, consultants and mesrdfeour Board of Directors. Since the adoptiothef 2004 Plan, no further grants are
permitted under the 1982 Stock Option Plan or 2000-Statutory Stock Option Plan. The 2004 Plan jisrthe issuance of up to
12.5 million shares of common stock, of which 3.i8ion shares were available for grant as of Jube2®07. Any 2004 Plan awards of
restricted stock, performance shares, performanite or deferred stock units with a per share dtr purchase price lower than 100% of fair
market value on the grant date shall be countethsigthe total number of shares issuable unde2@@d Plan as 1.8 shares for every one
share subject thereto. Total options and restristeck units outstanding under all plans as of Bih€007 were 19.6 million and 3.4 million,
respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Effective July 1, 2005, we adopted the provisiohSIBAS No. 123(R)Share-Based PaymenSFAS No. 123(R) establishes accounting
for stock-based awards exchanged for employeecssrvAccordingly, stock-based compensation caskiasured at grant date, based on the
fair value of the award which is computed usinglacB-Scholes option valuation model, and is recogghias expense over the employee’s
requisite service period. The following table shatack-based compensation expense by type of deathe fiscal years ended June 30,
2007, 2006 and 2005:

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands ) 2007 2006 2005
Stocl-based compensation expense by type of av

Employee stock optior $ 82,44( $140,44°  $34,90:
Employee stock purchase pl 11,96¢ 16,18¢ —
Restricted stock unit 14,37 8,107 2,13¢
Total stocl-based compensatic $108,77¢  $164,74. $37,04!

The decrease in stock-based compensation expettsefiscal year ended June 30, 2007 as comparbe tiiscal year ended June 30,
2006 was primarily due to a reversal of $20.3 wilin stock-based compensation expense relatée toancellation of options and restricted
stock units previously held by our former Chief Extive Officer. In addition, certain options grashie prior years were fully vested in the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 resulting in Idereels of stock-based compensation expense. Trezseakes were offset by $9.3 million of
cash compensation related to bonuses payable twtters of amended options to compensate theihéancrease in their option exercise
price.

The increase in stock-based compensation experike fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 as comparthe tiscal year ended June 30,
2005 is primarily due to the implementation of SFR& 123(R).

As of June 30, 2007, the unrecognized stock-basegbensation balance related to stock options waé.$Imillion and will be
recognized over an estimated weighted average ematboh period of 2.6 years. As of June 30, 208&,unrecognized stock-based
compensation balance related to restricted stoitk was $71.2 million and will be recognized overestimated weighted average
amortization period of 3.2 years.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of June 30,

(dollar amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Cash and cash equivalel $ 722,51 $1,129,19 $ 663,16:
Shor-term marketable securitit 988,11¢ 1,196,60! 1,532,02.
Total cash, cash equivalents and marketable sies $1,710,62! $2,325,79 $2,195,18!
Percentage of total assi 37% 51% 54%
Year ended June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Cash provided by operating activiti $ 610,68t $ 315,16¢ $ 506,73
Cash (used in) provided by investing activit (399,269 225,071 (124,599
Cash used in financing activiti (633,22) (84,959 (81,069
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts 15,12¢ 10,74¢ 8,21
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ (406,68() $ 466,02 $ 309,28:

We have historically financed our operations thtoagsh generated from operations. Cash providexpbyating activities in the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007 consisted primarily ofieetme of $528.1 million increased by I-cash depreciation and amortization of $109.3
million, stock-based compensation of $99.6 millard non-cash impairment charges of $67.6 milli@mtially offset by an increase in
accounts receivable of $107.3 million, a decreasgtounts payable of $45.6 million, a decreasieferred system profit of $24.4 million
and increase in other assets of $19.4 million.

Cash provided by operating activities in the fisgzdr ended June 30, 2006 consisted primarily bineeme of $380.5 million increas
by non-cash depreciation and amortization of $&8lHon, stock-based compensation of $164.7 millitax benefit from equity awards of
$31.9 million and an increase in accounts payab$2@.1 million, partially offset by an increaseancounts receivable of $114.9 million, an
increase in inventories of $87.7 million, and acr@ase in net deferred income tax assets of $18ulidn.

Cash provided by operating activities in the fisgedr ended June 30, 2005 consisted primarily bineeme of $445.0 million increas
by non-cash depreciation and amortization of $rilRon, stock-based compensation of $37.0 millidacrease in accounts receivable of
$36.6 million and decrease in other assets anditied of $42.8 million partially offset by a dezase in deferred system profit of $70.8
million and an increase in net deferred incomesatssets of $53.5 million.

Investing activities typically consist of purchasesl sales or maturities of marketable securifiesshases of capital assets to support
long-term growth and acquisitions of technologytirer companies to allow access to new marketserging technologies. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, we paid $521 lfomflor acquisitions completed during the fiscaby including the acquisition of certain
assets of a development stage company. Also, peestaf capital assets in the fiscal year ended 3002007 includes purchases of $29.9
million related to our Singapore facility.

Financing activities include dividend payments tw common stockholders and sales and repurchages ebmmon stock. Issuance of
common stock provided $263.2 million, $212.7 miiliand $133.6 million in the fiscal years ended J8®e2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. We used $808.5 million, $221.4 millend $203.7 million in the fiscal years ended J8®e2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
to repurchase shares of our common stock. The sémtkchase program was suspended in May 2006esnded in February 2007. The
increase from fiscal year 2006 to 2007 was primatile to the Accelerated Share Repurchase (“ASR§nam described below. This
increase in our share repurchases is the primasorefor the decrease in cash, cash equivalentaricttable securities as of June 30, 2007
versus June 30, 2006.
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During the third quarter of the fiscal year endede)30, 2005, our Board of Directors also apprdhednitiation of a quarterly cash
dividend and declared a dividend of $0.12 per sbawrir outstanding common stock. The total amadimtividends paid during the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $@%dh, $95.4 million and $23.6 million, respeatly. Further, a dividend of $0.15
share of our outstanding common stock for the jtstrter of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 declared in August, 2007 and will be
paid on September 1, 2007 to our stockholders cordeas of August 20, 2007.

In February 2007, we entered into an ASR prograth withird-party investment bank and prepaid $75@illlon to repurchase its
common stock. The purchase price per share ofadhermn stock repurchased through the ASR was detedrdnd adjusted based on a
discount to the volume-weighted average price ofommon stock during a period following the exémubf the ASR agreement, subject to
a maximum price per share. During the fiscal yealeel June 30, 2007 we repurchased 14.0 millioresharour common stock under the
ASR, of which 2.0 million shares were delivereditoin the fourth quarter of the fiscal year endaeJ30, 2007.

The shares repurchased under the ASR decreasedsiarand diluted weighted average shares outstgn@his decrease was partially
offset by additional shares issued upon the exeaigmployee stock options and in connection wfititk purchases under our Employee
Stock Purchase Plan.

Following the conclusion of the fiscal year covebstthis report, in August 2007, the Board of Dicegs authorized KLA-Tencor to
repurchase up to an additional 10.0 million shafeétss common stock under the repurchase program.

The following is a schedule summarizing our sigifit obligations to make future payments underrectial obligations as of June .
2007:

(in thousands) Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter
Purchase commitmen $14554¢ $14357¢ $ 1972« $ — $ — $ — $ —
Operating lease 38,21¢ 10,36+ 7,95¢ 5,40( 3,91: 2,30¢ 8,271
Pension obligation 10,38 864 924 97€ 1,001 902 5,72(
Other obligation: 20,64( 20,64( — — — — —
Total contractual cash obligatio $214,79. $17544. $10,85¢ $6,37¢ $491¢ $3,21( $ 13,997

We have agreements with financial institutionselh certain of our trade receivables and promissmtes from customers without
recourse. In addition, from time to time we wilsdount, without recourse, Letters of Credit (“LCs8}eived from customers in payment for
goods.

The following table shows total receivables soldemfactoring agreements and proceeds from sale€®find related discounting fees
paid during the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006:

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Receivables sold under factoring agreem $278,56( $277,96( $ 306,17
Proceeds from sales of Lt $ 61,85( $ 69,28t $ 29,60:

Discounting fees paid on sales of LCs $ 804 $ 78¢ $ 19k

(1) Discounting fees were equivalent to interest expemsl were recorded in interest and other incorhe

We maintain guarantee arrangements of $27.9 milliorarious locations to fund customs guarante&/&8f and LC needs of its
subsidiaries in Europe and Asia. Approximately 81@&illion was outstanding under these arrangemeshtsf June 30, 2007.

We maintain certain purchase commitments with opp$ers to ensure a smooth and continuous sugaindor key components. Our
liability under these purchase commitments is gaherestricted to a forecasted
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time-horizon as mutually agreed upon between thiega This forecast time-horizon can vary amorftedint suppliers. We estimate our
purchase commitment as of June 30, 2007 to be rippately $145.5 million which are primarily due Wit the next 12 months. Actual
expenditures will vary based upon the volume oftthasactions and length of contractual serviceiges. In addition, the amounts paid
under these arrangements may change in the exarihtharrangements are renegotiated or cancedethi€ agreements provide for potential
cancellation penalties.

We provide standard warranty coverage on our sysfem40 hours per week for twelve months, provgdebor and parts necessary to
repair the systems during the warranty period. Wmant for the estimated warranty cost as a chargests of revenues when revenue is
recognized. The estimated warranty cost is basdudstorical product performance and field expen$és. actual product performance and/or
field expense profiles may differ, and in thoseesase adjust our warranty reserves accordingly.ditierence between the estimated and
actual warranty costs tends to be larger for nevdyet introductions as there is limited or no histal product performance to estimate
warranty expense; more mature products with lopgeduct performance histories tend to be more stabbur warranty charge estimates.
Non-standard warranty coverage generally includesess\uncremental to the standard 40-hour per wegkrage for twelve months. See
Note 11“Commitments and Contingencies” to the Consoliddtgwncial Statements for a detailed description.

Because virtually all holders of retroactively gdcoptions issued by the Company were not involrext aware of the retroactive
pricing, the Company has taken certain actionsetd with the adverse tax consequences that maycbered by the holders of retroactively
priced options. The adverse tax consequences areetihoactively priced stock options vesting albecember 31, 2004 (“409A Affected
Options”) subject the option holder to a penaltydader IRC Section 409A (and, as applicable, sinpenalty taxes under California and
other state tax laws). One such action by the Compavolved offering to amend the 409A Affected ©@ps to increase the exercise price to
the market price on the actual grant date or\vifelg the market price at the time of the amendnmiEmt. amended options are not subject to
taxation under IRC Section 409A. Under IRS regalai these option amendments had to be completBgbgmber 31, 2006 for anyone
who was an executive officer when he or she rede¥®A Affected Options; the amendments for norncefs do not need to be completed
until December 31, 2007.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, weuaccapproximately $20.2 million payable to non-exee holders of the amended
options to compensate them for the resulting ire@eéa their option exercise prices. The $20.2 onillis payable in January 2008. Of the $.
million, $9.3 million was recorded as stock-basethpensation expense, and the remaining $10.9 milias recorded in common stock and
capital in excess of par value in the balance sHé®st amount of these bonuses will effectively répa the Company if and when the options
are exercised and the increased exercise pricgds l[dowever, there is no assurance that the optiolh be exercised and the employees will
retain the bonuses under all circumstances. Duhiediscal year ended June 30, 2007, we also redaaigproximately $13.9 million to
compensate certain option holders whose employhshterminated, or who had already exercised 408acfed Options, for the additional
taxes they incurred under IRC Section 409A (andpudicable, similar state tax laws).

Three of the Company’s option holders were sulifetite December 31, 2006 deadline described a#@mardingly, in December
2006, the Company offered to amend the 409A Afté@etions held by Mr. Wallace, the Company’s Cliigécutive Officer, and two
former executive officers to increase the exerpisee so that these options will not subject thBaspholder to a penalty tax under IRC
Section 409A. All three individuals accepted the@any’s offer. In addition, the Company agreeddg gach of the three individuals a cash
bonus in January 2008 equal to the aggregate iseliagahe exercise prices for his amended optieasMr. Wallace, the amount of this
bonus is $0.4 million. To account for these actjdhs Company has recorded a charge of $0.3 miliehof amount reclassified from capital
in excess of par, during the fiscal year ended 3&007. We are involved in several litigatioseaas described in Note 12, “Litigation and
Other Legal Matters” to the Consolidated FinanSi@tements. We cannot predict the outcome of tbases, and we cannot estimate the
likelihood or potential dollar amount of any adwerssults.
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Working capital decreased to $2,179.6 million adwfe 30, 2007, compared to $2,594.5 million atuak 30, 2006. This decrease is
primarily due to cash payments for the ASR progaamm acquisitions in the fiscal year ended Jun€B07. As of June 30, 2007, our princi
sources of liquidity consisted of $1,710.6 milliohcash, cash equivalents, and marketable seaur@ier liquidity is affected by many factc
some of which are based on the normal ongoing tipasaof the business, and others of which relatbé uncertainties of global economies
and the semiconductor and the semiconductor equipmaustries. Although cash requirements will fuate based on the timing and extent
of these factors, we believe that cash generated @iperations, together with the liquidity providegexisting cash balances, will be
sufficient to satisfy our liquidity requirements fat least the next twelve months.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Under our foreign-currency risk management strategyutilize derivative instruments to protect ouerests from unanticipated
fluctuations in earnings and cash flows causeddbgtiity in currency exchange rates. This finahelgposure is monitored and managed ¢
integral part of our overall risk management progrhich focuses on the unpredictability of finamererkets and seeks to reduce the
potentially adverse effects that the volatilitytbése markets may have on our operating resultscdiénue our policy of hedging our current
and forecasted foreign currency exposures with ingdgstruments having tenors of up to 18 monthee dutstanding hedge contracts, with
maximum maturity of 13 months, were as follows:

As of June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Cash flow hedge contrac
Purchast $ 4,651 $ 15,17
Sell (242,94)) (167,529
Other foreign currency hedge contrz
Purchast 126,99: 128,40¢
Sell (265,379 (260,164
Net $(376,67) $(284,11)
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ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKE T RISK

We are exposed to financial market risks, includihgnges in interest rates, foreign currency exghaates and marketable equity
security prices. To mitigate these risks, we wilierivative financial instruments, such as foreigrrency hedges. We do not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative or tradinggmses. All of the potential changes noted belasvmsed on sensitivity analyses performed
on our financial position as of June 30, 2007. Attesults may differ materially.

As of June 30, 2007, we had an investment portfaflitxed income securities of $988.1 million, exding those classified as cash and
cash equivalents (detail of these securities isided in Note 3, “Marketable Securities” to the Golidated Financial Statements found under
Item 8, “Financial Statements and SupplementaraDatthis Annual Report on Form 10-K). These séims, as with all fixed income
instruments, are subject to interest rate riskwitidall in value if market interest rates increasf market interest rates were to increase
immediately and uniformly by 10% from levels aslahe 30, 2007, the fair value of the portfolio wbdécline by $5.1 million.

As of June 30, 2007, we had net forward contractetl $376.7 million in foreign currency in orderhedge certain currency exposures
(detail of these contracts and hedging activitteiséluded in Note 13, “Derivative Instruments atetlging Activities” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements). If we had entered into tlvesgracts on June 30, 2007, the U.S. dollar edprivavould have been $365.0 million. A
10% adverse move in all currency exchange ratestaify the contracts would decrease the fair vafube contracts by $50.3 million.
However, if this occurred, the fair value of thederlying exposures hedged by the contracts woulckase by a similar amount. Accordingly,
we believe that, as a result of the hedging ofagemf our foreign currency exposure, changes istmalevant foreign currency exchange r
should have no material impact on income or cashdl]
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KLA-TENCOR CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of June 30,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 722,51: $1,129,19
Marketable securitie 988,11¢ 1,196,60!
Accounts receivable, n 581,50( 439,89¢
Inventories, ne 535,37( 449,15t
Deferred income taxe 339,13¢ 307,56:
Other current asse 86,13¢ 74,58
Total current asse 3,252,77. 3,596,99:
Land, property and equipment, 1 382,24( 395,41:
Goodwill 311,85¢ 49,29:
Purchased intangibles, r 175,43. 21,04¢
Other asset 500,95( 513,16!
Total asset $4,623,24" $4,575,91.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 92,168 $ 95,19:
Deferred system prof 201,74° 226,14:
Unearned revent 99,25¢ 80,54:
Other current liabilitie 680,04: 600,60:
Total current liabilities 1,073,20 1,002,48
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11 and
Minority interest in subsidiar — 5,43¢
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 1,000 sharéeeréd, none outstandir — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000 sharesardil, 230,599 and 223,266 shares issued, 19
and 199,144 shares outstanding, as of June 30,&t0Jdune 30, 2006, respectiv 191 19¢
Capital in excess of par vall 967,69! 1,421,17.
Retained earning 2,570,75 2,137,711
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 11,40¢ 8,90¢
Total stockholdel equity 3,550,04. 3,567,99.
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $4,623,24' $4,575,91

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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KLA-TENCOR CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005
Revenues

Product $2,308,94: $1,713,23  $1,767,67

Service 422,28 357,39( 314,20:

Total revenue 2,731,22! 2,070,62 2,081,87!

Costs and operating expens

Costs of revenues 1,190,322 942,09: 871,00(

Engineering, research and developme 437,51 393,82: 351,98

Selling, general and administrativ 513,52! 424,92. 313,77
Total costs and operating expen 2,141,36. 1,760,83! 1,536,75!
Income from operatior 589,86¢ 309,79 545,12(
Interest income and other, r 87,361 68,06" 37,95¢
Income before income taxes and minority inte 677,23! 377,85¢ 583,07t
Provision for income taxe 150,50¢ 1,507 141,40!
Income before minority intere 526,72t 376,35 441 .67:
Minority interest 1,372 4,101 3,37¢
Net income $ 528,09¢ $ 380,45: $ 445,04¢
Net income per shar

Basic $ 268 $ 192 $ 2.27

Diluted $ 261 $ 18 $ 2.21
Weightec-average number of shart

Basic 197,12¢ 198,62! 196,34¢

Diluted 202,20 204,09 201,12¢
B includes the following amounts related tuity awards

Costs of revenue $ 29,18: $ 29,62( $ 9,167

Engineering, research and developn 42,43 49,50¢ 12,25¢

Selling, general and administrati 37,16¢ 85,61 15,58(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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KLA-TENCOR CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock and

Accumulated

Capital in Excess of Deferred Other Total

Par Value Retained Stock-Based Comprehensive Stockholders’
(in thousands) Shares Amount Earnings Compensatior Income Equity
Balances at June 30, 20 196,83¢ $1,317,33: $1,431,20 $ (70,309 $ 2,15¢ $ 2,680,38!
Components of comprehensive income:
Net income — — 445,04¢ — — 445,04¢
Change in unrealized gain on investments — — — — 5,31¢ 5,31¢
Currency translation adjustmer — — — — 3,92¢ 3,92¢
Deferred gains on cash flow hedging instruments — — — — 4,87( 4,87(
Total comprehensive incon 459,16:
Net issuance under employee stock pl 4,73¢ 133,60: — — — 133,60:
Repurchase of common stock (4,94¢6) (203,65%) — — — (203,65%)
Cash dividends paid ($0.12 per sh: — — (23,649 — — (23,644)
Stock-based compensation — 18,52¢ — 16,581 — 35,10¢
Tax benefits of stock option transactions — 15,13¢ — — — 15,13¢
Other — 578 — — — 57¢
Balances at June 30, 2005 196,62« 1,281,51 1,852,60! (53,729 16,27 3,096,67!
Elimination of deferred stock-based compensatioonugdoption of SFAS

No. 123(R) — (53,729 — 53,72: — —

Components of comprehensive income:
Net income — — 380,45. — — 380,45.
Change in unrealized gain on investme — — — — (5,279 (5,279)
Currency translation adjustments — — — — 1,297 1,297
Deferred gains on cash flow hedging instruments — — — — (3,39)) (3,39))
Total comprehensive income 373,08
Net issuance under employee stock pl 7,04¢ 212,65! — — — 212,65
Repurchase of common sta (4,529 (221,41) — — — (221,41)
Cash dividends paid ($0.48 per share) — — (95,34%) — — (95,34%)
Stock-based compensation — 170,47 — — — 170,47:
Tax benefits of stock option transactic — 31,87: — — — 31,87:
Balances at June 30, 2006 199,14 1,421,37: 2,137,711 — 8,90¢ 3,567,99
Components of comprehensive incor
Net income — — 528,09¢ — — 528,09¢
Change in unrealized gain on investments — — — — 2,152 2,152
Currency translation adjustments — — — — (1,609 (1,609
Deferred losses on cash flow hedging instrum — — — — 5,39¢ 5,39¢
Total comprehensive income 534,04:
Defined benefit obligation upon adoption of SFAS 18et of tax — — — — (3,44¢€) (3,44¢)
Net issuance under employee stock pl 7,32¢ 263,24! — — — 263,24}
Repurchase of common stock (15,109 (808,467) — — — (808,46))
Cash dividends paid ($0.48 per sh¢ — — (95,057 — — (95,057
Stock-based compensation — 86,26 — — — 86,26:
Tax benefits of stock option transactions — 3,86¢ — — — 3,86¢
Stock options assumed from acquisitions and ¢ — 1,60( — — — 1,60(
Balances at June 30, 2007 191,36¢ $ 967,88¢ $2,570,75 $ — $ 11,40¢ $ 3,550,04;

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment charge
Non-cash, stoc-based compensatic
Minority interest
Net loss (gain) on sale of marketable securitiesaher investment
Deferred income taxe
Tax benefit from employee stock optic
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensation ct
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of assejisid and liabilities assumed
in business combination
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Deferred system prof
Other current liabilitie:
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash rece
Purchase of property, plant and equipn
Purchase of availat-for-sale securitie
Proceeds from sale of availa-for-sale securitie
Proceeds from maturity of availa-for-sale securitie
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Cash flows from financing activitie
Issuance of common sto
Payment of dividends to stockhold:
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensation ct
Stock repurchase
Proceeds from sale of minority interest in subsid
Net cash used in financing activiti
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Supplemental cash flow disclosur
Income taxes paid, n
Interest paic

Year Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
$ 528,09¢ $ 380,45: $  445,04¢
109,29 69,43¢ 70,15:
67,55( — —
99,63 164,74: 37,00:
(1,379) (4,107) (3,375
(2,29¢) 8,17¢ 3,20¢
(13,94/) (134,38 (53,497
3,86¢ 31,87: 15,13+
(7,046) (14,41 —
(107,34} (114,929 36,64
9,01¢ (87,676 (18,295
(19,439 (36,34() (33,25
(45,567) 27,05: 2,751
(24,39 14,00t (70,819
14,63: 11,28: 76,03
610,68 315,16 506,73
(521,69) (7,662) (44,629
(83,787 (73,810 (59,67%)
(3,299,97) (4,625,24) (3,537,461
3,298,63! 4,735,22! 3,183,36:i
207,54 196,56: 333,79°
(399,269 225,07/ (124,599
263,24 212,65: 133,60:
(95,05 (95,34%) (23,649
7,04¢ 14,417 —
(808,46 (221,41) (203,65¢)
— 4,73¢ 12,63:
(633,22) (84,95¢) (81,069
15,12¢ 10,74¢ 8,21¢
(406,68() 466,02 309,28:
1,129,19 663,16: 353,88:
$ 72251 $1,129,19 $ 663,16
$ 209,51 $ 131,43( $ 18531
$ 2,17 $ 1,61 $ 1,11

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Operations and Principles of Consotlation. KLA-Tencor Corporation (“KLA-Tencor” or the “Compaf) is a global
provider of process control and yield managemehtisms for the semiconductor manufacturing andtesl microelectronics industries.
Headquartered in San Jose, California, KLA-Ten@as $ubsidiaries both in the United States and ymkarkets throughout the world.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include tiseunts of KLA-Tencor and its majority-owned sulisitts, and the ownership
interests of minority investors are recorded asomity interests. All significant intercompany bat@s and transactions have been eliminated.

Management EstimatesThe preparation of the Consolidated Financial &tatgs in conformity with accounting principles gexily
accepted in the United States of America requirasagement to make estimates and assumptions teet thfe reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the ConsolidatedaRirial Statements and the reported amounts of vegeand expenses during the reporting
periods. Actual results could differ from thoserastes.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. KLA-Tencor has evaluated the estimated fair valt@nancial instruments using available
market information and valuation methodologies mwipled by the custodian. The use of different rmadssumptions and/or estimation
methodologies could have a significant effect andhtimated fair value amounts. The fair value bAKrencor’s cash, cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and othegrddiabilities approximate their carrying amoudtg to the relatively short maturity of
these items.

Cash Equivalents and Marketable SecuritiesAll highly liquid debt instruments with original eemaining maturities of less than th
months at the date of purchase are considered ¢adieequivalents. Marketable securities are ginetassified as available-for-sale for use
in current operations if required and are repoatefdir value, with unrealized gains and lossesphtax, presented as a separate compont
accumulated other comprehensive income. The faievaf marketable securities is based on quotedenarices. All realized gains and
losses and unrealized losses and declines indhaievthat are other than temporary are recordedrinings in the period of occurrence. The
specific identification method is used to deterntime realized gains and losses on investments.

Non-Marketable Equity Securities and Other Investmats. KLA-Tencor acquires certain equity investmentstfe promotion of
business and strategic objectives, and to the ettese investments continue to have strategicy&uA-Tencor typically does not attempt
to reduce or eliminate the inherent market risksndfharketable equity securities and other investsare recorded at historical cost. Non-
marketable equity securities and other investmargsncluded in “Other assets” on the balance siat-marketable equity securities are
subject to a periodic impairment review; howeviere are no open-market valuations, and the imgaitranalysis requires significant
judgment. This analysis includes assessment dghtleste’s financial condition, the business outlook far fitroducts and technology, its
projected results and cash flow, the likelihooabfaining subsequent rounds of financing and thgathof any relevant contractual equity
preferences held by KLA-Tencor or others.

Variable Interest Entities. FASB Interpretation No. (“FIN") 46(R)Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, anargretation of ARI
No. 51, requires that if the Company is the primary biedfy of a variable interest entity, the assetilities, and results of operations of
the variable interest entity should be includethn Company’s consolidated financial statementsARlencor has concluded that none of the
Company'’s equity investments are material to then@any’s financial position and do not require cdidstion as they are either not variable
interest entities or, in the event they are vagablerest entities, that KLA-Tencor is not consédeto be the primary beneficiary.
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Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (oins&ih, first-out basis) or market. Demonstratigrits are stated at their
manufacturing cost and reserves are recorded t® thtia demonstration units at their net realizablee. KLA-Tencor reviews the adequacy
of its inventory reserves on a quarterly basis. Chenpany reviews and sets standard costs semidynatiaurrent manufacturing costs in
order to approximate actual costs. The Companysufie@turing overhead standards for product costgalculated assuming full absorption
of forecasted spending over projected volumes séeljLifor excess capacity. Abnormal inventory cesth as costs of idle facilities, excess
freight and handling costs, and wasted materigisil@gge) are recognized as current period chafges Company writes down product
inventory based on forecasted demand and techiwalogfisolescence and parts inventory based orupage. These factors are impacted by
market and economic conditions, technology changms, product introductions and changes in stratéigéction and require estimates that
may include uncertain elements. Actual demand nifégrdrom forecasted demand and such differencag have a material effect on
recorded inventory values.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. A majority of the trade receivables are derivedrfreales to large multinational semiconductor
manufacturers throughout the world. In order to iworpotential credit losses, the Company perfoomgoing credit evaluations of our
customers’ financial condition. An allowance foruthtful accounts is maintained for probable creslisks based upon the Company’s
assessment of the expected collectibility of aticamts receivable. The allowance for doubtful aoteis reviewed on a quarterly basis to
assess the adequacy of the allowance.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at cost, resta@fmulated depreciation. Depreciation of propanty
equipment is based on the straight-line method theeestimated useful lives of the assets, whietganerally thirty to thirty-five years for
buildings, ten to fifteen years for leasehold immments, five to seven years for furniture andufies, and two to five years for machinery
and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortigéle straightine method over the shorter of the life of theatetl asset or the term
the underlying lease. Construction in process doéslepreciate until the assets are placed inaridepreciation expense for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $58.3 mi$&2.4 million and $48.0 million, respectively.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets As required by SFAS No. 14&oodwill and Other Intangible Assetgoodwill is not amortized but is
subject to impairment tests annually, or earliéndficators of potential impairment exist, usinfaa-value-based approach. Purchased
technology, patents, trademarks and other intaagibtets are presented at cost, net of accumalatedization. Intangible assets are
amortized on a straight line basis which approxésdheir estimated useful lives and assessed fmairment under SFAS No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of L-Lived Assets Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase pwer the fair value of
the net tangible and identifiable intangible assetyuired in each business combination. The Compampleted its annual evaluation of the
goodwill by reporting unit during the quarter ende@ecember 31, 2006, and concluded that there waspairment. There have been no
significant events or circumstances affecting thiation of goodwill subsequent to the impairmest performed in the second quarter of
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.KLA-Tencor evaluates the carrying value of its ldivgd assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying valudefasset may be impaired in accordance with thagioms of SFAS No. 144ccounting fol
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived AsseAs impairment loss is recognized when estimatedré cash flows expected to result from
the use of the asset including disposition, is thaga the carrying value of the asset. Such aninmeat charge would be measured as the
excess of the asset over its fair value.

Software Development CostsKLA-Tencor capitalizes certain internal and extégwsts incurred to acquire and create internal use
software in accordance with AICPA Statement of farsi(“SOP”) No. 98-1,
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Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Dmpedl or Obtained for Internal Us. Capitalized software is included in property and
equipment when development is complete and is degtesl over three to five years when placed iniserv

Concentration of Credit Risk. Financial instruments that potentially subject KII&ncor to significant concentrations of credit risk
consist primarily of cash equivalents, short-terrd aon-current marketable securities, trade acso@eivable and derivative financial
instruments used in hedging activities. KLA-Tentwoests in a variety of financial instruments, sashbut not limited to, certificates of
deposit, corporate and municipal bonds, UnitedeStateasury and agency securities, equity secutie, by policy, limits the amount of
credit exposure with any one financial institutmmcommercial issuer. KLA-Tencor has not experiehaey material credit losses on its
investments.

A majority of KLA-Tencor’s trade receivables areigted from sales to large multinational semiconduchanufacturers located
throughout the world, with a majority located inidsConcentration of credit risk with respect tadie receivables is considered to be limited
due to the Company’s customer base and the diyafits geographic sales areas. KLA-Tencor perfoangoing credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial condition and generally regsino collateral to secure accounts receivable.-KeAcor maintains an allowance for
potential credit losses based upon expected citiiiitgt of all accounts receivable. In addition, KETencor may utilize letters of credit or
non-recourse factoring to mitigate credit risk witensidered appropriate.

KLA-Tencor is exposed to credit loss in the evemanperformance by counterparties on the foreikphange contracts used in
hedging activities and in certain factoring trarigas. These counterparties are large internatifimahcial institutions and to date no such
counterparty has failed to meet its financial ofigns under such contracts.

Foreign Currency. The functional currencies of KLA-Tencor’s signifiteforeign subsidiaries are generally the locatencies.
Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of the figre operations are translated to U.S. dollars ateat period end exchange rates, and revenues
and expenses are translated to U.S. dollars usegge exchange rates in effect during the pefiibd.gains and losses from foreign curre
translation of these subsidiaries’ financial statata are recorded directly into a separate comparestockholders’ equity under the caption
“Accumulated other comprehensive income.”

KLA-Tencor’s subsidiaries in Israel and Singapose the U.S. dollar as their functional currencycéydingly, assets and liabilities of
these subsidiaries are translated using exchategiraeffect at the end of the period, excephfmr-monetary assets, such as inventories and
property, plant and equipment that are translasgugLhistorical exchange rates. Revenues and aostsanslated using average exchange
rates for the period, except for costs relatedhdsé balance sheet items that are translated hisitoggical exchange rates. The resulting
translation gains and losses are included in thes@laated Statements of Operations as incurred.

Derivative Financial Instruments. KLA- Tencor uses financial instruments, such as forweaothange contracts and currency option
hedge a portion of, but not all, existing and fasted foreign currency denominated transactionsatggd to occur within twelve months. The
purpose of KLA-Tencor’s foreign currency programdananage the effect of exchange rate fluctuationsertain foreign currency
denominated revenues, costs and eventual cash fldhweseffect of exchange rate changes on forwaciange contracts is expected to offset
the effect of exchange rate changes on the undgriyédged items. KLA-Tencor believes these findnegruments do not subject the
Company to speculative risk that would otherwisiliefrom changes in currency exchange rates. KleA€br does not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative or tradingpmses.

55



Table of Contents

KLA-TENCOR CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

All of KLA-Tencor’s derivative financial instrumesitare recorded at fair value based upon quotedanprices for comparable
instruments. For derivative instruments designatetiqualifying as cash flow hedges of forecastegidgo currency denominated transacti
the effective portion of the gain or loss on thieedges is reported as a component of accumulated cdomprehensive income in
stockholders’ equity, and is reclassified into @aga when the hedged transaction affects earniftige transaction being hedged fails to
occur, or if a portion of any derivative is ineffiee, the gain or loss on the associated finano&tument is recorded immediately in earnii
For derivative instruments used to hedge existimgifin currency denominated assets or liabilities,gain or loss on these hedges is recc
immediately in earnings to offset the changes @nf#ir value of the assets or liabilities being dyed

Warranty. KLA-Tencor provides standard warranty coveragetsmsystems for 40 hours per week for twelve morghsyiding labor
and parts necessary to repair the systems durngydihranty period. KLA-Tencor accounts for therastied warranty cost as a charge to costs
of revenues when revenue is recognized. The estthaarranty cost is based on historical produdoperance and field expenses. Utilizing
actual service records, KLA-Tencor calculates therage service hours and parts expense per sysigapplies the actual labor and
overhead rates to determine the estimated warddnatsge. KLA-Tencor updates these estimated changasquarterly basis. The actual
product performance and/or field expense profilay wiffer, and in those cases KLA-Tencor adjustsrargy accruals accordingly (see Note
11, “Commitments and Contingencies”).

Revenue RecognitionKLA-Tencor recognizes revenue when persuasive ecielef an arrangement exists, delivery has occured
services have been rendered, the seller’s prifieeid or determinable, and collectibility is reaably assured. KLA-Tencor derives revenue
from three sources—system sales, spare part sadeseavice contracts. KLA-Tencor recognizes revdpusystem sales upon acceptance by
the customer that the system has been installeésaqbrating according to predetermined specifioat KLA-Tencor also recognizes
revenue prior to acceptance from the customemlasnfs:

* When system sales to independent distributors havastallation requirement, contain no acceptageement, and 100%
payment is due upon shipment, revenue is recogmizeshipment

* When the installation of the system is deemed petfry, revenue is recognized upon shipment. Thigguoof revenue associat
with installation is deferrec

* When the customer fab has already accepted the teaievith the same specifications, and it carobgctively demonstrated tt
it meets all of the required acceptance criterianughipment, a portion of revenue can be recograzéide time of shipment.
Revenue recognized upon shipment is exclusiveeithount allocable to the installation element.dRere attributable to the
installation element represents the fair valuenefadllation;

» When the customer withholds signature on our aeceet document due to issues unrelated to producirpence, revenue is
recognized when the system is performing as inteaghel meets all published and contractually agspedifications

*  When the system is damaged during transit, revesnezognized upon receipt of cash payment froncttistomer

Total revenue recognized without a written acceganom the customer was approximately 13.5%, 4a#i#h6.6% of total revenues 1
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and, 28§3ectively. The increase in revenue recogni@dtbut a written acceptance is prima
driven by increased shipments of tools that hakesadly met the required acceptance criteria at tbes®mer fabs, and an increase in the
revenue derived from systems with perfunctory itetian. Shipping charges billed to customers auded in system revenue, and the
related shipping costs are included in costs ofémeres.
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KLA-Tencor also allows for multiple element reverareangements in cases where certain elementsailésa contract are not delivered
and accepted at the same time. In such cases, Kdnkdrr defers the relative fair value of the undeldd element until that element is
delivered to and accepted by the customer. To hsidered a separate element, the product or servipgestion must represent a separate
unit of accounting and fulfill the following critex. (a) the delivered item(s) has value to theamustr on a standalone basis; (b) there is
objective and reliable evidence of the fair valfithe undelivered item(s); and (c) if the arrangetecludes a general right of return relative
to the delivered item(s), delivery or performané¢éhe undelivered item(s) is considered probabld substantially in the control of the
Company. If the arrangement does not meet alllogecriteria, the entire amount of the sales emntis deferred until all elements are
accepted by the customer.

Spare parts revenue is recognized when the prédischeen shipped, risk of loss has passed to gtensar and collection of the
resulting receivable is probable.

Service and maintenance contract revenue is repegmatably over the term of the maintenance contfamaintenance is included in
an arrangement, which includes a software licegseesnent, amounts related to maintenance are tdhbbased on vendor specific objective
evidence. Non-standard warranty includes service®mental to the standard 40-hour per week coedi@gwelve months. Non-standard
warranty is deferred as unearned revenue andagmnéed ratably as revenue when the applicableamngrterm period commences.
Consulting and training revenue is recognized wherrelated services are performed, and colleit}ilid reasonably assured.

Trade-in rights are occasionally granted to custsretrade in tools in connection with subsequeemthases. The Company estimates
the value of the trade-in right and reduces themeae of the initial sale.

The deferred system profit balance as of June @7 2nd 2006 was $201.7 million and $226.1 milli@spectively, and equals the
amount of system revenue that was invoiced anddwhipment but deferred, less applicable prododtvearranty costs. KLA-Tencor also
defers the fair value of extended service contrastsof non-standard warranty bundled with equipmsates as unearned revenue. The
unearned revenue balance was $99.3 and $80.5mali@f June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Software is incidental to the Company’s productdetermined in accordance with SOP No. 9%&tware Revenue Recognitiamd
Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 03A)plicability of SOP 97-2 to NoSeftware Deliverables in an Arrangement Contail
More-Than-Incidental SoftwareThe Company periodically reviews the softwarerelat of products in accordance with SOP 97-2 afdrEl
Issue No. 03-05.

Research and Development CostsResearch and development costs are expensediaethc

Strategic Development Agreementssross engineering, research and development exparese partially offset by $12.7 million,
$11.4 million and $7.9 million in external fundingceived under certain strategic development prograrimarily from government grants in
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and, 28§ectively.

Shipping and Handling Costs.Shipping and handling costs are included as a caemgmf cost of sales.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Plan®rior to July 1, 2005, the Company applied Accaum®rinciples Board (“APB”)
Opinion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employaed its related Interpretations and provided tlqgired pro forma disclosures of
SFAS No. 123Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatitmaccordance with APB Opinion No. 25, a non-¢astick-based compensation
expense was recognized for any options for whiehettercise price was below the market price oratteal grant date. The
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charge for the options with an exercise price belmvmarket price on the actual grant date wasleégquhe number of options multiplied by

the difference between the exercise price and e price of the option shares on the actualtgtate. That expense was amortized over
the vesting period of the option.

Pro forma information regarding net income andinedme per share is required by SFAS No. 123 asdbkan determined as if the
Company had accounted for its employee stock psechan and employee stock option plans underaih&dlue method of SFAS No. 123.

Year ended

(in thousands, except per share data) June 30, 200
Net income $ 445,04
Add:

Stocl-based compensation expense included in reportedcwhe, net of ta 23,76¢
Deduct:

Total stock-based compensation expense determimdet fair value based method for &

awards, net of ta (108,926

Net incom—pro forma $ 359,89:
Earnings per shar
As reported (pr-forma)

Basic $ 2.21

Diluted $ 2.21
Pro forma

Basic $ 1.82

Diluted $ 1.7¢

Beginning July 1, 2005, the Company has accourdedtbck-based compensation using the fair valustank options based on Black-
Scholes option-pricing model, consistent with thevisions of SFAS No. 123(R) and Securities andHaxge Commission Staff Accounting
Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 107. The Company elected toopad the modified prospective application methogasided by SFAS No. 123(R).
Accordingly, during the fiscal year ended JuneZ6, the Company recorded stock-based compensatmanse totaling the amount that
would have been recognized had the fair value naeltieen applied under SFAS No. 123 since the effedate of SFAS No. 123 for the
grants made before the fiscal year ended June0B®, 2nd under SFAS No. 123(R) for the grants ndadmg the fiscal years ended June 30,
2006 and 2007.

SFAS No. 123(R) requires the use of option priegimadels that were not developed for use in valumgleyee stock options. The
Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developadife in estimating the fair value of short-livectleange traded options that have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferableadidition, option-pricing models require the inpbihighly subjective assumptions, including
the option’s expected life and the expected priatility of the underlying stock. The expectedcit@rice volatility assumption was
determined using the implied volatility of the Coamy’s common stock. The Company determined thali@awolatility is more reflective of
market conditions and a better indicator of expatetatility than a blended volatility. Prior todtadoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the
Company used a combination of historical and ingplielatility in deriving the expected volatility asmption.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Pasitlo. 123(R)-3Transition Election Related to Accounting for TdfeEts of
Share-Based Payment Awa{“FSP 123R-3"). The Company has elected not epathe alternative transition method provided in
FSP 123R-3 for calculating the tax effects of stbaked
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compensation pursuant to SFAS No. 123(R). The Comfilowed paragraph 81 of SFAS No. 123(R) to akdte the initial pool of excess
tax benefits and to determine the subsequent ingrattie Additional Paid-in-Capital (“APIC”) pool drConsolidated Statements of Cash
Flows of the tax effects of employee stock-basedpensation awards that are outstanding upon adopfiSFAS No. 123(R). The Company
has elected to ignore the indirect tax effectshafrs-based compensation deductions when calculdingindfall benefits and recognizes the
full effect of these deductions in the income steat in the period in which the taxable event oscur

Advertising ExpensesAdvertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adiingiexpenses for the fiscal years ended June08J, 2006
and 2005 were $4.9 million, $5.0 million and $4.#lion, respectively.

Income Taxes KLA-Tencor accounts for income taxes in accordamite SFAS No. 109Accounting for Income Taxesvhich require:
that deferred tax assets and liabilities be reasghusing enacted tax rates for the effect of teangalifferences between the book and tax
bases of recorded assets and liabilities. SFASLR®.also requires that deferred tax assets be edduca valuation allowance if it is more
likely than not that a portion of the deferred &sset will not be realized. KLA-Tencor has deteedithat the Company’s future taxable
income will be sufficient to recover all of its éefed tax assets. However, should there be a charigeability to recover the Company’s
deferred tax assets, KLA-Tencor could be requioecttord a valuation allowance against the Commadgferred tax assets. This would
result in an increase to the Company’s tax prowigiothe period in which the Company determined tha recovery was not probable.

In addition, the calculation of the Company’s t@bllities involves dealing with uncertainties hretapplication of complex tax
regulations. KLA-Tencor recognizes liabilities fmticipated tax audit issues in the U.S. and direjurisdictions based on our best estimate
of whether, and the extent to which, additionalpgayments are probable. If the Company ultimatekgxnines that payment of these amc
is unnecessary, the Company will reverse the ligtahd recognize a tax benefit during the periogvhich the Company determines that the
liability is no longer necessary. KLA-Tencor witgord an additional charge in the Company’s prowidor taxes in the period in which the
Company determines that the recorded tax liakgitgss than the Company expects the ultimate sisesd to be.

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculatedibiglithg net income available to common stockhold®rshe
weighted-average number of common shares outstguadiring the period. Diluted earnings per sha@lsulated by using the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding dtirvengeriod increased to include the number of afdit shares of common stock that
would have been outstanding if the dilutive poi@nghares of common stock had been issued. Thevdileffect of outstanding options and
restricted stock units is reflected in diluted éags per share by application of the treasury stoekhod, which includes consideration of
stock-based compensation required by SFAS No. 1288 SFAS No. 12&arnings Per Share

Contingencies and Litigation.The Company is subject to the possibility of logses various contingencies. Considerable judgnent
necessary to estimate the probability and amouahgfloss from such contingencies. An accrual idenahen it is probable that a liability
has been incurred or an asset has been impairetth@mgnount of loss can be reasonably estimatesl Cimpany accrues a liability and
charges operations for the estimated costs expezteelincurred over the next twelve months of ditjation or settlement of asserted and
unasserted claims existing as of the balance sla¢et See Iltem 3, “Legal Proceedings” and Note¢ @dmmitments and Contingencies” for a
detailed description.

Reclassifications.The Company has reclassified certain prior peridrices to conform to the correct presentations&he
reclassifications did not impact any prior amouwftseported total assets, total liabilities, stoakiers’ equity, results of operations or cash
flows.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncementdn February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T8®& Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities—Including an AmendmenfF#SB Statement No. 11%hich is effective for the Company in fiscal ygdeginning
July 1, 2008. This statement permits an entityhtmose to measure many financial instruments artdinasther items at fair value at specified
election dates. Subsequent unrealized gains asddam items for which the fair value option hasrbelected will be reported in earnings.
The Company is currently evaluating the potentigbact of this statement on its consolidated finaroosition, results of operations and cash
flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in accordancthwenerally accepted accounting principles, anmheds disclosures about fair value
measurements. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 deetefe for the Company for fiscal years beginnildy 1, 2008. The Company is
evaluating the impact of the provisions of thidestaent on its consolidated financial position, hesof operations and cash flows.

In June 2006, the FASB published FIN 48ccounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation of FASB Statement No. 109
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty mome taxes recognized in an enterprise’s finastébéments in accordance with SFAS
No. 109,Accounting for Income Taxe&IN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold andsueanent attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position take¥xpected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 arovides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounitinigterim periods, disclosure, and transition. F8lis effective for the Company in fiscal
years beginning July 1, 2007. Any differences betwi#he amounts recognized in the statements aidiabposition prior to the adoption
FIN 48 and the amounts reported after adoptionl@lhccounted for as a cumulative-effect adjustmesrdrded to the beginning balance of
retained earnings. In addition, the adoption of BB\will result in the reclassification of certainrecognized tax benefits from current to non-
current liabilities in the Company’s statementiofhcial position. The Company is currently evahmthe potential impact of the
implementation of FIN 48 on its consolidated fin@hposition, results of operations and cash flows.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. ¥a&gounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instrument amendment of SFAS
No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments &fwtiging Activities and SFAS No. 140, Accountinglfansfers and Servicing
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabili. This Statement permits fair value remeasurenarary hybrid financial instrument that
contains an embedded derivative that otherwise dvaduire bifurcation. This Statement is effecfioethe Company for all financial
instruments acquired or issued after July 1, 200&. adoption of SFAS No. 155 is not expected teetematerial effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position, results of opanasi or cash flows.

Restatements of Prior Period Consolidated Financiabtatements in Previous FilingsOn September 28, 2006, the Company
announced that it would have to restate previoissiyed financial statements to correct for pasp@eting for stock options. As a result of an
investigation of the Company'’s historical stockioptpractices by a Special Committee appointechbyGompany’s Board of Directors, it
was discovered that certain stock options, primahibse granted from July 1, 1997 to June 30, 2888 ,been retroactively priced for all
employees who received these grants. In the Con'pémyual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2006 (filed on
January 29, 2007) and its quarterly reports on FiBr® for the quarters ended September 30, 200& Deer 31, 2006 and March 31, 2007
(filed on January 29, 2007, February 9, 2007 angl M&007, respectively), the Company restated¢ldonsolidated financial statements as
of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20032804, (2) its selected consolidated financial det®f and for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002; and (3) itadited quarterly financial data for the first thigagarters in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2006 and for all quarters in the fiscal year endignke 30, 2005. All financial information includedthis Annual Report on Form Xv+eflects
the restatement and does not contain any furtiséatesment.

60



Table of Contents

KLA-TENCOR CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

NOTE 2—FINANCIAL STATEMENT COMPONENTS
Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Accounts receivable, ne
Accounts receivable, gro $ 593,22¢ $ 452,00°
Allowance for doubtful accoun (11,729 (12,109

$ 581,50( $ 439,89¢

Inventories, net

Customer service par $ 175,76: $ 169,74
Raw material 155,84¢ 100,53:
Work-in-process 105,25« 91,41
Finished goods and demonstration equipn 98,50’ 87,46

$ 535,37( $ 449,15¢

Land, property and equipment, n

Land $ 84,45¢ $ 86,40¢
Buildings and improvemen 151,46t 162,33
Machinery and equipme 419,84( 388,11
Office furniture and fixture 37,91¢ 42,76¢
Leasehold improvemen 141,23t 142,58
Construction in proces 17,191 12,80¢

852,10¢ 835,02:
Less: accumulated depreciati (469,86¢) (439,61)

$ 382,24( $ 395,41:

Other assets

Long-term investment $ 179,72 $ 164,55:
Deferred tax asse—long-term 309,48 338,27¢
Other 11,73¢ 10,33¢

$ 500,95( $ 513,16!

Other current liabilities

Warranty and retrofi $ 66,66¢ $ 50,60
Compensation and benef 332,05: 281,81
Income taxes payab 85,99: 126,75(
Other accrued expens 195,32¢ 141,43!

$ 680,04: $ 600,60¢

Accumulated other comprehensive incol

Currency translation adjustmel $ 11,067 $ 12,67
Gains (losses) on cash flow hedging instrumentspitaxes (benefits) of $3,269 in 2007 and $(49) i

2006 5,26¢€ (80)
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments, netxafstébenefits) of $(1,045) in 2007 and $(2,175) in

2006 (1,487 (3,687
Adjustment to initially apply FASB Statement No.8lfiet of taxes (benefits) of $(2,218) in 2( (3,446 —

$ 11,40¢ $ 8,90¢
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As of fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the net vatke of property and equipment includes assdtsfbesale of $12.8 million.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Interest income and other, n
Interest incom $76,20: $66,41" $38,78:
Interest expens (2,787) (2,17%) (2,750
Foreign exchange gail 14,15¢ 13,95¢ 4,76
Realized losses on sale of investme (1,607) (8,179 (3,209
Other 1,39: (1,960 (635)

$87,36: $68,06 $37,95¢

NOTE 3—MARKETABLE SECURITIES
The amortized costs and estimated fair value afritses available-for-sale as of June 30, 2007 201@b are as follows:

Gross Gross
Gross Unrealized Unrealized

Amortized Gross Fair
As of June 30, 2007 (in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasurie $ — $ — $ — $ —
U.S. Government agency securit 3,04: — — 3,041
Municipal bonds 1,000,44. 95 (2,667) 997,87
Corporate debt securiti 3,50( — — 3,50(
Corporate equity securiti¢ 244 39 — 283
Money market, bank deposits and ot 538,27! — — 538,27!
Subtotal 1,545,50! 134 (2,667) 1,542,97
Less: Cash equivalen 554,86( — — 554,86(
Marketable securitie $ 990,64! $ 134 $ (2,66)) $ 988,11¢

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized

Amortized
As of June 30, 2006 (in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Treasurie $ 25,81¢ $ 12¢ $ 37 $ 25,90¢
U.S. Government agency securit 354,23: — (667) 353,56°
Municipal bonds 1,006,59: 17 (5,53€) 1,001,07:
Corporate debt securiti — — — —
Corporate equity securitie 142 22C — 362
Money market, bank deposits and ot 804,01 — — 804,01
Subtotal 2,190,80. 36€ (6,240 2,184,92
Less: Cash equivalen 988,33 — (16) 988,32:
Marketable securitie $1,202,46. $ 36€ $ (6,229 $1,196,60!
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KLA-Tencor’s investment portfolio consists of batbrporate and government securities that have amouax maturity of 10 years. The
longer the duration of these securities, the moseeptible they are to changes in market intesgssrand bond yields. As yields increase,
those securities with a lower yield-at-cost shomak-to-market unrealized loss. All unrealized &ssare due to changes in interest rates and
bond yields. The Company has the ability to reafimefull value of all these investments upon matuihe following table summarizes the
fair value and gross unrealized losses of its itmests, aggregated by investment instrument argthesf time that the individual securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss positsoof June 30, 2007:

Gross
Unrealized

(in thousands) Fair Value Losses(1)
Municipal bonds $611,20: $ (2,667)
Total $611,20: $ (2,66))

(1) Ofthe total gross unrealized losses, approxim&i&|@00 of gross unrealized losses relates priyngrimunicipal bonds with a fair val
of $0.3 million that have been in a loss positionZ2 months or mort

The contractual maturities of securities classifischvailable-for-sale as of June 30, 2007, otfeer torporate equity securities,
regardless of the consolidated balance sheet fitad®in, are as follows:

Amortized Estimated
(in thousands) Cost Fair Value
Due within one yea $ 936,55¢ $ 936,44.
Due after one year through three ye 488,23. 486,53
Due after three yea 120,47: 119,71!

$1,545,26. $1,542,69

Actual maturities may differ from contractual matiess because borrowers may have the right toczglrepay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalties. Net realilsses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20@& 20d 2005 were approximately $1.6
million, $8.2 million and $3.2 million, respectiyel

NOTE 4—GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
The following table presents goodwill balances #tmimovements during the fiscal years ended Jun2@® and 2006:

(in thousands) Amount
As of June 30, 200 $ 47,44
Acquisitions 2,231
Adjustments (389
As of June 30, 200 $ 49,29.
Acquisitions 264,95t
Adjustments (2,399
As of June 30, 200 $311,85¢

63



Table of Contents

KLA-TENCOR CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of the net tangible and idliiie intangible assets acquired in
each business combination. The carrying value otlgidll was allocated to KLA-Tencor’s reporting unjpursuant to SFAS No. 142. In
accordance with SFAS No. 142, KLA-Tencor compldteénnual evaluation of the goodwill by reportingjt during the quarter ended
December 31, 2006, and concluded that there wampairment. There have been no significant eventsroumstances affecting the
valuation of goodwill subsequent to the impairmiest performed in the second quarter of the figeal ended June 30, 2007. Refer to
Note 5,“Business Combinations” for a detailed descriptidmcquisitions completed in the fiscal year endiede 30, 2007.

Adjustments to goodwill during the fiscal year eddeine 30, 2007 resulted from the purchase ofaimaining minority interest in a
development stage company which was consolidated srch 31, 2004. See Note 5, “Business Combonati for a detailed description.

Other Intangible Assets
The components of other intangible assets as & 30n2007 and June 30, 2006 were as follows:

(in thousands) As of June 30, 2007 As of June 30, 2006
Gross Gross
Range of Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Accumulated Net

Category Useful Lives Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Existing technolog 4-7years $ 96,53 $ 14,15. $ 82,38. $13,07¢ $ 5,01¢ $ 8,06(
Patent: 6-13 years 38,997 8,11« 30,88: 18,16: 5,622 12,53¢
Trade name / Tradema 4-10 years 20,83t 2,08¢ 18,74¢ 1,22t 77t 45C
Customer relationshiy 6-7 years 45,44¢ 3,68¢ 41,75¢ — — —
Other 0-1 year 10,12( 8,45¢ 1,662 20C 20C —

Total $211,93. $ 36,49¢ $17543. $32,66¢ $ 11,61°F $21,04¢

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, it determined that the Company would not pursue fullerelopment of certain patents
initially licensed during the fiscal year ended d0, 2006 for approximately $14.0 million. Sinbe Company did not have any alternative
use of these patents and the Company believesitheafue to be $0, the carrying value of $10.7ionlwas written off. This write off was
recorded as $10.0 million to R&D expense and $0llfom to cost of revenues in the fiscal year endade 30, 2007.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 200@a608, amortization expense for other intangiblesssas $29.4 million, $4.5 million
and $3.3 million, respectively. Based on intangémssets recorded as of June 30, 2007, and assamsupbsequent additions to, or
impairment of the underlying assets, the remaieistymated annual amortization expense is expeotbd as follows (in thousands):

Year ending June 30: Amount
2008 $ 33,50¢
2009 31,991
2010 31,90!
2011 30,89¢
2012 27,81
Thereafte 19,31¢
Total $175,43:
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NOTE 5—BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

All of the Companys qualifying business combinations have been adedubr using the purchase method of accountingsi@eratior
includes the cash paid and the value of optionsnasd, less any cash acquired, and excludes contieggloyee compensation payable in
cash. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R),@leenpany accounted for the intrinsic value of stoptions assumed related to future
services as deferred stock-based compensatiomveithckholders’ equity.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the 2oy completed the acquisition of the following inesses for net cash considera
of approximately $509.7 million (net cash considierafor ADE Corporation was $390.2 million) prinilgrto expand the Company’s product
portfolio:

Entity Date Acquired Business

ADE Corporatior October 200t Inspection and metrology product portfa
OnWafer Technologies, In January 200 Expanded offering of metrology solutio
SensArray Corporatio January 200 Expanded offering of metrology solutio
Japan ADE, Ltc April 2007 Distributor of ADE products in Jap:
Therm«Wave, Inc. May 2007 Expanded offering of metrology solutio

The following table summarizes the aggregate estichair values of the net assets acquired atppécable date of acquisition for the
above companies:

Preliminary

Purchase
(in thousands) Price Allocation
Cash $ 128,69¢
Current asset 173,36¢

Intangibles:

Existing technolog! 85,66(
Patents 30,20(
Trade name / Trademar 19,61(
Customer relationshiy 45,44¢
In Process R&L 5,50(
Other intangible asse 9,94¢
Noncurrent asse 41,51
Goodwill 264,95¢
Liabilities assumed(1 (165,35()
$ 639,54
Cash consideratic $ 638,39(
Value of options assume 1,152
Total consideratiol $ 639,54

(1) $17.1 million of accrued restructuring creaseda result of the Company’s acquisitions duriregfiscal year ended June 30, 2007 has
been included in liabilities assumed. The Compamgnfilated the restructuring plans on the completiate of the acquisitions. At
June 30, 2007, the balance of accrued restructigifigy7.0 million.

In addition to the acquisition transactions listdmbve, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007Ctdmpany acquired a development st
company for $15.0 million of which $3.0 million jgyable upon achievement of certain milestones nefollowing two years. The
acquisition has been accounted for as a purchasgsefs primarily consisting of in-process researchdevelopment (“IPR&D”) and certain
patents.
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The fair value of the purchased IPR&D and identifietangibles was determined using the income amtrowvhich discounts expected
future cash flows from projects to their net preésetiue. Each project was analyzed to determingettienological innovations included; the
utilization of core technology; the complexity, tasd time to complete development; any alterndtigre use or current technological
feasibility; and the stage of completion. Futurshcflows were estimated, taking into account theeeted life cycles of the products and the
underlying technology, relevant market sizes andistry trends. The Company determined a discot@tfoa each project based on the
relative risks inherent in the project’s developirgorizon, the estimated costs of development,taadevel of technological change in the
project and the industry, among other factors. @glbdepresents the excess of purchase price dneefdir value of the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired in eachriass combination.

The Company expensed IPR&D of $16.6 million upaa¢bmpletion of the acquisitions in the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2007 in
connection with acquired intellectual property Wdrich technological feasibility has not been essdigld and no future alternative uses exist.

The Company currently has not identified any matgre-merger contingencies where a liability isli@ble and the amount of the
liability can be reasonably estimated. If informatbecomes available prior to the end of the pwehmice allocation period, which would
indicate that it is probable that such events laiged and the amounts can be reasonably estinzateldl items will be included in the
purchase price allocation.

Pro forma earnings information has not been presemécause the effect of the acquisitions in theafiyear ended June 30, 2007 was
not material either on an individual or an aggredssis.

In connection with the acquisitions completed dagttime fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, KLA-Tenewaine subject to a $9.1 million
contingent cash payment based on the continuedogmpit of certain employees over two years. Thdilmgency is accounted for as
compensation expense over the contingent employpeidd. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 28664 million of this amount was
paid, and the remaining $3.7 million was paid dgtine fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

The Company had an equity interest in a developmstage company which was consolidated as of Mat¢l2@06. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007, the Company purchasedrtzning minority interest and assumed 100% oslriprin this entity. Subsequent
the Company sold certain assets of this entityntararelated third party and recorded a gain of $3lBon in other income in the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007.
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NOTE 6—STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Effective July 1, 2005, KLA-Tencor adopted the psians of SFAS No. 123(REhare-Based PaymenBFAS No. 123(R) establishes
accounting for stock-based awards exchanged fofagm@ services. Accordingly, stock-based compensaibst is measured at grant date,
based on the fair value of the award, and is reizedras expense over the employee’s requisitecgepériod. The Company previously
applied APB Opinion No. 25%ccounting for Stock Issued to Employaed its related Interpretations and provided tlygired pro forma
disclosures of SFAS No. 12&counting for Stock-Based Compensation

The following table shows pre-tax stobksed compensation expense by type of award fdistted years ended June 30, 2007, 200¢
2005:

(in thousands) Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Stocl-based compensation expense by type of av
Employee stock optior $ 82,44(  $140,44°  $34,90:
Employee stock purchase pl 11,96¢ 16,18¢ —
Restricted stock unit 14,37 8,107 2,13¢
Total stocl-based compensation( $108,77¢  $164,74: $37,04:

(1) Stock-based compensation expense for the fygzalended June 30, 2007 includes a $20.3 miléwarsal of stockased compensatic
charges related to the cancellation of stock optanmd restricted stock units held by the Compafoyimer Chief Executive Officer and
$9.3 million of cash compensation related to bosysgyable to the holders of the amended optionsrpensate them for the increase
in their option exercise prices. As of June 30, 2007, theaognized sto-based compensation balance was $177.2 mil

Stock Options

The following table shows the number of optionsnggd, grant-date fair value, and stock-based cosgi@m expense related to stock
options for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20006 2nd 2005:

(in thousands) Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Number of options grante 26¢ 4,85¢ 9,62¢
Gran-date fair value after estimated forfeitu $ 2,39 $ 68,81( $214,92¢

Stocl-based compensation expense $82,44(  $140,44° $ 34,90:

(1) Stock-based compensation expense related imnsdbr the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 iohat$16.2 million reversal of stock-
based compensation charges related to the cammeltftstock options held by the Comp’s former Chief Executive Office

As of June 30, 2007, the unrecognized stock-bagembensation balance related to stock options waé.8Imillion and will be
recognized over an estimated weighted average ematboh period of 2.6 years.

The following table shows stock-based compensatigitalized as inventory and deferred system pasfiof June 30, 2007 and 2006:

(in thousands) As of June 30,
2007 2006

Inventory $6,22¢ $6,041

Deferred system prof $1,38¢ $1,58(
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Valuation Assumptions

In connection with the adoption of SFAS No. 123(Rg Company reassessed its valuation techniqueetatéd assumptions. The
Company estimates the fair value of stock optimiagia Black-Scholes valuation model, consisteth wie provisions of SFAS No. 123(R),
SEC SAB No. 107 and the Company'’s prior periodfprma disclosures of net earnings, including stbaked compensation (determined
under a fair value method as prescribed by SFASI®B). The fair value of each option grant is eated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option valuation model and the shialime attribution approach with the following wghited-average assumptions:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005

Stock option plan

Expected stock price volatilit 34% 30% 58%

Risk free interest rai 4.5% 4.1% 3.€%

Dividend yield 1.1% 1.C% 0.1%

Expected life of options (in year 4.4 4.€ 5.€
Stock purchase pla

Expected stock price volatilil 35% 34% 34%

Risk free interest rai 5.C% 3.%% 3.4%

Dividend yield 1.C% 1.C% —

Expected life of options (in year 1.3 1.3 1.2

SFAS No. 123(R) requires the use of option priegimadels that were not developed for use in valumgleyee stock options. The
Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developadife in estimating the fair value of short-livectleange traded options that have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferableadidition, option-pricing models require the inpbihighly subjective assumptions, including
the option’s expected life and the price volatilifythe underlying stock. The expected stock pvigiatility assumption was determined using
the implied volatility of the Company’s common dtodhe Company’s computation of expected volatiktypased on market-based implied
volatility from traded options on the Company’scitoPrior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), tt@rany used a combination of
historical and implied volatility in deriving itsxpected volatility assumption. The Company deteadithat implied volatility is more
reflective of market conditions and a better intbcaf expected volatility than a blended volafilit

Equity Incentive Program

The Company'’s equity incentive program is a broagell, long-term retention program that is intertdesitract and retain key
employees, and align stockholder and employeedster The equity incentive program consists of lams: one under which non-employee
directors may be granted options to purchase slufitbe Company’s stock, and another in which nopleyee directors, officers, key
employees, consultants and all other employeeshmayanted options to purchase shares of the Coyigpstock, restricted stock units and
other types of equity awards. For the past seyeails until June 30, 2006, stock options (excepthfe retroactively priced options which
were granted primarily prior to fiscal year endede 30, 2002) were generally granted at the mamke¢ of the Compang’ common stock ¢
the date of grant, with a vesting period of fivaggeand an exercise period not to exceed seven {tearyears for options granted prior to
July 1, 2005) from the date of issuance. Restristedk units may be granted with varying critetials as time-based or performance-based
vesting. Substantially all of the Company’s empleyéhat meet established performance goals andygasikey employees participate in its
main equity incentive plan. Since July 1, 2006, @wenpany has granted only restricted stock unitkeuits equity incentive program, except
for options granted to non-employee directors asqfaheir regular compensation package for serticough June 30, 2007.
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On October 18, 2004, our stockholders approve@@®&d Equity Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan”) whimlovides for the grant of
options to purchase shares of our common stockk stppreciation rights, restricted stock, perforogshares, performance units and defe
stock units to our employees, consultants and mesrdfeour Board of Directors. Since the adoptiothef 2004 Plan, no further grants are
permitted under the 1982 Stock Option Plan or 2000-Statutory Stock Option Plan. The 2004 Plan jtsrthe issuance of up to
12.5 million shares of common stock, of which 3.i8ian shares were available for grant as of Jube2®07. Any 2004 Plan awards of
restricted stock, performance shares, performanite or deferred stock units with a per share dtr purchase price lower than 100% of fair
market value on the grant date shall be countethsighe total number of shares issuable undepldreas 1.8 shares for every one share
subject thereto. Total options outstanding undeplahs as of June 30, 2007 was 19.6 million.

The following table summarizes the combined agtiuitder the equity incentive plans for the indidaperiods:

Weighted-

Available Options Average
(In thousands except for Weighted Average Exerciserice) For Grant Outstanding Exercise Price
Balances at June 30, 20 17,35: 29,69¢ $ 35.11

Additional shares reserve 18,37( — —

Plan shares expire (15,819 — —
Options granted(1 (9,625 9,62¢ $ 40.31

Restricted stock units granted: (739 — —
Options canceled/expired/forfeit 2,261 (2,267) $ 41.8¢
Options exercise — (3,675 $  26.5¢
Balances at June 30, 20 11,81¢ 33,37¢ $ 37.0¢

Additional shares reservt 34 — —

Plan shares expire (1,287 — —
Options grante: (4,85¢€) 4,85¢ $ 48.3i

Restricted stock units granted: (1,280 — —

Restricted stock units canceled 24 — —
Options canceled/expired/forfeiti 1,861 (1,867 $ 44.0t
Options exercise — (6,017) $ 29.3¢
Balances at June 30, 20 6,31¢ 30,36: $ 40.0C

Additional shares registered for acquisitic 20€ — —

Plan shares expire (3,230 — —
Options grante: (269) 26¢ $ 45.5¢

Restricted stock units granted: (5,129 — —

Restricted stock units canceled 994 — —
Options canceled/expired/forfeit 4,62¢ (4,629 $ 41.7¢
Options exercise — (6,629 $ 35.9¢
Options assumed from acquisitic (20€) 20¢€ $ 31.9¢
Balances at June 30, 20 3,317 19,58¢ $  42.2¢

(1) Employees received stock options totaling 2.0 onllshares of common stock as an advance on the#l frear 2006 stock option gra
in the first quarter of the fiscal year ended J&8g2005. The grant was equivalent to 50% of thpleyee’s fiscal year 2005 stock
option grant. These advanced grant options veat$r (6) year schedule with 20% of the option ekafesting upon completion of two
(2) years of service and the remaining 80% of {httoa shares vesting in a series of forty-eighf) @8 cessive equal monthly
installments upon completion of each additional thaf continuous service over the remainder ofvbgting term
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(2) Any 2004 Plan awards of restricted stock, perforoeashares, performance units or deferred stock wiih a per share or unit purchs
price lower than 100% of fair market value on thang date shall be counted against the total numb&hnares issuable under the 2004
Plan as 1.8 shares for every one share subjeettth

The weighted average grant date fair value of ogtias determined under SFAS No. 123(R), granteadglthe fiscal years ended
June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $11.01, $14d4 %2233 per share, respectively. As of June 307 203.1 million options were
exercisable with a weighted average exercise pifie1.16 and weighted-average remaining contrdtéuna of 5 years. The aggregate
intrinsic value for the options exercisable aswofe)30, 2007 was $180.9 million.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 @08 ®as $111.4 million, $130.2
million, and $69.9 million, respectively. The totash received from employees as a result of ereplsjock option exercises during the fi
years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was apprtely $238.4 million, $176.4 million, and $97.6llan, respectively. In connectic
with these exercises, the tax benefits realizetheyCompany for the fiscal years ended June 307,280W06 and 2005 were $39.5 million,
$46.6 million and $25.2 million, respectively.

The Company settles employee stock option exergigésnewly issued common shares.

Restricted Stock Units

The following table shows the number of restricttmtk units granted, grant-date fair value, andksttased compensation expense for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(in thousands) Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Number of shares grant: 2,84¢ 711 407
Gran-date fair value $92,467  $23,20¢  $16,42:

Stocl-based compensation expense $14,37¢ $ 8,107 $ 2,13¢

(1) Stock-based compensation expense relatedtricted stock units for the year ended June 30728@et of a $4.1 million reversal of
stock-based compensation charges related to theekation of restricted stock units held by the Qamy’s former Chief Executive
Officer.

Beginning in the fiscal year ended June 30, 20t réstricted stock units generally vest in twoaddpstallments on the second and
fourth anniversaries of the date of grant. Priathifiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the rediratieck units generally vested in two equal
installments over four or five years from the ammgary date of the grant. The value of the restlistock units was based on the closing
market price of the Company’s common stock on #ite df award. The restricted stock units were aaduchder the Company’s 2004 Plan
and each unit will entitle the recipient to onerghaf common stock when the applicable vestingirequents for that unit are satisfied.
However, for each share actually issued underwregded units, the share reserve under the 2004viRlidoe reduced by 1.8 shares, as
provided under the terms of the 2004 Plan.

As of June 30, 2007, the unrecognized stock-basegbensation balance related to restricted stods was $71.2 million and will be
recognized over an estimated weighted average ematboh period of 3.2 years. Additionally, the nuentof restricted stock awards
outstanding as of June 30, 2007 was 3.4 million.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

KLA-Tencor’'s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESR#?dyvides that eligible employees may contributeap0% of their eligible
earnings toward the semi-annual purchase of KLAebes common stock. The ESPP is qualified undeti@ee?23 of the Internal Revenue
Code. The employee’s purchase price is derived fxdormula based on the fair market value of thmmmon stock at the time of enrollment
into the offering period versus the fair marketueabn the date of purchase. Offering periods anemgdly two years in length. On
September 28, 2006, the ESPP was suspended cheedadoing stock option investigation, and accajlgithere were no shares purchased
under the ESPP during the six months ended Dece®ih@006. After filing the Company’s Annual Report January 29, 2007 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgahr ended June 30, 2006 and its Quarterly RepoForm 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2006, approximately 0.3 million shavere purchased under the ESPP on February 1, 2007

The compensation cost in connection with the ESRRa fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 200&$28 million and $16.2
million, respectively, in accordance with SFAS N@3(R). The total cash received from employeeshferissuance of shares under the ESPP
was approximately $24.9 million and $36.3 millioarishg the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and,2@6pectively. As the ESPP was non-
compensatory under APB Opinion No. 25, no compémsa&xpense was recorded in connection with the jplahe fiscal year ended June
2005. In the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 26862005, employees purchased 0.7 million, 1.0anjland 1.1 million shares issued at a
weighted-average fair value of $35.68, $36.21 #3#1483, respectively. In connection with the disifyedg dispositions of shares purchased
under the ESPP, the Company realized the tax lierméf$1.3 million, $1.5 million, and $1.5 millidor the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

The ESPP shares are replenished annually on #ieléiy of each fiscal year by virtue of an evergnemvision. The provision allows
for share replenishment equal to the lesser ofr@llibn shares or the number of shares which KLAder estimates will be required to issue
under the ESPP during the forthcoming fiscal y&arof June 30, 2007, a total of 1.1 million shamese reserved and available for issuance
under the ESPP.

On October 12, 2006, the Compensation CommittéleeoBoard of Directors of the Company approvedltrraative financial benefit
consisting of a cash payment to all employees bét@wice president level who had been active gpgts in the ESPP before it was
temporarily suspended on September 28, 2006. Tamative financial benefit is intended to compeéasaich employees for the estimated
financial benefit they would have realized hadESPP continued in operation after September 28 a0d until December 31, 2006. On
January 24, 2007, the Compensation Committee estktinds alternative financial benefit into calengaar 2007 to cover the period until the
ESPP suspension ended. The Company recorded apatteky $4.6 million for the alternative financiaefit during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007 as a component of stock-based coatfmmsexpense.

Former Chief Executive Officer Agreement and Termiration

During November 2005, the Company announced tlettdfe January 1, 2006, Kenneth L. Schroeder woabke to be its Chief
Executive Officer and would thereafter be emploged Senior Advisor. The Company and Mr. Schroat$errevised his prior agreement
with the Company and defined the salary, bonus gagied equity award vesting during the period sfdrihployment as a Senior Advisor.
Effective January 1, 2006, the Company determihatiall service conditions associated with cenpaiiar equity awards under the terms of
the revised agreement with Mr. Schroeder had begsfied; and accordingly, the Company recordeithatt time an additional non-cash,
stock-based compensation charge of approximate8/ hélion relating to these equity awards. Theabmentioned charge is included as a
component of Selling, General and Administrativ8@&A”) expense during the fiscal year ended June806. On October 16, 2006,
following
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the Special Committee investigation of the Compaiystorical stock option practices, the Companyieated all aspects of Mr. Schroeder’
employment relationship and agreement with the GomypAs a result, vesting of Mr. Schroeder’s thats@anding stock options and
restricted stock awards immediately ceased, an@.thaillion unvested option shares and 0.1 milimvested restricted stock award shares
held by Mr. Schroeder at the time of terminatiorraveanceled. Accordingly, during the fiscal yeadeh June 30, 2007 the Company reve
$20.3 million of the non-cash, stock-based comp@msaharges that had been recorded in prior peniethted to unvested option shares and
restricted stock award shares. In December 20@68Ctmpany also canceled 0.6 million vested opti@mres held by Mr. Schroeder as of the
time of termination, representing those shareshhdtbeen retroactively priced or otherwise impriypgranted.

IRC Section 409A Affected Options

Because virtually all holders of retroactively gdcoptions issued by the Company were not involrext aware of the retroactive
pricing, the Company has taken certain actionsetd with the adverse tax consequences that maycbered by the holders of retroactively
priced options. The adverse tax consequences areetinoactively priced stock options vesting adecember 31, 2004 (“409A Affected
Options”) subject the option holder to a penaltydader IRC Section 409A (and, as applicable, sinpenalty taxes under California and
other state tax laws). One such action by the Compavolved offering to amend the 409A Affected @ps to increase the exercise price to
the market price on the actual grant date or\vifelg the market price at the time of the amendnigmt. amended options would not be suk
to taxation under IRC Section 409A. Under IRS ratiahs, these option amendments had to be compgt&kcember 31, 2006 for anyone
who was an executive officer when he or she rede¥®A Affected Options; the amendments for mdficers could not be offered until aft
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for tteedil year ended June 30, 2006 and Quarterly Repdfborm 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2006 were filed and do not need tmbpleted until December 31, 2007.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the imy accrued approximately $20.2 million payablada-executive holders of the
amended options to compensate them for the regutiorease in their option exercise price. The $26illion is payable in January 2008. Of
the $20.2 million, $9.3 million was recorded asc&tbased compensation expense, and the remainth§ #iillion was recorded in common
stock and capital in excess of par value in thar sheet. The amount of these bonuses woulddmtieély repaid to the Company if and
when the options are exercised and the increasadis® price is paid. However, there is no asserdmat the options will be exercised and
the employees will retain the bonuses under aueirstances. During the fiscal year ended June@®¥,,2he Company has also recorded
approximately $13.9 million to compensate certgitian holders whose employment terminated or whibdleeady exercised 409A Affected
Options for the additional taxes they incur und®€ISection 409A (and, as applicable, similar stmtdaws).

Three of the Company’s option holders were sulifetite December 31, 2006 deadline described aFmardingly, in December
2006, the Company offered to amend the 409A Aft&@etions held by Mr. Wallace, the Company’s Cliigécutive Officer, and two
former executive officers to increase the exerpidee so that these options will not subject théaspholder to a penalty tax under IRC
Section 409A. All three individuals accepted then@any'’s offer. In addition, the Company agreeddyp pach of the three individuals a cash
bonus in January 2008 equal to the aggregate iseliaahe exercise prices for his amended optieosMr. Wallace, the amount of this
bonus is $0.4 million. To account for these actjaghe Company has recorded a charge of $0.3 miltiehof amount reclassified from capital
in excess of par, during the fiscal year ended 3&007.

With respect to certain individuals whose optioresevcanceled or re-priced by the Company followiregSpecial Committee
investigation, no bonuses of the type describedalall be paid.
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Other actions related to executive stock options

On October 16, 2006, Kenneth Levy, Founder andr@faai of the Board of Directors of the Company reetias a director and
employee, and was named Chairman Emeritus by oardBaf Directors. Mr. Levy entered into a Separatigreement and General Release
with the Company under which Mr. Levy’s outstandietroactively priced stock options have been ieeglr by increasing the exercise price
to the market price of the option shares on theagrant date. Under SFAS No. 123(R), no increalaritarge was recognized in the
financial statements for the fiscal year ended Bihe&007. Mr. Levy was the Company’s Chief ExeaitDfficer from 1975 until mid-1999
(with the exception of mid-1997 to mid-1998), wamember of the Company’s Board of Directors fror@3.8ntil his retirement, was
Chairman of the Board of Directors from 1999 uhid retirement, and was a member of the CompartgskSOption Committee from 1994
until use of that committee was suspended in thef2006.

Also on October 16, 2006, Stuart J. Nichols, VicesRlent and General Counsel, resigned. Mr. Nichioiered into a Separation
Agreement and General Release with the Companyruvidieh Mr. Nichols’ outstanding retroactively peit stock options have been re-
priced by increasing the exercise price to the eigokice of the option shares on the actual graté.dJnder SFAS No. 123(R), no
incremental charge was recognized in the finarst&tements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

On December 21, 2006, Jon D. Tompkins resigneddazetor of the Company, and we agreed to modiéydutstanding options held
by Mr. Tompkins (all of which were fully vested) éxtend the post-termination exercisability peiedecember 31, 2007, which is the last
day of the calendar year in which those optionsldibave terminated in the absence of such extensloriTompkins, the Chief Executive
Officer of Tencor Instruments before its mergeoitite Company in mid-1997, was the Company’s Chiefcutive Officer from mid-1997 to
mid-1998, was a member of the Company'’s stock aptammittee from mid-1997 until mid-1999, and wasember of the Company’s
Board of Directors from mid-1997 until his resigioat

Although the Board of Directors concluded that JbhrKispert, our President and Chief Operating €fifj was not involved in and was
not aware of the improper stock option practicesell on the Special Committee’s recommendatiorguti&anding retroactively priced
options have been re-priced because he servedieSFitancial Officer during part of the periodduestion. This re-pricing involved
increasing the exercise price to the market pridh@option shares on the actual grant date. UB&&S No. 123(R), no incremental charge
was recognized in the financial statements fofigwl year ended June 30, 2007.

NOTE 7—STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

In July 1997, the Board of Directors authorized KILAncor to systematically repurchase shares obitsngon stock in the open mark
This plan was put into place to reduce the dilufimm KLA-Tencor’'s employee benefit and incentians such as the stock option and
employee stock purchase plans, and to return exes$sto the Company’s shareholders. Since th@fioceof the repurchase program in
1997 through June 30, 2007 the Board of Directarsduthorized KLA-Tencor to repurchase a total©83nillion shares, including
10.0 million shares authorized in February 200%, @m additional 10.0 million shares authorized ébfaary 2007. The Compairsysystemati
buyback program was suspended in May 2006, andnesin February 2007. We account for repurchasethuan stock under the cost
method and include such treasury stock as a compafieur common shareholders’ equity.

In addition, the Board of Directors authorized purehase of up to $750.0 million of the Companyimmon stock pursuant to an
Accelerated Share Repurchase program (“ASR”) ity 2007. The Company entered into the ASR withiral-party investment bank ai
prepaid $750.0 million to repurchase its commoulstd he purchase price per share of the commork sepurchased through the ASR was
determined and
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adjusted based on a discount to the volume-weightedage price of the Compasycommon stock during a period following the exaguof
the ASR agreement, subject to a maximum price lpgres During the fiscal year ended June 30, 208 Citmpany received approximately
14.0 million shares under the ASR.

The payment of $750.0 million was included in thstt flows from financing activities in the CompanZonsolidated Statement of
Cash Flows. The shares received were multipliethbyclosing stock price on the date of receiptdtednine the cost of repurchase. The
Company'’s outstanding shares decreases as shangyaically received under the Company’s repurelmaegram, including the ASR.
Diluted net income per share increased by $0.0f#fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, due to thect®n of the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the periodrasudt of the ASR.

Share repurchases for the fiscal years ended Iyrg087 and 2006 were as follows:

(in thousands) Year ended June 30,
2007 2006

Number of shares of common stock repurchs 15,10: 4,524

Total cost of repurchas $808,46: $221,41°

As discussed in Note 17, “Subsequent Events,” dulingust 2007, the Company’s Board of Directorsraped the repurchase of an
additional 10.0 million shares of the Company’s coom stock under the Company’s repurchase program.

NOTE 8—EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividieigincome available to common stockholders byatbighted-average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diletrnings per share is calculated by using thghted-average number of common
shares outstanding during the period increasedctade the number of additional shares of commoaoksthat would have been outstandin
the dilutive potential shares of common stock heginbissued. The dilutive effect of outstandingamiand restricted stock units is reflected
in diluted earnings per share by application oftthasury stock method, which includes considenatiostock-based compensation required
by SFAS No. 123(R)Share-Based Paymeand SFAS No. 12&arnings Per ShareThe following table sets forth the computatiorbabic
and diluted earnings per share:

(in thousands, except per share data) Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005

Numerator:

Net income $528,09¢ $380,45. $445,04¢
Denominator

Weighted average shares outstanding, excludingstedeestricted stock uni 197,12¢ 198,62! 196,34t

Effect of dilutive options and restricted stc 5,07¢ 5,472 4,78(

Denominator for diluted earnings per sh 202,20: 204,09° 201,12¢
Basic earnings per she $ 268 $ 192 $ 227
Diluted earnings per sha $ 261 $ 18 $ 221

Potentially dilutive securities(’ 10,22 17,04 9,92

(1) These securities are excluded from the comipmatf diluted earnings per share for the abovéopsrbecause their effect would have
been an-dilutive.
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During the third quarter of the fiscal year endede)30, 2005, the CompasyBoard of Directors authorized a quarterly casfdéind of
$0.12 per share. The total amount of dividends gaithg the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 20062005 was $95.1 million, $95.3
million, and $23.6 million, respectively.

As discussed in Note 17, “Subsequent Events,” oguat8, 2007, the Company declared a quarterly dastiend of $0.15 per share to
be paid on September 1, 2007 to stockholders ofdean August 20, 2007.

NOTE 9—EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

KLA-Tencor has a profit sharing program for eligildmployees, which distributes on a quarterly basgercentage of ptex profits. Ir
addition, KLA-Tencor has an employee savings plet tjualifies as a deferred salary arrangementrudeletion 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code. KLA-Tencor matches up to a maximu8d¥00 or 50% of the first $6,000 of an eligiblep@oyee’s contribution. The total
charge to operations under the profit sharing &1{ld programs aggregated $19.0 million, $17.0iorilland $16.0 million in the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivel-Kencor has no defined benefit plans in the Whifates. In addition to the profit
sharing plan and the United States employee salarg several of KLA-Tencor’s foreign subsidiartesse retirement plans for their fulme
employees, several of which are defined benefitpl&€onsistent with the requirements of local e, Company deposits funds for certail
these plans with insurance companies, third-paustées, or into government-managed accounts, madéoues for the unfunded portion of
the obligation. The assumptions used in calculategobligation for the foreign plans depend onltizal economic environment.

KLA- Tencor adopted SFAS No. 15Bmployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod &ther Postretirement Plans an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106,33{®)leffective June 30, 2007. Upon adoption, SFAS 1§8ires an employer to
recognize the funded status of each of its defp@mtsion and postretirement benefit plans as asset ar liability in its statement of financial
position with an offsetting amount in accumulatédeo comprehensive income. Additionally, SFAS 1&guires an employer to measure the
funded status of each of its plans as of the daits gear-end statement of financial position. Demefit obligations and related assets under
the Company’s plans have been measured as of 02037 .

Summary data relating to the KLA-Tencor’s foreigfided benefit pension plans, including key weighté@erage assumptions used is
provided in the following tables:

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006

Change in projected benefit obligati
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of fisgehr $19,82¢ $20,73:
Service cost, including plan participant contribug 1,76¢ 2,08¢
Interest cos 55¢ 50C
Actuarial (gain) los: 2,771 (2,376
Benefit payment (1,519 (51€)
Acquisitions 1,291 —
Foreign currency exchange rate char (707) (602)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of thedis@ar $24,00( $19,82¢

75



Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

KLA-TENCOR CORPORATION

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Change in fair value of plan ass
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of fiscalr $ 5,09t $ 4,28t
Actual return on plan asse 47 2
Employer contribution: 1,02C 901
Benefit and expense payme (231) (78)
Acquisitions 34¢ —
Foreign currency exchange rate char 71 (15
Fair value of plan assets at end of fiscal \ $ 6,35C $ 5,09¢
As of June 30,
(in thousands) 2007 2006
Funded statu
Ending funded statt $(17,650) $(14,73()
Unrecognized transition obligatic — 374
Unrecognized net actuarial lo — 2,611
Net amount recognize $(17,650) $(11,74%)
As of June 30,
(in thousands) 2007 2006
Plans with accumulated benefit obligations in esafglan asse!
Accumulated benefit obligatic $16,12¢ $14,00"
Projected benefit obligatic $24,00( $19,82¢
Plan assets at fair vali $ 6,35( $ 5,09t
Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Weighted average assumptic
Discount rate 2.0%-5.0% 2.5%-5.0% 1.5%-5.5%
Expected return on asst 3.0%-4.5% 3.5%-4.5% 3.5%-4.3%
Rate of compensation increa: 3.0%-4.0% 2.0%-4.0% 2.0%-4.0%

The expected rate of return on assets assumptieressareveloped by considering the historical retams expectations of future returns
relevant to the country in which each plan is iieetfand the investments applicable to the cormeding plan. The discount rate for each plan
was derived by reference to appropriate benchmiatéis/on high quality corporate bonds, allowing thoe approximate duration of both plan

obligations and the relevant benchmark index.

The incremental effect of applying the recognitiovision of SFAS No. 158 on individual line iteinsthe Consolidated Balance Sh

as of June 30, 2007 is as follows:

Prior to After
Application of Application of
(in thousands) SFAS No. 15¢ Adjustments SFAS No. 15¢
Deferred income taxe $ 336,91 $ 2,21¢ $ 339,13
Other current liabilitie! $ (674,37) $ (5,669 $ (680,04)
Accumulated other comprehensive inca $ (14,85) $ 3,44¢ $ (11,409
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekieristome consist of:

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Unrecognized transition obligatic $ 33¢ $ —
Unrealized net actuarial lo 5,32¢ —
Amount recognize: $ 5,664 $ —

Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive incaxpected to be recognized as components of netgiedi@nefit cost over the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Year ended
(in thousands) June 30, 200
Unrecognized transition obligatic $ 25k
Unrealized net actuarial lo 34
Amount expected to be recogniz $ 28¢

The components of KLA-Tencor’s net periodic cosatiag to its foreign subsidiaries defined pengitems are as follows:

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Components of net periodic pension ¢
Service cost, net of plan participant contributi $1,767 $2,08¢ $2,541
Interest cos 55¢ 50C 387
Return on plan asse (209) (177 (14¢)
Amortization of net transitional obligatic 32 154 25k
Amortization of net gail 131 184 70
Net periodic pension co $2,28( $2,75¢ $3,10¢

The foreign plans’ investments are managed by {béndy trustees consistent with regulations or reapkactice of the country where
the assets are invested. KLA-Tencor is not actiirlplved in the investment strategy nor does iteheontrol over the target allocation of
these investments. These investments made up 10@abforeign plan assets in the fiscal yearseehdune 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Expected funding for the foreign plans during tisedl year ending June 30, 2008 is $1.0 million.
The total benefits to be paid from the foreign pemplans are not expected to exceed $1.1 milloany year through 2015.
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Executive Savings Plan

KLA-Tencor has a non-qualified deferred compensagitan whereby certain executives may defer a o their salary and bonus.
Participants are credited with returns based oin #tlecation of their account balances among mivwrads. KLA-Tencor controls the
investment of these funds and the participants iregeneral creditors of KLA-Tencor. Distribution®i the plan commence the quarter
following a participant’s retirement or terminatiohemployment. As of June 30, 2007, KLA-Tencor lhadkeferred compensation liability
under the plan of $154.5 million included as a comgnt of other current liabilities on the Consdi&@hBalance Sheet.

NOTE 10—INCOME TAXES
The components of income before income taxes ai@laws:

(in thousands) Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Domestic income before income ta $538,25° $329,06¢ $510,32¢
Foreign income before income tay 138,97¢ 48,79: 72,74¢
Total net income before tax $677,23" $377,85¢ $583,07¢

The provision for income taxes is comprised offtiowing:

(in thousands) Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Current:
Federal $133,28° $ 106,67¢ $170,50°
State 3,20¢ 8,99¢ 8,017
Foreign 27,18¢ 20,217 16,37¢
$163,68( $ 135,89 $194,90:
Deferred:
Federal (21,749 (125,63 (51,52¢)
State 5,53¢ (3,535 (3,029
Foreign 3,03¢ (5,217 1,05¢
(13,17) (134,389 (53,497
Provision for income taxe $150,50¢ $ 1,507 $141,40!

Actual current tax liabilities are lower than refied above for the fiscal years ended June 30,,Z0D6 and 2005 by $1.3 million, $3
million and $12.6 million, respectively, due priripto the stock option deduction benefits recordsctredits to capital in excess of par ve
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The significant components of deferred income &sets (liabilities) are as follows:

(in thousands) As of June 30,
2007 2006

Deferred tax asset

Tax credits and net operating los $ 52,49! $ 27,03
Employee benefits accru 77,31t 66,88(
Stocl-based Compensatic 88,07: 87,46¢
Capitalized R&D expense 182,27 204,911
Depreciation and amortizatic — 3,18¢
Inventory reserve 60,69: 57,48
Non-deductible reserve 56,04( 63,16°
Unrealized loss on investmer — 2,24(
Deferred profit 80,01¢ 79,93¢
Unearned revent 31,02: 24,65
Other 46,931 36,90¢
Total deferred tax asse $674,86¢ $653,86!
Deferred tax liabilities
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries nonparently reinveste $(11,669)  $(11,669)
Depreciation and amortizatic (14,109 —
Unrealized gain on investmer (2,377) —
Other (935) (82€)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (29,077) (12,489
Total net deferred tax ass: $645,79¢ $641,37¢

As of June 30, 2007, the Company had U.S. fededhktate net operating loss (“NOL") carry-forwardsapproximately $85.2 million
and $46.1 million, respectively. The Company alad b.S. federal and state tax credit carry-forwafdspproximately $0.6 million and
$29.7 million, respectively. The U.S. net operatimgs and tax credit carry-forwards will expirevatious dates beginning in 2017 through
2027. The utilization of NOLs created by acquirethpanies is subject to annual limitations undetti8e@82 of the Internal Revenue Code.
However, it is not expected that such annual litigtawill impair the realization of these NOLs.rét utilized, the federal NOLs will begin to
expire in 2017 and state NOLs will begin to expir®010. Certain state credits in the amount of $2illion will expire at various dates
beginning in 2008 through 2021. The remaining stagelits of $27.6 million will be carried over irigtely.

The reconciliation of the United States federatugtay income tax rate to KLA-Tencor’s effectivecome tax rate is as follows:

Year ended June 30, 2007 2006 2005
Federal statutory ra: 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal ber 1.1 0.6 0.€
Effect of foreign operations taxed at various ri (3.7 (2.0 (1.9
Export sales benei 3.2 (5.7 (5.7
Research and development tax cr (1.9 (2.9 (3.0
Tax exempt interes (2.5 (4.5 (1.8
Net change in tax reserv (1.2 (18.9) 1.7
Domestic manufacturing bene (0.8 (1.6) —
Other 0y _©n @9
Provision for Income Taxe 22.2% _0.4% 24.2%
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Undistributed earnings of KLA-Tencor’s foreign sigharies amounted to approximately $406.6 millienodJune 30, 2007, of which
approximately $375.7 million are considered tormefinitely reinvested and accordingly, no prouisfor U.S. federal and state income taxes
has been provided thereon. Upon repatriation cfdtearnings, in the form of dividends or otherwideA-Tencor would be subject to both
U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustment faigor tax credit) and withholding taxes payableht® tarious foreign countries.
Determination of the amount of unrecognized detelyeS. income tax liability is not practicable doehe complexities associated with its
hypothetical calculation. KLA-Tencor’s consolidatiétancial statements fully provide for any relatedility on amounts that maybe
repatriated.

In the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 200A;Kencor reduced its total income tax reserve$by.3 million and $79.7 million,
respectively. This was primarily due to expiringtates of limitations, several tax settlementshedavith various tax authorities and
reassessments of tax exposures based on theaftatusent audits in various jurisdictions. In tiigcal year ended June 30, 2006, KLA-
Tencor entered into a settlement with the InteRmlenue Service related to an examination foritwalfyears ended June 30, 2003 and Z
In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, KLA-Terauered into a settlement with California FrancHiag Board related to an examination
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1997, 199818680.

KLA-Tencor benefits from several tax holidays inaksl and Singapore where it manufactures certaits gioducts. These tax holidays
are on approved investments and are schedulegtireet varying times within the next three to nysars. The Company is in compliance
with all the terms and conditions of the tax hojislaThe net impact of these tax holidays was toadse the Company’s tax expense by
approximately $13.6 million, $5.0 million and $##llion in the fiscal years ended June 30, 200D&28nd 2005, respectively.

NOTE 11—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Factoring. KLA-Tencor has agreements with financial institasdo sell certain of its trade receivables anangsory notes from
customers without recourse. KLA-Tencor does naelelit is at risk for any material losses as altesf these agreements. In addition, from
time to time KLA-Tencor will discount without recae Letters of Credit (“LCs”) received from custaman payment for goods.

The following table shows total receivables soldemfactoring agreements and proceeds from sale€®find related discounting fees
paid for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 806:2

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006

Receivables sold under factoring agreem $278,56( $277,96(
Proceeds from sales of Lt $ 61,85( $ 69,28¢
Discounting fees paid on sales of LCs $ 804 $ 78t

(1) Discounting fees were equivalent to interest expemsl were recorded in interest and other incorhe

Facilities. KLA- Tencor leases certain of its facilities under ofiegdeases, which qualify for operating lease acting treatment und
SFAS No. 13Accounting for Leasesnd, as such, these facilities are not includeiisoBonsolidated Balance Sheets. Rent expense was
approximately $9.7 million, $8.4 million and $12r0llion for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20@AQ&and 2005, respectively.
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The following is a schedule of operating lease payt® (in thousands):

Year ending June 30, Amount
2008 $10,36¢
2009 7,95¢
2010 5,40(
2011 3,91:
2012 2,30¢
2013 and thereaftt 8,271
Total minimum lease paymer $38,21¢

Purchase CommitmentsKLA-Tencor maintains certain open inventory purehasmmitments with its suppliers to ensure a smooth
and continuous supply for key components. KLA-Tetschability under these purchase commitmentsaeerally restricted to a forecasted
time-horizon as mutually agreed upon between thiegsa This forecast time-horizon can vary amorftedint suppliers. The Comparsyopel
inventory purchase commitments were approximat&$s$ million as of June 30, 2007 and are primatilg within the next 12 months.
Actual expenditures will vary based upon the volwhthe transactions and length of contractualiserprovided. In addition, the amounts
paid under these arrangements may be less in #rd that the arrangements are renegotiated or keh&@ertain agreements provide for
potential cancellation penalties.

Guarantees.KLA-Tencor provides standard warranty coveragetsisystems for twelve months, providing labor aadgpnecessary to
repair the systems during the warranty period. KIgacor accounts for the estimated warranty coat@sarge to cost of revenues when
revenue is recognized. The estimated warrantyisdxised on historical product performance and #sjpenses. Utilizing actual service
records, KLA-Tencor calculates the average sefvings and parts expense per system and appliestin labor and overhead rates to
determine the estimated warranty charge. KLA-Tenguatates these estimated charges periodicallya¢tel product performance and/or
field expense profiles may differ, and in thoseesaSLA-Tencor adjusts warranty accruals accordingly

The following table provides the changes in thedpod warranty accrual for the fiscal years endete 0, 2007 and 2006 (in
thousands):

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006
Beginning balanc $ 45,64: $ 46,64
Accruals for warranties issued during the pe 61,78¢ 49,66:
Changes in liability related to f-existing warrantie (7,589 (9,217
Settlements made during the per (47,00) (41,450
Ending balanci $ 52,83¢ $ 45,64:

Subject to certain limitations, KLA-Tencor indemia# its current and former officers and directarsdertain events or occurrences.
Although the maximum potential amount of future payts KLA-Tencor could be required to make undes¢hagreements is theoretically
unlimited, the Company believes the fair valuehi$ tiability, to the extent estimable, is apprepely considered within the reserve it has
established for currently pending legal proceedings

KLA-Tencor is a party to a variety of agreementsspant to which it may be obligated to indemnifg tither party with respect to
certain matters. Typically, these obligations anseonnection with contracts and
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license agreements or the sale of assets, undehhie Company customarily agrees to hold the gihdy harmless against losses arising
from a breach of warranties, representations amdrants related to such matters as title to assédsvalidity of certain intellectual property
rights, non-infringement of third-party rights, acektain income tax-related matters. In each cfgt@rcumstances, payment by the Company
is typically subject to the other party making airl to and cooperating with the Company pursuattiégprocedures specified in the

particular contract. This usually allows the Comptmchallenge the other party’s claims or, in caSkreach of intellectual property
representations or covenants, to control the defensettlement of any third-party claims brougdiast the other party. Further, the
Company'’s obligations under these agreements méiyniied in terms of amounts, activity (typically #the Company’s option to replace or
correct the products or terminate the agreememt aviefund to the other party), and duration. Imsanstances, the Company may have
recourse against third parties and/or insuranceriny certain payments made by the Company.

It is not possible to predict the maximum potengigount of future payments under these or simgaeements due to the conditional
nature of the Company’s obligations and the unfaeés and circumstances involved in each particadmeement. Historically, payments
made by the Company under these agreements hatacdat material effect on its business, finanaaldition, results of operations or cash
flows.

The Company maintains guarantee arrangements o $2llion in various locations to fund customs targtee for VAT and letter of
credit needs of its subsidiaries in Europe and Aspproximately $18.4 million was outstanding unttegse arrangements as of June 30,
2007.

NOTE 12—LITIGATION AND OTHER LEGAL MATTERS

Restatements of Prior Period Consolidated Financiabtatements in Previous FilingsOn September 28, 2006, the Company
announced that it would have to restate previoigsiyed financial statements to correct for pasbaating for stock options. As a result of 1
Special Committee investigation, it was discovdted certain stock options, primarily those grarftech July 1, 1997 to June 30, 2002, had
been retroactively priced for all employees wheereed these grants. In the Company’s Annual Repofform 10K for the fiscal year ende
June 30, 2006 (filed on January 29, 2007) and tizetgrly reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters drSieptember 30, 2006, December 31,
2006 and March 31, 2007 (filed on January 29, 26@bruary 9, 2007 and May 7, 2007, respectivelyd Gompany restated (1) consolidated
financial statements as of and for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2005 and 2004; (2) selected cdaseti financial data as of and for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 200Z3andaudited quarterly financial data for theffithree quarters in the fiscal year en
June 30, 2006 and for all quarters in the fiscarynded June 30, 2005. All financial informatinnliuded in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K reflects the restatement and does not contairfiatlyer restatement.

Government Inquiries and SEC Settlement Relating tdistorical Stock Option Practices.On May 23, 2006, the Company received
a subpoena from the United States Attorney’s Offempiesting information relating to our past stopkion grants and related accounting
matters. Also on May 23, 2006, the Company receavedter from the SEC making an informal inquindaequest for information on the
same subject matters. The Company learned on Fgt2pua007 that the SEC had opened a formal ingatin into these matters. The
Company cooperated fully with the SEC investigation July 25, 2007, the Company announced thadtreached a settlement with the
SEC by consenting to the entry of a permanent gtjan against future violations of the reportingpks and records, and internal controls
provisions of the federal securities laws. Thelsetént resolves completely the SEC investigation ihe Company'’s historical stock option
granting practices. KLA-Tencor was not chargedh®y SEC with fraud; nor was the Company requiregbtpany civil penalty, fine, or
money damages as part of the settlement.

The Company is cooperating fully with the USAO’sitinuing inquiry and intends to continue to do Bbis inquiry may require it to
expend significant management time and incur Sicanit legal and other
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expenses, and could result in criminal actions isgelamong other things, injunctions against thenBany and the payment of significant
fines and penalties by the Company, which may adheiaffect its results of operations and cash flow

The Company has also responded to inquiries franUtls. Department of Labor, which is conductingegamination of our 401(k)
Savings Plan prompted by our stock option issuee.Jompany is cooperating fully with this examioatand intend to continue to do so.

The Company cannot predict how long it will takeotchow much more time and resources it will havexpend to resolve these
government inquiries, nor can it predict the outearhthese inquiries. Also, there can be no assertirat other inquiries, investigations or
actions will not be started by other United Stdigekeral or state regulatory agencies or by forgigvernmental agencies.

Shareholder Derivative Litigation Relating to Histarical Stock Option Practices.Beginning on May 22, 2006, several persons and
entities identifying themselves as shareholdetslg-Tencor filed derivative actions purporting tesert claims on behalf of and in the name
of the Company against various of the Company’setuirand former directors and officers relatingi$caccounting for stock options issued
from 1994 to the present. The complaints in thesiemss allege that the individual defendants breddheir fiduciary duties and other
obligations to the Company and violated state adefal securities laws in connection with the Comyfmhistorical stock option granting
process, its accounting for past stock options,hasibrical sales of stock by the individual defant$. Three substantially similar actions are
pending, one in the U.S. District Court for the ti@rn District of California (which consists of && separate lawsuits consolidated in one
action); one in the California Superior Court f@an$a Clara County; and one in the Delaware ChanCeryt.

The plaintiffs in the derivative actions have assclaims for violations of Sections 10(b) (indhgl Rule 10b-5 thereunder), 14(a), and
20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ugmsichment, breach of fiduciary duty and aidimgl @abetting such breach, negligence,
misappropriation of information, abuse of contgylpss mismanagement, waste of corporate assesghboé contract, constructive fraud,
rescission, and violations of California CorporaidCode section 25402, as well as a claim for aowatting of all stock option grants mad:
the named defendants. KLA-Tencor is named as amardefendant in these actions. On behalf of KLAda, the plaintiffs seek
unspecified monetary and other relief against #raed defendants. The plaintiffs are James Ziolkgwéark Ziering, Alaska Electrical
Pension Fund, Jeffrey Rabin, and Benjamin Langfdhe: individual named defendants are current dirsand officers Edward W. Barnhc
H. Raymond Bingham, Robert T. Bond, Jeffrey L. H8tiephen P. Kaufman, John H. Kispert, Lida Urbaarak Richard P. Wallace; and
former directors and officers Robert J. Boehlkey Ghamberlain, Gary E. Dickerson, Richard J. Eldus,Dennis J. Fortino, Kenneth Levy,
Michael E. Marks, Stuart J. Nichols, Arthur P. Sither, Kenneth L. Schroeder and Jon D. Tompkinsr&u director David C. Wang and
former director Dean O. Morton were originally nah@s defendants in one of the derivative actided fn the U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of California, but were droppesirramed defendants as of December 22, 2006 upditiiheof a consolidated complaint
that action.

The derivative actions are at an early stage. Efendlants are not yet required to respond to theptaints in the actions pending in
California, and the defendants have moved to dsmistay the action pending in Delaware. The CawsaBoard of Directors has appoin
a Special Litigation Committee (“SLC") composededplof independent directors to conduct an indepatahvestigation of the claims
asserted in the derivative actions and to deterthi@€Company’s position with respect to those ckaifthe SLC'’s investigation is in progress.
The Company cannot predict whether these actianilaly to result in any material recovery by apense to KLA-Tencor.
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Shareholder Class Action Litigation Relating to Hisorical Stock Option Practices.KLA-Tencor and various of its current and
former directors and officers were named as defeisda a putative securities class action filedlone 29, 2006 in the U.S. District Court for
the Northern District of California. Two similartéans were filed later in the same court, andlaké cases have been consolidated into one
action. The consolidated complaint alleges claimden the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as atrestihe Company’s past stock option
grants and related accounting and reporting, aekl sespecified monetary damages and other relfed.plaintiffs seek to represent a class
consisting of purchasers of KLA-Tencor stock betwéene 30, 2001 and May 22, 2006 who allegedlyesedf losses as a result of material
misrepresentations in KLA-Tencor’s SEC filings dwgithat period. The lead plaintiffs, who seek foresent the class, are the Police and Fire
Retirement System of the City of Detroit, the Laais Municipal Police Employees’ Retirement Systand the City of Philadelphia Board
of Pensions and Retirement. The defendants are Kércor, Edward W. Barnholt, H. Raymond Bingham, &b8. Boehlke, Robert T.

Bond, Gary E. Dickerson, Richard J. Elkus, JrfrégfL. Hall, Stephen P. Kaufman, John H. KispEenneth Levy, Michael E. Marks, Stui
J. Nichols, Kenneth L. Schroeder, Jon D. Tompkinga Urbanek and Richard P. Wallace.

This litigation is at an early stage. Discovery hascommenced, and the court has not yet detedwitether the plaintiffs may sue on
behalf of any class of purchasers. The Companyalirdher defendants filed motions to dismiss thesges in June 2007, which are now
pending before the Court. The Company intendsdoraiusly defend this litigation.

As part of a derivative lawsuit filed in the DelawaChancery Court on July 21, 2006 (described abavglaintiff claiming to be a
KLA-Tencor shareholder also asserted a separatgipeiclass action claim against the Company andioeof its current and former
directors and officers alleging that shareholdecsiired damage due to purported dilution of KLA-G@ncommon stock resulting from
historical stock option granting practices. The @amy has moved to dismiss this claim.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of the Bloddter class action cases (described above), axashitot estimate the likelihood or
potential dollar amount of any adverse results. eer, an unfavorable outcome in this litigationldduave a material adverse impact upon
the financial position, results of operations astcélows for the period in which the outcome occmsd in future periods.

Indemnification Obligations. Subject to certain limitations, the Company is géfed to indemnify its current and former directors
officers and employees in connection with the itigagion of the Company’s historical stock optiaragtices and the related litigation and
ongoing government inquiry. These obligations awisder the terms of the Company’s certificate ebiporation, its bylaws, applicable
contracts, and Delaware and California law. Thégaltlon to indemnify generally means that the Comypia required to pay or reimburse the
individuals’ reasonable legal expenses and possliftlgages and other liabilities incurred in conmectith these matters. The Company is
currently paying or reimbursing legal expenses d@icurred in connection with these matters by mimer of its current and former directors,
officers and employees. Although the maximum pagamount of future payments KLA-Tencor could bguired to make under these
agreements is theoretically unlimited, the Complaglieves the fair value of this liability, to thetent estimable, is appropriately considered
within the reserve it has established for currepdnding legal proceedings.

Other Legal Matters. The Company is named from time to time as a partgwsuits in the normal course of its businesggation, in
general, and intellectual property and securiftggation in particular, can be expensive and dgiiue to normal business operations.
Moreover, the results of legal proceedings areadiff to predict.
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NOTE 13—DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITI ES

Under its foreign-currency risk management strat&dyA-Tencor utilizes derivative instruments to feot its interests from
unanticipated fluctuations in earnings and cashgloaused by volatility in currency exchange raidss financial exposure is monitored and
managed by KLA-Tencor as an integral part of itsrall risk management program which focuses omuthgedictability of financial markets
and seeks to reduce the potentially adverse effieatdhe volatility of these markets may havetsroperating results. KLA-Tencor continues
its policy of hedging its current and anticipatedeign currency exposures with hedging instrumbatsng tenors of up to eighteen months.

KLA-Tencor accounts for derivatives in accordanddn&FAS No. 133Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirayivities.
SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivatives be réedron the balance sheet at fair value. Changé® ifair value of derivatives which do not
qualify or are not effective as hedges must begeized currently in earnings. All derivatives weeflected at fair value on the balance sheet
date.

Cash Flow Hedges

KLA-Tencor’s international sales are primarily demoated in U.S. dollars. For foreign currency deimated sales/expenses, however,
the volatility of the foreign currency markets repents risk to KLA-Tencor’s margins. KLAencor defines its exposure as the risk of cha
in the functional-currency-equivalent cash flowsibtitable to changes in the related foreign cuoyegxchange rates. Upon forecasting the
exposure, KLA-Tencor hedges with forward contractd currency options. These hedges are evaluatedféotiveness at inception and at
least quarterly using the regression analysisféngfeness is measured by comparing the changalie of the forward contracts to the
change in value of the underlying transaction, \tlith effective portion of the hedge accumulate@tiner Comprehensive Income (“OCI”).
The mark-to-mark of excluded component (forwarchpg)ior any measured ineffectiveness is includedenhiately in “Interest income and
other, net” in the Consolidated Statements of Qjmars. Deferred hedge gains and losses and OCtiassd with hedges of foreign currency
sales/expenses are reclassified to revenue/expepsagecognition in income of the underlying hetiggposure. All amounts reported in
OCI as of June 30, 2007 are anticipated to begsiflad to revenue/expenses within twelve months.

The outstanding cash flow hedge contracts, withimas maturity of 13 months, were as follows:

As of June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Purchast $ 4,651 $ 15,17
Sell (242,94)) (167,52Y)

Net $(238,29)  $(152,35))

The following table summarizes hedging activitthie OCI account during the fiscal years ended 30n@007 and 2006 (in thousant

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006

Beginning Balanc: $ (129 $ 5,33
Effective portion of cash flow hedging instrume 13,60¢ 7,52¢
Reclassified to revenue upon revenue recogn (4,949 (12,999
Ending Balanct $ 8,63¢ $ (129
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Other Foreign Currency Hedges

KLA-Tencor hedges its monetary non-functional asseid liabilities, and those of its subsidiarigsAS No. 52 Foreign Currency
Translation, requires that such monetary assets and liakiliteeremeasured periodically for changes in treeahéxchange against the
entities’ functional currency. Changes in valuéhafse assets and liabilities are recorded in “&steincome and other, net” in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The vdiati the non-functional currencies together with tequirement to remeasure non-
functional assets and liabilities may result in sorlatility to KLA-Tencors Consolidated Statements of Operations if leftegigied. In orde
to mitigate these effects, KLA-Tencor enters irdmeasurement hedges which are forward contractstasgfset the foreign currency
positions represented by non-functional monetasgigsand liabilities. Remeasurement hedges ar8FA8 No. 133 designated hedges, thus
changes in value of the remeasurement hedgesamelesl currently in earnings. Changes in the vatdiesderlying monetary nofunctional
assets and liabilities are also recorded curréntiarnings and should offset the change in vafukeohedges. The outstanding other foreign
currency hedge contracts, with maximum maturity ®fmonths, were as follows:

As of June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Purchast¢ 126,99: 128,40t
Sell (265,379 (260,16%)

Net $(138,38()  $(131,759)

NOTE 14—SEGMENT REPORTING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATIO N

KLA-Tencor reports one reportable segment in acaocd with the provisions of SFAS No. 1Blsclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Informatit. Operating segments are defined as componentsaftarprise about which separate financial
information is evaluated regularly by the chief timg decision maker in deciding how to allocasaurces and in assessing performance.
KLA-Tencor’s chief operating decision makers are @hief Executive Officer and the Chief Operatini§jcer.

KLA-Tencor is engaged primarily in designing, maaxtfiring, and marketing yield management and peogesitoring systems for the
semiconductor industry. All operating units havemaggregated due to their inter-dependencies, corality of long-term economic
characteristics, products and services, the pramuprocesses, class of customer and distributiongsses. The Company’s service products
are an extension of the system product portfolid provide customers with spare parts and fab manageservices (including system
preventive maintenance and optimization serviceénprove yield, increase production uptime anatighput, and lower the cost of
ownership. Since KLA-Tencor operates in one segnafinancial segment information required by S§-No. 131 can be found in the
condensed consolidated financial statements.

KLA-Tencor’s significant operations outside the téadi States include manufacturing facilities in é@and Singapore, and sales,
marketing and service offices in Western Europpadaand the Asia Pacific region. For geographieatnue reporting, revenues are
attributed to the geographic location in which tlistomer is located. Long-lived assets consistamilgnof net property and equipment and
are attributed to the geographic region in whigythre located.
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The following is a summary of revenues by geograpégion for the fiscal years ended June 30, 22006 and 2005:

Year ended June 30,

(in thousands) 2007

2006 2005

Revenue

United State: $ 647,81 $ 416,46¢ $ 494,25(
Europe & Israe 271,81 287,56: 266,04¢
Japar 600,86: 541,41 450,24(
Taiwan 559,08 363,01 429,67:
Korea 288,75t 277,31¢ 148,28°
Asia Pacific 362,90: 184,85¢ 293,38
Total $2,731,22! $2,070,62 $2,081,87:

Long-lived assets by geographic region as of Jin@B07 and 2006 were as follows:

As of June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006

Long-lived assets
United State: $321,14t $366,71«
Europe & Israe 11,46¢ 9,50
Japar 6,821 3,66%
Taiwan 1,72( 1,91¢
Korea 6,52¢ 6,21¢
Asia Pacific 46,30 17,73(
Total $393,97¢ $405,74°

The following is a summary of major product revenim the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2068&805 (as a percentage of total

revenue).

Defect Inspectiol
Metrology
Service

Software and othe

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 200&@68, no customer accounted for more than 10%taf tevenues. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007, no customer accounted for timanel 0% of net accounts receivable. For thelfigears ended June 30, 2006 and 2005,

one customer accounted for 13.0% and 12.2% ofauetumts receivable, respectively.

NOTE 15—ASSET IMPAIRMENT AND SEVERANCE CHARGES

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, asgbdinte Company'’s long-term business plan, the Cowplecided to sell certain real

estate properties owned by the Company in San @adiéornia and Livermore,
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California. Based on the valuation of these ass&tyy relevant market indicators such as rangstihated selling prices, the Company
recorded an asset impairment charge of approxigné@t8.8 million, which has been included in SG&Aidg the fiscal year ended June 30,
2007. In addition, the Company reduced its worlédog approximately 430 people (primarily in Sane]Jd@3alifornia and Milpitas, Californit
and recorded approximately $20.5 million in seveeacharges during the fiscal year ended June 300,. Zpproximately $4.9 million of the
charges has been recorded as cost of revenuesn$HoB in engineering, research and developmepeases, and $11.3 million has been
recorded as SG&A expenses. These severance cheitgies paid over the next twelve months.

The following table provides the changes in theesance accrual for the fiscal year ended June (B7:2

(in thousands) Amounts
Balance as of June 30, 20 $ —
Severance charg: 20,54¢
Cash payment (16,299
Balance as of June 30, 20 $ 4,24¢

NOTE 16—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company purchased from, or sold to, JDS Unipl@awporation, Freescale Semiconductor, Inc., NatiSemiconductor Corp.,
STMicroelectronics, NV and Oracle Corporation, whene or more members of the Company’s board etttirs also serves as an executive
officer or board member. For the fiscal years entlete 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company’sre¥ahues from transactions with these
parties were approximately $40 million, $30 milliand $10 million, respectively. Management beliethes such transactions are at arms
length and on similar terms as would have beenmddarom unaffiliated third parties.

NOTE 17—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 8, 2007, the Company declared a quartadi dividend of $0.15 per share to be paid oneBager 1, 2007 to stockholders
of record on August 20, 2007.

In August 2007, the Board of Directors authorizddAKTencor to repurchase up to an additional 10.0 anilshares of its common stc
under the repurchase program.
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NOTE 18—QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATION S (UNAUDITED)

The following is a summary of the Company’s qudyteonsolidated results of operations (unaudited}lie fiscal years ended June 30,
2007 and 2006.

Fourth quarter
First quarter Second quarter Third quarter
ended Ended ended ended

(in thousands, except per share data) December 31, 20C March 31, 2007 June 30, 2007

September 30, 20C

Revenue $ 629,36: $ 649,27( $ 716,20¢ $ 736,38t
Total costs and operating expen 475,37 570,91: 533,55: 561,52
Gross margir 359,24 351,49¢ 409,45 420,70
Income from operatior 153,99( 78,35¢ 182,65! 174,86«
Net income 135,92. 90,04¢ 154,78 147,34.
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.6¢ $ 0.4t $ 0.7¢ $ 0.77
Diluted $ 0.67 $ 0.44 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7¢

Fourth quarter

First quarter Second quarter Third quarter
ended ended ended ended

(in thousands, except per share data) September 30, 20C December 31, 20C March 31, 200¢ June 30, 2006
Revenue $ 484,26: $ 487,68 $ 519,64¢ $ 579,03t
Total costs and operating expen 409,27: 412,68t 434,72: 504,15t¢
Gross margir 269,12: 271,46° 293,07< 294,87
Income from operatior 74,99( 74,99« 84,927 74,88(
Net income 75,48 76,60¢ 96,68 131,67¢
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.3¢ $ 0.3¢ $ 0.4¢ $ 0.6€
Diluted $ 0.37 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.47 $ 0.6t
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To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of KLAREor Corporation:

We have completed integrated audits of KLA-Tencorgoration’s 2007 and 2006 consolidated finanditesnents and of its internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30,208 accordance with the standards of the Pulbdim@any Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Our opinions, based on our auditspresented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial stament schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the index appearing under Item 15{(g)¢&sent fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of KLA-Tencor Cangtion and its subsidiaries at June 30, 2007 and 30, 2006, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of thedtyears in the period ended June 30, 2007 in ooitfowith accounting principles genera
accepted in the United States of America. In addjtin our opinion, the financial statement schedisted in the index appearing under
Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material rests, the information set forth therein when readanjunction with the related consolidated
financial statements. These financial statemerdsiaancial statement schedule are the resportygibifithe Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements and financial statement schéxisled on our audits. We conducted our
audits of these statements in accordance withtémelards of the Public Company Accounting Oversiggard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statementstides examining, on a test basis, evidence supgdhamamounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptas used and significant estimates made by neanagt, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

As discussed in Note 6 to the consolidated findrst&ements, effective July 1, 2005 the Compamnghkd its method of accounting
stock-based compensation.

As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated findrst&ements, effective June 30, 2007 the Comphayged its method of accounting
for certain defined benefit pension plans.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessmentydted in Management’s Report on Internal ControliQaieancial Reporting
appearing under Item 9A, that the Company mainthéféective internal control over financial repagias of June 30, 2007 based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framédwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission
(COSO0), is fairly stated, in all material respebti@sed on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinthe Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financegorting as of June 30, 2007, based on critst@béished in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s manageis responsible for maintaining effective introontrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriateontrol over financial reporting. Our respdmildy is to express opinions on
management’s assessment and on the effectivenéss Gbmpany’s internal control over financial repm based on our audit. We
conducted our audit of internal control over fin@hceporting in accordance with the standard$efRublic Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requirentbgilan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabéeirance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. An audit of intéic@ntrol over financial reporting includes
obtaining an understanding of internal control drgaincial reporting, evaluating management’s agsest, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controt] parforming such other procedures as we conselegssary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable fasisur opinions.
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A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(iyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companysats that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

As described in Management’s Report on Internalt@b@ver Financial Reporting, management has eexlUADE Corporation,
OnWafer Technologies, Inc., SensArray Corporatiampan ADE, Ltd., and Therma-Wave, Inc., from iteeasment of internal control over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2007 becaussetkatities were acquired by the Company in puehasiness combinations during the y
ended June 30, 2007. We have also excluded suitie®ftom our audit of internal control over findal reporting. The entities are wholly-
owned subsidiaries whose combined total assets@ndined total revenues represent 14.3% and 4 &8pectively, of the consolidated
financial statement amounts as of and for the gaded June 30, 2007.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
August 17, 2007
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ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Remediation of Past Material Weaknesses in Inte@ualtrol over Financial Reportin

A material weakness is a control deficiency, oombination of control deficiencies, that resultsrinre than a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interimririal statements would not be prevented or detected

As a result of the investigation of the Company&drical stock option practices by the Special Guottee of the Company’s Board of
Directors (for more information regarding the Spé€ommittee investigation and its findings, pleesfer to Iltem 3, “Legal Proceedings”),
the Company identified certain material weaknegsés internal control over financial reporting periods ending prior to the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007. Before June 30, 2002, the &onid not have sufficient safeguards in placemitor its control practices regarding
stock option pricing and related financial repagtand to foster an effective flow of informationtween those responsible for stock option
pricing and those responsible for financial repaytiinadequate training, communication and coot#inan and among the Company’s
human resources, stock administration, legal amhfie functions prevented the Company from asstieigstock options were priced and
accounted for correctly, primarily from July 1, I@® June 30, 2002.

In addition, the stock option pricing process dgrihat time period was overly dependent on ceftaimer executive officers of the
Company, and was administered by a stock optiomuittee that was not always properly constituted sometimes acted outside the scope
of the authority delegated to it by the Companytail of Directors. The individual who served as@unpany’s Chief Executive Officer
during part of that time period and continuing lmtidway through the last fiscal year, was involwedhe past retroactive pricing of stock
options. To that extent, the material weaknessésafCompany’s internal control over financial repay continued until midway through the
Companys fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. However, n@sssegarding stock option pricing and accountimgeduring the last fiscal ye:

Since mid-2002, the Company has made a numberpdriant changes in its controls related to grantimiging and accounting for
stock options. In addition, the Company’s BoardoEctors elected a new management team and apprmse procedures for approving
stock options and other equity awards. These clsingéude the following:

* Inresponse to certain of the reporting requirementhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which requénescutive officers to report
stock option grants within two business days, thenGany implemented new procedures for stock omiants that were design
to provide reasonable assurance that stock optiens priced on the actual grant date. Since thag,tivith a few immaterial
exceptions, there have been no instances of réiwegiricing of stock options

» Also in response to the requirements of the Sad@nhdey Act of 2002, the Company established aidential hotline for use by
employees to report actual or suspected wrongdamaigto answer questions about business conducbrepay be made
anonymously, and all reports are investigated.rmédion about this hotline is available on the Camys internal and external
websites, and employees are reminded of its existahleast annuall

» Effective July 1, 2005, the Company adopted SFAST8(R) and added controls in its stock adminiigtna human resources a
finance functions to ensure that stock-based cosgigm expenses are recorded correctly. In addittenCompany hired
individuals knowledgeable about the requirementSFEAS No. 123(R)
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* In January 2006, a new management team electdteliydard of Directors took office. The new managenteam is led by
Richard P. Wallace, the Chief Executive Officertekfjoining the Company in 1988, Mr. Wallace hadrggmost of his career in
business unit roles, with no responsibility formmrate functions and no participation in the stopkon granting process until
mid-2005. During January 2006, well before the lstmygtion issues were discovered, Mr. Wallace laedch number of key
initiatives designed to foster open and direct camitations and to establish a “tone at the topeHam integrity and excellence.
Mr. Wallace regularly communicates with all emplegéo reinforce these values, and the Companyvaslighat these values he
been embraced by the management team and gengialye population

» As aresult of the Special Committee investigatinrthe fall of 2006, the Board of Directors suspesh use of the stock option
committee and delegated sole authority for grarstogk options and restricted stock awards touhHeéCompensation Committee,
subject to ratification by the Board of Directongth the grant date being the date of the Compeé@rs&ommittee approval and
with the pricing based on the market price on ttemgdate. The Board of Directors may in the fugweluate the possibility of
again using a stock option committee, and, if se,Gompany will implement additional controls desid to assure that the stock
option committee is properly constituted and adthiwthe scope of its delegated author

* In February 2007, the Compensation Committee apguatcand the Board of Directors ratified, a new @otiegarding equity awal
grant procedures. The new policy incorporates dlieviing elements (many of which were existing pices):

. Annual reviews by the Compensation Committee oftggward dilution targets and overall equity piesign.

. Quarterly approvals of equity awards by the Comptos Committee, at regularly scheduled meetingduding annual
focal awards, employee new-hire and promotion asjaadd ongoing special program awards; quarterlgtimgs are
usually scheduled in August, November, FebruaryMagl.

. In non-routine circumstances such as the hiring e€nior executive, approvals of equity awardsheyGompensation
Committee at special meetings or, when a speciatingis not feasible, by unanimous written congsettterwise, no
equity awards will be approved by unanimous writtensent. Clarification and enhancement of the athtnative process
for issuing equity awards to assure that (a) tletdate of each award is the date of Compens@donmittee approval,
(b) the exercise or valuation price of each awartthé closing market price on the date of grapmetifications of the
awards are promptly sent to the recipients, andh@hawards are promptly entered into the Compagyisty award
database and financial recor

. Annual reconciliations and reports regarding eqaityards to allow the Compensation Committee tafweompliance witt
this policy;

The Company believes that these changes remedietqrhst material weaknesses identified above eshated to remote the likelihood
that any retroactive pricing of stock options oy amaterial error in accounting for stock optionsulgbnot have been detected as of June 30,
2007. As a result, the Company believes that #ediliood that a material error in its financialtstaents that could have originated during the
last fiscal year and would not have been detectesf dune 30, 2007 was remote.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedu

Attached as exhibits to this Annual Report areifiestions of the Company’s Chief Executive Offiq@EQ) and Chief Financial
Officer (CFQO), which are required in accordancewRiule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act 041838 amended (Exchange Act). This
Controls and Procedures section includes the irdtion concerning the controls evaluation referethtthe certifications, and it should be
read in conjunction with the certifications for @m complete understanding of the topics presented.
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The Company conducted an evaluation of the effentigs of the design and operation of its disclosomérols and procedures (as
defined in the Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) uttdeExchange Act) (Disclosure Controls) as of the ef the period covered by this Report
required by Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(b) or 15d-Ihie controls evaluation was conducted underudpersision and with the participation
of the Company’s management, including the CEOGIR@. Based on this evaluation, the Company’s CEDGFO have concluded that as
of the end of the period covered by this reportGoenpanys disclosure controls and procedures were effeetivereasonable assurance le

Definition of Disclosure Control

Disclosure Controls are controls and proceduregded to reasonably assure that information reduinebe disclosed in the Compasy’
reports filed under the Exchange Act, such asRleigort, is recorded, processed, summarized andteepwithin the time periods specified in
the SEC'’s rules and forms. Disclosure Controlsadse designed to reasonably assure that such iaf@mis accumulated and communicated
to the Company’s management, including the CEOGIF@, as appropriate to allow timely decisions rdgay required disclosure. The
Company’s Disclosure Controls include componentissahternal control over financial reporting, whiconsists of control processes
designed to provide reasonable assurance regatdngliability of its financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeein the U.S. To the extent that componenth@fCompany'’s internal control over
financial reporting are included within its Disclwe Controls, they are included in the scope ofGhmpany’s annual controls evaluation.

Managemer's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repag

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfi and maintaining adequate internal controt émancial reporting as defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchafxgie Under the supervision and with the partidipabnf the Company’s management,
including the CEO and CFO, the Company conducteglaiuation of the effectiveness of its internattcol over financial reporting based
criteria established in the frameworkliternal Control—Integrated Framewor&sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifribe
Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluationCii@pany’s management concluded that the Compamigsial control over financial
reporting was effective as of June 30, 2007. The@amy has excluded ADE Corporation, OnWafer Teabgiek, Inc., SensArray
Corporation, Japan ADE, Ltd., and Therma-Wave, linom the assessment of internal control oveniaia reporting as of June 30, 2007
because these entities were acquired by the Conmipgnychase business combinations during thelfisgar ended June 30, 2007. These
entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries whose comtbitotal assets and combined total revenues rapirg4e8% and 4.6%, respectively, of
the consolidated financial statement amounts ovapany as of and for the fiscal year ended JOn@@)7. The assessment by the
Company’s management of the effectiveness of thepamy’s internal control over financial reporting@t June 30, 2007 has been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independenttezgispublic accounting firm, as stated in thepore which appears in Item 8Fihancia
Statements and Supplementary Data” in this AnnegldR on Form 10-K.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Contr

The Company’s management, including the CEO and,@66s not expect that the Company’s Disclosurer@lsnor internal control
over financial reporting will prevent all error aatl fraud. A control system, no matter how welsidgmed and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the tepstem’s objectives will be met. Further, theigeof a control system must reflect the fact
that there are resource constraints, and the teéftontrols must be considered relative to tbests. Because of the inherent limitations in
all control systems, no evaluation of controls pesvide absolute assurance that all control isamésinstances of fraud, if any, within the
Company have been detected. These inherent lionigtnclude the realities that judgments in deaisiaking can be faulty and that
breakdowns can occur because of simple error dak@sControls can also be circumvented by theviddal acts of some persons, by
collusion of two or more people, or by managemeetriode of the controls. The design of any systémoatrols is based
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in part on certain assumptions about the likelihobtlture events, and there can be no assuraatatly design will succeed in achieving its
stated goals under all potential future conditiddger time, controls may become inadequate beaafuseganges in conditions or deterioration
in the degree of compliance with policies or praged. Because of the inherent limitations in a-effgictive control system, misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogdin

There were no changes in the Company’s internakabover financial reporting that occurred durihg most recent fiscal quarter that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, the Company’s internal cohtveer financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART 1lI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

For the information required by this Item, see timhation About Executive Officers”, “Section 16@gneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance”, “Our Corporate Governance Practicesan@rds of Business Conduct”, “Proposal One: Eaatif Directors” and “About the
Board of Directors and Its Committees-Audit Comegsttin the Proxy Statement, which is incorporatecen by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

For the information required by this Item, see “Eix&ve Compensation and Other Matters”, and “Dwe€@ompensation” in the Proxy
Statement, which is incorporated herein by refezenc

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

For the information required by this Item, see @@y Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andridgement” and “Equity
Compensation Plan Information” in the Proxy Statetnehich is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

For the information required by this Item, see ‘1@gr Relationships and Related Transactions” anabta the Board of Directors and
Its Committees” in the Proxy Statement, which iifporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

For the information required by this Item, see ‘fRysal Three: Ratification of Appointment of PricéarhouseCoopers LLP as the
Company’s Independent Registered Public Accourfting for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 20081ia Proxy Statement, which is
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE
(&) The following documents are filed as part @ thnnual Report on Form 10-K:
1. Financial Statements:

The following financial statements and schedulethefRegistrant are contained in Item 8, “FinanSi@tements and Supplementary
Data” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 200ZC0€& 49
Consolidated Statements of Operations for eacheothiree years in the period ended June 30, 50
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for each of the three years in the periodeehJune 30, 20C 51
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheoftiree years in the period ended June 30, 52
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 53
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing a0

2. Financial Statement Schedt

The following financial statement schedule of thegRtrant is filed as part of this Annual ReportFamrm 10-K and should be read in
conjunction with the financial statemen

Schedule —Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 10z

All other schedules are omitted because they #neremot applicable or the required informatiosti®wn in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Number Filing Date
2.1 Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger 8-K No. 000-09992 2.1 May 26, 2006
relating to the acquisition of ADE Corporati
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpora 1C-Q No. 00(-09992 3.1 May 14, 1997
3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated 10-Q No. 000-09992 3.1 February 14, 2001
Certificate of Incorporatio
3.3 Bylaws, as amended November 17, 1 S-8 No. 3368415 3.2 December 4, 199
4.1 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated aprilf A 8-A/A, No. 000-09992 1 September 24, 1996
25, 1996 between the Company and The First National Amendment
Bank of Boston, as Rights Agent. This agreemenuies No. 2

the Form of Right Certificate as Exhibit A and the
Summary of Terms of Rights as Exhibit
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Number Filing Date

10.1 1998 Outside Director Option Pla S-8 No. 33:-68423 10.1 December 4, 199

10.2 1997 Employee Stock Purchase PI S-8 No. 33345271 10.2 January 30, 199

10.3 Tencor Instruments Amended and Restated 1993 Equity S-8 No. 333-22939 10.75 March 7, 1997
Incentive Plar

10.4 i%gegsézted 1982 Stock Option Plan, as amended Novetibe S-8 No. 333-22941 10.74 March 7, 1997

10.5 Excess Profit Stock Plar S-8 No. 33:-60883 10.15 August 7, 199°

10.6 Form of KLA-Tencor Corporation Corporate Officers S-4 No. 333-23075 10.2 March 11, 1997
Retention Plan

10.7 Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and 10-K No. 000-09992 10.3 September 29, 1997
executive officers’

10.8 Livermore Land Purchase and Sale Agreer 10-K No. 00(-09992 10.16 September 28, 20(

10.9 Severance Agreement and General Rel 10-K No. 00(-09992 10.9 August 30, 200«

10.10 2004 Equity Incentive Plar Proxy  No.00(-09992  Appendix A September 9, 20C

10.11  Form of Option Agreement under 1998 Outside Directo  8-K No. 000-09992 10.1 October 18, 2004
Option Plan*

10.12  Blue29 Corporation 2003 Stock Incentive Pl S-8 No. 333120218 10.1 November 4, 200

10.13  Option Grant Notification’ 8-K No. 00(-09992 10.1 September 29, 20(

10.14 Amended and restated agreement by and between KLA- 10-Q No. 000-09992 10.14 February 2, 2006
Tencor Corporation and Kenneth L. Schroec

10.15 KLA-Tencor Corporation Performance Bonus PI 10-Q No. 00(-09992 10.15 February 2, 200

10.16  KLA-Tencor Corporation Executive Severance P 10-Q No. 00(-09992 10.17 February 22, 200

10.17 Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Unit 10-Q No. 00(-09992 10.18 May 4, 200€

10.18 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Notificatit 8-K No. 00(-09992 10.19 September 20, 20(

10.19 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreeme 8-K No. 00(-09992 10.2 September 20, 20C

10.20 Separation Agreement and General Release by anedet 8-K No. 000-09992 99.1 October 30, 2006

KLA-Tencor Corporation and Kenneth Le
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Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Number Filing Date

10.21 Amendment No. 1 to Separation Agreement and GeRalaglase by 8-K No. 000-09992 99.2 October 30, 2006
and between KL-Tencor Corporation and Kenneth Le

10.22 Form of Stock Option Amendment and Special Bonusedmen 8-K No. 00(-09992 99.1 January 5, 200

10.23 KLA-Tencor Corporation Outstanding Corporate Perfance Plan 10K No. 000-09992 10.23 January 29, 2007
for Fiscal 2007 *

10.24 Agreement by and between KLA-Tencor Corporation laarence 10K No. 000-09992 10.24 January 29, 2007
Gross (as amended and resta

10.25 Agreement by and between KLA-Tencor Corporation ordje 10K No. 000-09992  10.25 January 29, 2007
Titinger (as amended and restat

10.26 Agreement by and between KLA-Tencor CorporationBad Tsai 10K No. 000-09992 10.26 January 29, 2007
(as amended and restat

10.27 Letter Agreement between KLA-Tencor CorporationriieLynch  10-Q No. 000-09992 10.27 May 7, 2007
International and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &igh
Incorporated

10.28 Letter Agreement by and between KLA-Tencor Corgoraand 10Q No. 000-09992 10.28 May 7, 2007
Brian M. Martin

10.29 Therm«Wave, Inc's 2000 Equity Incentive Plar Q) Q) Q) Q)

10.30 Amendment No. 1 to Therma-Wave, Inc.’s 2000 Eqlitentive (2) 2 (2) (2
Plan*

10.31 Amendment No. 2 to Therma-Wave, Inc.’s 2000 Eqliientive 3) 3) 3) 3)
Plan*

10.32 Amendment No. 3 to Therma-Wave, Inc.’s 2000 Eqlrigentive 4) 4) 4) 4)
Plan*

10.33 Amendment No. 4 to Therma-Wave, Inc.’s 2000 Eqlrigentive (5) (5) (5) (5)
Plan*

10.34 ADE Corporatiors 1995 Stock Option Plar (6) (6) (6) (6)

10.35 ADE Corporation 1997 Employee Stock Option Pl @) (7 (7 (7

10.36 Amendment to ADE Corporation’s 1997 Employee StOgition (8) (8) (8) (8)
Plan dated April 7, 1999

10.37 ADE Corporation’s 2000 Employee Stock Option Plas dmended) (9) 9) 9) 9)

211 List of Subsidiarie!
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Number Filing Date
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer under Rul8a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 19:
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer under Rul8a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 19
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieinancial Officer

+
1)
()
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1:

Denotes a management contract, plan or arrange

Confidential treatment has been requested as ootp of this exhibit

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 teefima-Wave, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K foz fiscal year ended March 31,
2000 (Commission File No. 0-26911).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 tefitha-Wave, Inc.’s Registration Statement on For&) fled February 22, 2002
(Commission File No. 3:-83282).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 tefirha-Wave, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filaagust 27, 2004 (Commission File
No. 00(-26911).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 tefitha-Wave, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filadgust 27, 2004 (Commission File
No. 00(-26911).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 teefima-Wave, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K foz fiscal year ended April 3, 2005
(Commission File No. 0(-26911).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 toADBorporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fregal year ended April 30, 2006
(Commission File No. 0(-26714).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 toEABorporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for freeal year ended April 30, 1999
(Commission File No. 0(-26714).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to ADBrporation’s Registration Statement on Form 8l&] February 18, 1998
(Commission File No. 3:-46505).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to ADE@watior's Registration Statement on Fori-1 (Commission File No. -96408).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, théoedmly authorized.

KLA -Tencor Corporatiol

August 17, 2007 By: /sl RICHARD P. WALLACE

(Date) Richard P. Wallace
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélptihe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl RICHARD P. WALLACE Chief Executive Officer and Director (principal August 17, 2007
Richard P. Wallace executive officer’
/s| JEFFREYL. H ALL Senior Vice President and Chief Financial August 17, 2007
Jeffrey L. Hall Officer (principal financial officer and

principal accounting officer

/s/ EpwaArRD W. B ARNHOLT Chairman of the Board and Director August 17, 2007
Edward W. Barnholt
/s/ H. RAYMOND B INGHAM Director August 17, 2007
H. Raymond Bingham
/s/ ROBERTT. B oND Director August 17, 2007
Robert T. Bond
/s/ ROBERTM. C ALDERONI Director August 17, 2007
Robert M. Calderoni
/s/  JOHNT. D ICKSON Director August 17, 2007
John T. Dickson
/s|  STEPHENP. KAUFMAN Director August 17, 2007
Stephen P. Kaufman
/s/  KEVIN J. KENNEDY Director August 17, 2007
Kevin J. Kennedy
/s/  LibA U RBANEK Director August 17, 2007
Lida Urbanek
/s/ Davib C. WANG Director August 17, 2007
David C. Wang
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SCHEDULE Il
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance a Balance
Beginning Charged ta At End
(in thousands) of Period Expense Deductions of Period
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20
Allowance for Doubtful Account $12,39¢ $ 22¢ $ (40)) $12,22¢
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20
Allowance for Doubtful Account $12,22¢ $ 16 $ (139 $12,10¢
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20!
Allowance for Doubtful Account $12,10¢ $ 63 $ (442 $11,72¢
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KLA-TENCOR CORPORATION

EXHIBIT INDEX
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2.1 Amended and Restated Agreement and 8-K No. 000-09992 2.1 May 26, 2006
Plan of Merger relating to the acquisit
of ADE Corporatior
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of 10-Q No. 000-09992 3.1 May 14, 1997
Incorporation
3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Amended 10-Q No. 000-09992 3.1 February 14, 2001
and Restated Certificate of Incorporat
3.3 Bylaws, as amended November 17, 1 sS-8 No. 33:-68415 3.2 December 4, 199
4.1 Amended and Restated Rights 8-A/A, No. 000-09992 1 September 24, 1996
Agreement dated as of April 25, 1996 Amendment
between the Company and The First No. 2
National Bank of Boston, as Rigt
Agent. This agreement includes the F
of Right Certificate as Exhibit A and the
Summary of Terms of Rights as Exhibit
B
10.1 1998 Outside Director Option Pla S-8 No. 33:-68423 10.1 December 4, 199
10.2 1997 Employee Stock Purchase PI S-8 No. 33345271 10.2 January 30, 199
10.3 Tencor Instruments Amended and S-8 No. 333-22939 10.75 March 7, 1997
Restated 1993 Equity Incentive P
10.4 Restated 1982 Stock Option Plan, as S-8 No. 333-22941 10.74 March 7, 1997
amended November 18, 199
10.5 Excess Profit Stock Plar sS-8 No. 33:-60883 10.15 August 7, 199°
10.6 Form of KLA-Tencor Corporation S-4 No. 333-23075 10.2 March 11, 1997
Corporate Officers Retention Pla
10.7 Form of Indemnification Agreement for 10-K No. 000-09992 10.3 September 29, 1997
directors and executive officer
10.8 Livermore Land Purchase and Sale 10-K No. 000-09992 10.16 September 28, 2000
Agreemeni
10.9 Severance Agreement and General 10-K No. 000-09992 10.9 August 30, 2004
Release
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10.10 2004 Equity Incentive Plar Proxy No. 00(-09992 Appendix A September 9, 20C

10.11  Form of Option Agreement under 1998 8-K No. 000-09992 10.1 October 18, 2004
Outside Director Option Plar

10.12  Blue29 Corporation 2003 Stock Incentive S-8 No. 333-120218 10.1 November 4, 2004
Plan*

10.13  Option Grant Notification’ 8-K No. 00(-09992 10.1 September 29, 20(

10.14 Amended and restated agreement by and 10-Q No. 000-09992 10.14 February 2, 2006
between KLA-Tencor Corporation and
Kenneth L. Schroedel

10.15 KLA-Tencor Corporation Performance 10-Q No. 000-09992 10.15 February 2, 2006
Bonus Plan’

10.16  KLA-Tencor Corporation Executive 10-Q No. 000-09992 10.17 February 22, 2006
Severance Plar

10.17 Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Unit  1C-Q No. 00(-09992 10.18 May 4, 200€

10.18 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award 8-K No. 000-09992 10.19 September 20, 2006
Notification

10.19 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreeme 8-K No. 00(-09992 10.2 September 20, 20(

10.20 Separation Agreement and General 8-K No. 000-09992 99.1 October 30, 2006
Release by and between KLA-Tencor
Corporation and Kenneth Le

10.21  Amendment No. 1 to Separation 8-K No. 000-09992 99.2 October 30, 2006
Agreement and General Release by and
between KLA-Tencor Corporation and
Kenneth Levy

10.22  Form of Stock Option Amendment and 8-K No. 000-09992 99.1 January 5, 2007
Special Bonus Agreeme

10.23  KLA-Tencor Corporation Outstanding 10-K No. 000-09992 10.23 January 29, 2007
Corporate Performance Plan for Fiscal
2007 *+

10.24  Agreement by and between KLA-Tencor 10-K No. 000-09992 10.24 January 29, 2007
Corporation and Lawrence Gross (as
amended and restate

10.25 Agreement by and between KLA-Tencor 10-K No. 000-09992 10.25 January 29, 2007

Corporation and Jorge Titinger (as
amended and restate
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10.26 Agreement by and between KLA-Tencor 10K No. 000-09992 10.26 January 29, 2007
Corporation and Ben Tsai (as amended
and restatec

10.27 Letter Agreement between KLA-Tencor 10-Q No. 000-09992 10.27 May 7, 2007
Corporation, Merrill Lynch International
and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &
Smith Incorporated-

10.28 Letter Agreement by and between KLA- 10-Q No. 000-09992 10.28 May 7, 2007
Tencor Corporation and Brian M. Mari

10.29 Therma-Wave, Inc.’'s 2000 Equity (1) (1) Q) (1)
Incentive Plan’

10.30 Amendment No. 1 to Therma-Wave, 2 (2 2 (2
Inc.’s 2000 Equity Incentive Plar

10.31 Amendment No. 2 to Therma-Wave, 3) 3) 3) 3)
Inc.’s 2000 Equity Incentive Plar

10.32 Amendment No. 3 to Therma-Wave, 4) 4) 4) (4)
Inc.’s 2000 Equity Incentive Plar

10.33 Amendment No. 4 to Therma-Wave, (5) (5) (5) (5)
Inc.’s 2000 Equity Incentive Plar

10.34 ADE Corporation’s 1995 Stock Option (6) (6) (6) (6)
Plan*

10.35 ADE Corporation 1997 Employee Stock (7) (7 (7 (7
Option Plan*

10.36  Amendment to ADE Corporation’s 1997 (8) (8) (8) (8)
Employee Stock Option Plan dated
April 7, 1999*

10.37 ADE Corporation’s 2000 Employee Stock (9) 9) 9) 9)
Option Plan (as amendec

21.1 List of Subsidiarie:

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm
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31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Offici
under Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 193
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under Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 193
32 Certification of Chief Executive Offici

+
1)
()
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 13-

Denotes a management contract, plan or arrange

Confidential treatment has been requested as totp of this exhibit

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 teefima-Wave, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K foz fiscal year ended March 31,
2000 (Commission File No. 0-26911).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 tefitha-Wave, Inc.’s Registration Statement on For&) fled February 22, 2002
(Commission File No. 3:-83282).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 tefrha-Wave, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filadgust 27, 2004 (Commission File
No. 00(-26911).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 tefirha-Wave, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filaagust 27, 2004 (Commission File
No. 00(-26911).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 teefima-Wave, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K foz fiscal year ended April 3, 2005
(Commission File No. 0(-26911).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 toEABorporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fregal year ended April 30, 2006
(Commission File No. 0(-26714).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 toEABorporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for frezal year ended April 30, 1999
(Commission File No. 0(-26714).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to ADBrporation’s Registration Statement on Form 8ie3] February 18, 1998
(Commission File No. 3:-46505).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to ADE@watior's Registration Statement on Fori-1 (Commission File No. -96408).
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KLA-Tencor Corporation
List of Subsidiaries

Name

DOMESTIC SUBSIDIARIES
Phase Shift Technology, In
Blue 29 Corporatiol
International Sales & Business, Ii
KLA -Tencor Building Corporatio
KLA -Tencor China Corporatic
KLA-Tencor DISC Corporatio
KLA -Tencor International Corporatic
KLA -Tencor Instruments Klinnik Corporatic
KLA -Tencor Technologies Corporati
SensArray Corporatio
Sensys Instruments Corporati
Therm«Wave Domestic International Sales Corpora
VLSI Standards, Inc
ADE International Corporatio
FabSolve, LLC
KLA -Tencor Asii-Pac Distribution Corporatio
OnWafer Technologies, In
Therm&Wave, Inc.
ADE Corporatior
ADE Optical Systems Corporatic
ADE Securities Corg
ADE Software Corporatio
ADE Technologies, Inc

INTERNATIONAL SUBSIDIARIES
ATI Foreign Sales Corporatic
Lee Ta Technologies (BVI), In
KLA -Tencor Corporation (Cayman) Limited
KLA -Tencor Corporation (Cayman) Limited,
KLA -Tencor Corporation (Cayman) Limited,
KLA -Tencor Corporation (Cayman) Limited,

KLA-Tencor Semiconductor Equipment Technology (Shandbai, Ltd.

Therm&Wave (Shanghai) Co., Lt

KLA -Tencor France SAR

ADE International Gmbk

KLA -Tencor GmbF

KLA -Tencor Software India Private Limite
KLA-Tencor Ireland Ltd

KLA-Tencor Corporation (Israe
KLA-Tencor Holding (1987) Ltc

KLA -Tencor Corporation (1992) Lt

KLA -Tencor Integrated Metrology (Israel) (2002) L
KLA-Tencor ltaly S.R.L

Japan ADE, Ltd

KLA -Tencor Japan, Ltc

SensArray Japan Corporati

Exhibit 21.1

State or Other Jurisdiction of
Incorporation

Arizona
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Massachusett
Massachuseti
Massachuseti
Massachuseti
Massachusett

Barbados
British Virgin Islands
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
China
China
France
Germany
Germany
India
Ireland
Israel
Israel
Israel
Israel
Italy
Japar
Japar
Japar



INTERNATIONAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued

Therm&Wave (Japan), K.K

VLSI Standards, K.K

KLA -Tencor Korea, Inc

KLA-Tencor (Malaysia) Sdn Bt
KLA-Tencor (Singapore) PTE, Lt
KLA-Tencor Singapore Holding Co. PTE. L
KLA Instruments S.A

KLA-Tencor Yield Management Software Taiwan Corpora
KLA-Tencor (Thailand) Ltd

KLA -Tencor Limited

KLA-Tencor (Service) Limite:
ThermeWave, Ltd.

State or Other Jurisdiction of

Incorporation

Japar
Japar
Korea
Malaysia
Singapore
Singapore
Switzerland
Taiwan
Thailand
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Ne2@302, No. 33-42973, No. 33-
42975, No. 33-88662, No. 333-03003, No. 333-22941.,333-26681, No. 333-32537, No. 333-45271, N@-83883, No. 333-60887,
No. 33:-68415, No. 333-68423, No. 333-85121, No. 333-85M8 333-46598, No. 333-49766, No. 333-49828, 383-60864, No. 333-
60866, No. 333-75944, No. 333-100166, No. 333-1838®. 333-120218, No. 333-121637, No. 333-129868,333-140743 and No. 333-
144003) of KLA-Tencor Corporation of our reportedtAugust 17, 2007, relating to the financial staats, financial statement schedule,
managemens$ assessment of the effectiveness of internal aloower financial reporting and the effectivenesternal control over financi

reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.
/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers L

San Jose, Californi
August 17, 200°



EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)sAAdopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Richard P. Wallace, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of KLA -Tencor Corporatior

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presente(
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financ@darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presemtads report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesggnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

(@  Allsignificant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sgmifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

August 17, 2007 /sl RICHARD P. WALLACE

(Date)

Richard P. Wallace
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)sAAdopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Jeffrey L. Hall, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of KLA -Tencor Corporatior

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presente(
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financ@darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presemtads report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesggnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

(@  Allsignificant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sgmifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

August 17, 2007 /s] JEFFREYL. H ALL

(Date)

Jeffrey L. Hall
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Richard P. Wallace, certify, pursuant to 18 @.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectioroP0f Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that the Annual Report of KLA-Tencor Corparaton Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June2®®7 fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934 and that informationte@red in such Annual Report on Form
10-K fairly presents in all material respects timacial condition and results of operations of KILAncor Corporation.

August 17, 2007 By: /sl RICHARD P. WALLACE
Dated Name: Richard P. Wallace
Title: Chief Executive Officer

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey L. Hall, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.8ection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@&dbarbane®xley Act of 2002, the
the Annual Report of KLA-Tencor Corporation on Fot@K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 fatiynplies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 and that information contained in sueindal Report on Form 10-K fairly
presents in all material respects the financiab@tton and results of operations of KLA-Tencor Cargtion.

August 17, 2007 By: /sl JEFFREYL. H ALL

Dated Name: Jeffrey L. Hall
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among KLA-Tencor Corporation, The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The Philadelphia Semiconductor Index
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——&— KLA-Tencor Corporation — -A— NASDAQ Composite
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- - O - - Philadelphia Semiconductor

6/02 6/03 6/04 6/05 6/06 6/07
KLA-Tencor Corporation . ............... 100.00 105.61 112.25 99.59 95.70 127.77
NASDAQ Composite .................... 100.00 108.54 139.90 140.79 151.46 182.66
Philadelphia Semiconductor .............. 100.00 94.92 124.45 117.44 111.99 132.21

* Assumes $100 invested on 6/30/02 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends.

The Company’s fiscal year ends June 30. The stock price performance shown on the graph above is not necessarily indicative of

future stock price performance.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Edward W. Barnholt
Chairman of the Board,
KLA-Tencor Corporation
Retired Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer,
Agilent Technologies, Inc.

H. Raymond Bingham

Managing Director,

General Atlantic LLC

Former Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer,
Cadence Design Systems, Inc.

Robert T. Bond

Former Chief Operating Officer,
Rational Software Corporation

Robert M. Calderoni

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer,
Ariba, Inc.

John T. Dickson

Former Chief Executive Officer,
Agere Systems, Inc.

Stephen P. Kaufman

Senior Lecturer,

Harvard Business School
Former Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer,
Arrow Electronics, Inc.

Kevin J. Kennedy

Chief Executive Officer and

Member of the Board of Directors,

JDS Uniphase Corporation

Lida Urbanek

Private Investor

Richard P. Wallace

Chief Executive Officer,
KLA-Tencor Corporation

David C. Wang

President, Boeing China,
The Boeing Company

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Richard P. Wallace
Chief Executive Officer

John H. Kispert
President and Chief Operating Officer

Jeffrey L. Hall

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Brian M. Martin

Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

Bin-ming Benjamin Tsai

Executive Vice President and
Chief Technology Officer

CORPORATE OFFICES

160 Rio Robles
San Jose, CA 95134

One Technology Drive
Milpitas, CA 95035

408.875.3000
www.kla-tencor.com

GLOBAL OFFICES

KLA-Tencor has offices around the globe.
For a complete list of locations, go to
www.kla-tencor.com/company/offices.html

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California

TRANSFER AGENT/REGISTRAR

Computershare
Boston, Massachusetts

STOCK SYMBOL

Common Stock traded on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market under the symbol KLAC

Additional copies of this report may be
obtained at www.kla-tencor.com,

by calling 408.875.3600, or by writing to
KLA-Tencor Corporation

Attn: Investor Relations

One Technology Drive

Milpitas, CA 95035

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS: Except for statements of historical fact, the letter to our shareholders in this report contains certain “for-
ward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such forward-looking
statements may include, among others, statements regarding the future economic environment; our future financial results and results of our operations; technological and
economic trends in the semiconductor equipment industry; technological trends in the process control industry and our leadership position and competitive edge therein;
our future product offerings and product features and the anticipated revenue therefrom; demands for semiconductors and the increased demand for our product offerings
due to technological trends; and customer realization of savings, efficiencies and profits due to our product offerings.

Our actual results may differ significantly from those projected in the forward-looking statements in this letter due to various factors, including those set forth in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Investors are cautioned to consult KLA-Tencor’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission
for further information regarding those risks and other risks associated with the Company’s business. These documents are available at the SEC web site: www.sec.gov.
We expressly assume no obligation to update the forward-looking statements in this letter.

©2007 KLA-Tencor Corporation



OUR VISION

We will continue to build on our position as leaders in inspection
and measurement for the semiconductor and related industries.

OUR MISSION

We exist to create inspection and measurement solutions that enable
our customers to solve mission-critical production problems.

K’.ﬁencor 160 RIO ROBLES

SAN JOSE, CA 95134
WWW.KLA-TENCOR.COM
p: 408.875.3000

: 408.875.4144

Accelerating Yield
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